Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

www.enfield.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE Contact: Jane Creer / Ann Redondo
Committee Administrator
Direct : 020-8379- 4093 / 4095

Tuesday, 19th January, 2010 at 7.30 pm Tel: 020-8379-1000
Venue: Conference Room Ext: 4093 /4095

The Civic Centre, Silver Street, Fax: 020-8379-3177
Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA Textphone: 020 8379 4419

E-mail: ann.redondo@enfield.gov.uk
jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

MEMBERS

Councillors : Alan Barker (Chairman), Don Delman (Vice-Chairman),

Jayne Buckland, Lee Chamberlain, Andreas Constantinides, Peter Fallart,
Jonas Hall, Ahmet Hasan, Chris Joannides, Henry Lamprecht, Dino Lemonides,
Donald McGowan, Kieran McGregor, Anne-Marie Pearce and Toby Simon

N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting
should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7.15pm.
Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00pm on 18/1/10.
AGENDA - PART 1
1. WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (Pages 1 -2)
Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any personal or
prejudicial interests relevant to items on the agenda. Please refer to the

guidance note attached to the agenda.

4, MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 30 NOVEMBER 2009 AND 17
DECEMBER 2009 (Pages 3 - 24)

To received the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings held on

(i) Monday 30 November 2009



and
(i) Thursday 17 December 2009.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (REPORT NO. 188) (Pages 25 -170)

5.1  Applications dealt with under delegated powers.
(A copy is available in the Members’ Library)

5.2  Planning applications and applications to display advertisements.

5.3  Appeal information
Section 1 : New Town Planning Application Appeals
Section 2 : Decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(There is no part 2 agenda)



Page 1

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being

discussed at the meeting?

v

Do any relate to my interests whether

Agenda ltem 3

You can participate

already registered or not? NO »| in the meeting and
vote
v YES 7y
Is a particular matter close to me?
Does it affect:
»  me or my partner; NO
> my relatives or their partners;
17 »  my friends or close associates;
g »  either me, my family or close associates:
< e job and business;
% e employers, firms you or they are a partner of and companies NO
S you or they are a Director of
& or them to any position;
2 e corporate bodies in which you or they have a shareholding of
more than £25,000 (nominal value);
> my entries in the register of interests
more than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the
decision, or in the authority’s area or constituency?
Declare your personal interest in the matter. You can
YES| remainin meeting, speak and vote unless the interest is
also prejudicial; or
Youmay havea | I If your interest arises solely from your membership of,
personal interest or position of control or management on any other
public body or body to which you were nominated by
the authority e.g. Governing Body, ALMO, you only
need declare your personal interest if and when you
speak on the matter, again providing it is not prejudicial.
3 Does the matter affect your financial interests or
g ;?;L:Z?Zizlaivr?t:rest YES relate to a(;icensing, planning or other regulatory
= <4— matter; an
© Would a member of the public (knowing the
% relevant facts) reasonably think that your
=1 YES personal interest was so significant that it would
;% prejudice your judgement of public interest?
Do the public have speaking rights at the meeting?
v YES v NO
You should declare the interest but can remain You should declare the interest and
in the meeting to speak. Once you have withdraw from the meeting by leaving
finished speaking (or the meeting decides you the room. You cannot speak or vote
have finished - if earlier) you must withdraw from on the matter and must not seek to
the meeting by leaving the room. improperly influence the decision.

Note: If in any doubt about a potential interest, members are asked to seek advice from

pEC/BAK/1 | Democratic Services in advance of the meeting.




Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda ltem 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON MONDAY, 30 NOVEMBER 2009

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Alan Barker, Dogan Delman, Jayne Buckland, Lee
Chamberlain, Peter Fallart, Jonas Hall, Ahmet Hasan, Chris
Joannides, Henry Lamprecht, Dino Lemonides, Donald
McGowan, Kieran McGregor, Anne-Marie Pearce and Toby
Simon

ABSENT Andreas Constantinides

OFFICERS: Bob Ayton (Schools Organisation & Development), Linda

Dalton (Legal Services), Bob Griffiths (Assistant Director,
Planning & Environmental Protection), Andy Higham (Area
Planning Manager), John Hood (Legal Services), Steve
Jaggard (Environment & Street Scene), Maria Jennings
(Housing Strategy Manager), David Snell (Area Planning
Manager) and Mike Brown (Team Leader - Conservation)
Jane Creer (Secretary) and Ann Redondo (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Councillors Achilleas Georgiou, Paul McCannah, Michael
Lavender and Martin Prescott.
Approximately 50 members of the public, applicants, agents
and their representatives.
Dennis Stacey, Chairman of the Conservation Advisory
Group.

522
WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT

The Chairman welcomed attendees to the Planning Committee and
introduced John Hood, Legal representative, who read a statement regarding
the order and conduct of the meeting.

523
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

NOTED that apologies for absence were received from Councillor
Constantinides.

524
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

NOTED

1. Councillors Simon, Buckland, Lemonides and McGowan declared a
personal interest in application TP/09/1492 — 601, Hertford Road,

- 385 -



Page 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

Enfield, EN3 6UP, as it was in the same block as the headquarters of
the Enfield North Labour Party and the office of Joan Ryan MP.

2. Councillor Delman declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
application TP/09/0488 — 1-6, Clock Parade, London Road, Enfield, as
a company he was associated with had been interested in developing
this site.

3. Councillor Fallart declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
application TP/09/0488 — 1-6, Clock Parade, London Road, Enfield, as
he was employed by the supermarket company involved in the
proposed development.

4. Councillor Fallart declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
application LBE/09/0032 — 1, Wolsey Road, Enfield, EN1 3QQ, as he
was a Director of Enfield Homes.

525
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 20 OCTOBER 2009

AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2009 as a correct
record with the addition of the wording “on a vote” at the end of Minute
408.17.

526
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (REPORT NO. 150)

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning and Environmental
Protection (Report No. 150).

527
APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY

NOTED that a copy of those applications dealt with under delegated powers
was available in the Members’ Library and via the Council’s website.

528
ORDER OF AGENDA

AGREED that the order of the agenda be varied to accommodate the
members of the public in attendance at the meeting. The minutes follow the
order of the meeting.

529
TP/09/1282 - 1, LANCASTER AVENUE, BARNET, EN4 OEP

NOTED

- 386 -



Page 5
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

An amendment to the recommendation to delete wording below
Obscured Glazing in the recommendation.

The deputation of Mr Stephen Atkinson, neighbouring resident,
including the following points:

(i) He was the owner of no.3, Lancaster Avenue, which adjoined the
property.

(i) He passed around five photographs to illustrate his concerns.

(iii) The development did not comply with UDP policies regarding
residential development and maintenance of privacy.

(iv) The terrace had been built first, rather than being an afterthought
as suggested.

(v) If the terrace had been included in the original planning application,
issues would have been shown up, and this was why permission was
being sought retrospectively.

(vi) The dimensions suggested this was a large family area and
external dining area, not just a space for pots and plants.

(vii) This was not replacing ‘like for like’. The terrace was not smaller
than the original. There were inaccuracies on the original drawings.

The response of Mr Alex Evans, the applicant, including the following
points:

(i) The terrace was originally built in the early 1990s by the then-owner
and its existence predated Mr Atkinson’s purchase of no.3.

(i) Planning permission had been granted in September 2008 for a
rear extension, and as part of the building process the terrace was
rebuilt, using reclaimed London brick which was a more sympathetic
material, to the same height and the same area, and the views
remained the same.

(iii) Access stairs to the garden had been removed and access to the
terrace was now through the extension so it may be less well used.
(iv) Several other houses in the vicinity had terraces with access from
rear French windows and were similar to this and co-existed happily
with neighbours.

The statement of Councillor Paul McCannah, ward councillor, including
the following points:

(i) He shared Mr Atkinson’s concerns, and the impact could be seen as
this application was retrospective.

(i) There were significant differences between the raised terraces at
no.3 and no.1 Lancaster Avenue, which measured 3.9m? and 12.6m?
respectively. The terrace at no.3 was more characteristic of
neighbouring properties.

(iii) Access to the terrace at no.1 would be via the French doors and
sliding doorway and it was feared it would be used as an extension of
living space.

(iv) The construction at no.1 increased the scope for activity and was
not comparable to what already existed there.

(v) Inclusion of an obscured glazed screen was an admission there
were privacy issues.

- 387 -



5.

Page 6

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

Officers highlighted key issues identified in the report in response to
Members’ queries.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report amended as above, for the reasons set out in the report.

530

TP/09/1415 - 109, BERKSHIRE GARDENS, LONDON, N13 6AE

NOTED

1.

The statement of Councillor Achilleas Georgiou, ward councillor,
including the following points:

(i) He was speaking on behalf of many residents in Berkshire Gardens.
(i) Local residents had responded to the consultation and raised a
number of concerns including the number of converted houses in the
vicinity, the changing character of the area, parking concerns, loss of
daylight and privacy, and lack of amenity space.

(iii) In two years there had been a five-fold increase in the number of
conversions in the road, up from five in 2007 to 18 out of 130 houses.
The attractiveness to developers to convert to flats and bedsits was
making the wider area become unsustainable.

(iv) Atthe moment this house had off-street parking, but a conversion
would mean an increase in the number of cars at the site and an
increase in traffic.

(v) The development would be contrary to London Plan policies and
UDP policies, did not respect the area’s character, and would be
detrimental to the local environment.

The Planning officer’s clarification of the policy and percentage
threshold figure for number of conversions permitted in any one road.

Members’ concerns regarding loss of a family home and the lack of
amenity space for the two-bed upstairs flat, and advice of Planning
officers on relevant policies and standards.

A proposal not to accept the officers’ recommendation supported
unanimously by the Committee.

A proposal that planning permission be refused supported unanimously
by the Committee.

AGREED that planning permission be refused for the reasons below.

Reasons:

The conversion of the single family dwelling into two flats (comprising 1 x 1-
bed and 1 x 2-bed) results in the loss of a single family dwelling house and
due to the number of conversions already existing along Berkshire Gardens

- 388 -



Page 7

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

and in the vicinity of the application property, would adversely affect the
residential amenity and character of this locality contrary to Policies (I11)H16,
(HGD1, ()GD2 and (I)GD1 and Appendix A1.9 of the Unitary Development
Plan and the Supplementary Planning Guidance on flat conversions, as well
as Policy 3A.6 of the London Plan (2008) and the objectives of PPS1 and
PPSS.

The proposed conversion, due to the absence of any amenity space
associated with the larger first floor two bedroom flat would result in a sub
standard form of accommodation, detrimental to the amenities of future
occupiers and the standard of accommodation within the borough. This would
be contrary to Policies (II)H16, (1)GD1, (I)\GD2 and (ll)H9 and Appendix A1.9
of the Unitary Development Plan and the Supplementary Planning Guidance
on flat conversions, as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPSS3.

531

TP/09/1418 - 71, RIVERSFIELD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 3DH
NOTED

1, The Planning officer’s advice in respect of the appeal decision in

relation to a previously dismissed scheme, and officers’ concerns.

2. The deputation of Mr Andrew Neil of Andrew Neil Associates Ltd, the
agent, including the following points:
(i) If planning permission was granted for this application, the applicant
would enter a legal agreement to prohibit the implementation of the
approved two-storey side extension.
(i) An identical application to this was refused in February 2009, and
the appeal was dismissed, but the Planning Inspector stated that the
design was appropriate as it took its inspiration from the prevailing style
in the area, and that there was sufficient space from the properties to
either side.
(i) The appeal conclusion was that there would be no adverse effect
on the local character and appearance.
(iv) The two-storey side extension was considered unsatisfactory by
the Planning Inspector, but a unilateral S106 agreement had been
drafted meaning that the extension would not be constructed and the
permission would be allowed to lapse.
(v) There were at least three similar detached houses close to this site,
and many similar consents in the borough.

3. The deputation of Mr Alvin Ormonde, Planning and Project
Management Services, on behalf of the agent, including the following
points:

(i) He confirmed this application was a duplicate of that which had
been subject to appeal, with a correction of the omission of paragraphs
regarding the S106 agreement.

(i) Planning committees should not fail to give due weight to Planning
Inspectors’ decisions.

- 389 -



Page 8

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

4, Debate between Members, and the Planning officer’s advice that a
subjective design judgement had to be made in this case.

5. The Planning officer’s confirmation that the Planning Inspector’s
decision was a material consideration.

6. The Planning officer’s confirmation that if permission was granted,
conditions to the approval would be standard for this type of
development and could be delegated to officers to deal with, along with
the S106 agreement.

7. A proposal not to accept the officer's recommendation supported by a
majority of the Committee.

8. A proposal that planning permission be granted supported by a majority
of the Committee.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions and a
S106 Agreement in the terms offered by the applicant for the following reason:
The proposal, by virtue of its design, siting, plot size and relationship to the
site boundaries, would not represent a cramped or intrusive form of
development in the street scene that would be detrimental to the prevailing
character and appearance of the surrounding area having regard to Policies
(HGD1, ()GD2 and (I1)GDS3 of the Unitary Development Plan.

With imposition of conditions delegated to officers.

532
LBE/09/0026 - 305-313, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4YB

NOTED that the works had already been implemented.

AGREED that planning permission be granted in accordance with Regulation
3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to the
condition set out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

533
LBE/09/0028 - EVERSLEY PRIMARY SCHOOL, CHASEVILLE PARK
ROAD, LONDON, N21 1PD

NOTED the correction to the application address.

AGREED that in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country
Planning (General Regulations) 1992 consent is deemed to be granted
subject to the conditions set out in the report, for the reasons set out in the
report.

534
LBE/09/0032 - 1, WOLSEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 3QQ

-390 -



Page 9

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

NOTED that Councillor Fallart left the room and took no part in the
consideration of this application.

AGREED that planning permission be deemed to be granted in accordance
with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations
1992, subject to the conditions set out in the report, for the reasons set out in
the report.

535

TP/09/0488 - 1-6, CLOCK PARADE, LONDON ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6JG
NOTED

1. Councillors Delman and Fallart left the room and took no part in the

consideration of this application.

2. Only the Members who were in attendance at the meeting of Planning
Committee on 20 October when the application was originally
presented and a deputation and response received, were eligible to
consider and vote on this application.

3. A correction to page 48 of the report that the reference to ‘Private Road
Conservation Area’ should read ‘Bush Hill Park Conservation Area’.

4. Circulation to Members of figures and representations by the applicant
relating to their affordable housing assessment.

5. Receipt of a further letter from Private Road Residents’ Association
reiterating their previous concerns regarding the provision of access off
Private Road and the long term maintenance of this section of the
street. Their request that consideration be given to a S106 Agreement
to safeguard maintenance.

6. Receipt of five letters commenting that revised plans did not address
neighbours’ concerns.

7. Receipt of amended plans incorporating a clock feature.

8. The advice from officers relating to the issue of impact on a Wildlife
Corridor along Sadlers Mill Stream.

9. The advice of officers on the requirements of the Three Dragons
Affordable Housing Toolkit and the deficiencies of the applicant’s
submission. It was for the developer to demonstrate that it was not
reasonable for them to make a contribution to affordable housing.
Officers considered it was not credible for the applicant to suggest that
a loss would be generated in this development even when no
affordable housing was provided.

- 391 -



Page 10

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

10.  The majority of the Committee’s support on a vote, to add a further
reason for refusal in respect of the inadequacy of amenity space
provision having regard to UDP Policy (II)H9.

AGREED that planning permission be refused for the reason set out in the
report and the additional reason below.

The proposal provides for an inadequate level of amenity space provision to
provide a visual setting for the building and the needs of residents having
regard to Policy (I1)H9 and Appendix A1.7 of the Unitary Development Plan.

536
TP/09/0969 - 311B, CHASE ROAD, PICKARD CLOSE, LONDON, N14 6JS

NOTED

1. At the meeting of the Planning Committee on 22 September 2009, it
was agreed to defer consideration of this application to enable further
assessment of the traffic and highway implications arising from the
proposal.

2. Request that Members defer consideration of this application to enable
further assessment of the traffic generation implications for Pickard
Close in the light of ongoing highway concerns and further discussion
since closure of the report.

3. Confirmation that there would be a full debate when Planning
Committee considered this application and all Members would be
eligible to take part and vote.

AGREED that a decision on the application be deferred.

537

TP/09/1051 - KING EASTON GARDEN CENTRE, 69, STATION ROAD,

LONDON, N21 3NB

NOTED

1. Members noted that the applicant had provided written confirmation
that the appeal would be withdrawn if Members approved the scheme.

2. Members’ comments on improvements to previous proposals.
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set

out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

538
TP/09/1071 - CREWS HILL GOLF CLUB, CATTLEGATE ROAD, ENFIELD,
EN2 8AZ

-392 -



Page 11

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

539

TP/09/1238 - LAND REAR OF, 483/499, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13
NOTED

1. A decision was made to defer the application at the 20 October

meeting of the Planning Committee for further guidance from officers
on potential reasons for refusal.

2. Request that Members defer consideration of this application to enable
officers to respond more comprehensively in the ‘Note for Members’, in
responding to concerns at the previous meeting regarding issues of
access to the development from / onto Green Lanes.

AGREED that a decision on the application be deferred.

540

TP/09/1457 - MAIN BUILDING, ST IGNATIUS RC COLLEGE, TURKEY
STREET, ENFIELD, EN1 4NW

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

541
TP/09/1492 - 601, HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 6UP

NOTED
1. An amendment to the recommendation, to delete Condition 2.

2. Amendment of Condition 4 to refer to the internet café use only and to
restrict opening hours to between 07:00 and 23:00 hours.

3. Officers’ advice regarding minicabs parking and waiting, and
confirmation that customers would not be picked up at the premises.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report and amendments above, for the reasons set out in the report.

542

TP/96/0971/5 - 8, UPLANDS WAY, LONDON, N21

NOTED

1. Only the Members who were in attendance at the meeting of Planning

Committee on 20 October when the application was originally

- 393 -



Page 12

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

presented and a deputation and response received, were eligible to
consider and vote on this application.

2. Members had received further representations from several interested
parties, which they had been advised to disregard.

3. An update on the application with reference to the status of the
application and purpose of ‘Note for Members’.

4, Request for two additional conditions by Transportation to mitigate
concerns.
5. Councillor Pearce’s suggestion that the nursery’s garden fence should

be higher, to mitigate noise and increase safety and privacy.

6. Members’ expression that they would not look favourably on any further
application to increase numbers of children attending.

7. Officers’ advice that there was continuing demand for nursery
accommodation, that officers had recognised concerns but that on
balance recommended that the application be approved.

AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set
out in the report, and additional conditions below, and a Directive covering the
height of fencing around the rear garden, for the reasons set out in the report.

Additional Conditions:

1. Prior to the implementation of this permission, a Travel Plan incorporating
the components set out in Appendix C of the ODPM/DfT publication “Using
the planning process to secure travel plans” has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved Travel Plan
shall thereafter be implemented and adhered to.

Reason — In the interests of sustainability and to ensure that traffic generated
from the site is minimised.

2. Prior to the implementation of this permission, proposals must be
submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority to detail the
provision of drop-off/pick-up arrangements within the curtilage of the front
garden of the application site. This arrangement is to include the creation of
an additional footway crossover to Langham Gardens and facilitate the
provision of a layout that creates a separate access/egress. The approved
new layout shall be constructed prior to the implementation of the planning
permission, and shall be available for use at all times that the nursery is open,
and not be obstructed by parked vehicles owned by the nursery owners or
their staff.

Reason — in the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic on the
neighbouring highways.

543

-394 -



Page 13

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009
TOWN PLANNING APPEALS

NOTED the information on town planning application appeals received from
01/10/2009 to 13/11/20009.

544
CONSERVATION AREA REVIEW PHASE Il - CONFIRMATION OF
ARTICLE 4 DIRECTIONS (REPORT NO. 151)

RECEIVED the report of the Director of Place Shaping and Enterprise.

AGREED that the Planning Committee, having considered the
representations received from householders and stakeholders, makes
permanent the Article 4 (2) Direction under The Town & Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 2008,
in respect of those Parts/Classes of the Order scheduled against each
Conservation Area in Appendix A of the report, removing permitted
development rights and that the statutory notification requirements be followed
forthwith to enact this decision.

545
BULL LANE PLAYING FIELDS - VILLAGE GREEN APPLICATION
(REPORT NO. 152)

RECEIVED the report of the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources.
NOTED

1. The Legal officer’s verbal introduction and background information in
relation to this application, and confirmation of the conclusion of the
independent Inspector.

2. The Legal officer’s advice that each episode of deferral of use by
inhabitants of the relevant neighbourhood when there were organised
matches on the rented pitches meant that the use had not been
continuous and without interruption.

3. Members’ lengthy debate of issues, particularly in regard to use of the
playing fields for football on the rented pitches and informal use by
local inhabitants.

4, The Legal officers’ advice on alternative options to accepting the
findings of the independent Inspector, and on the implications of Village
Green registration.

AGREED to accept the recommendations of the independent Inspector that
neither the whole nor any part of the application site should be added to the
Register of Town and Village Greens because on the evidence it does not
meet the statutory tests required for such registration.

- 395 -



Page 14

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

546
DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

AGREED that the next meeting on Thursday 17 December 2009 to start at the
earlier time of 7.00 pm.

547
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the item of
business listed on part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that it involves the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local Government (Access to
Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

548

JJ ROOFING, SKEW BRIDGE, HOPPERS ROAD, WINCHMORE HILL

(REPORT NO. 155)

RECEIVED the report of the Head of Development Services.

NOTED

1. The reports listed on the agenda had been circulated in accordance
with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution and the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information)
(England) Amendment Regulations 2002 with the exception of Report
No.155.

2. The Chairman’s agreement to receive the urgent item due to the level
of public concern.

3. The Planning officer’s verbal introduction with background information
to long-standing issues regarding use of the site.

4. The statement of Councillor Martin Prescott, Winchmore Hill ward
councillor, reporting residents’ concerns regarding operations at the
site, traffic movements and the dangerous highway situation.

5. The Planning officer’s advice regarding the options available.

6. The Traffic and Transportation officer’s advice regarding highway
safety and personal injury records.

7. Members’ debate and vote on the available options for action.

AGREED to accept the recommended option (ii) in the report.

- 396 -



Page 15

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 30.11.2009

- 397 -



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 17.12.2009

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON THURSDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2009

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Alan Barker, (Chairman) Dogan Delman, Peter Fallart, Jonas
Hall, Ahmet Hasan, Chris Joannides, Henry Lamprecht, Dino
Lemonides, Kieran McGregor, Anne-Marie Pearce and Toby
Simon

ABSENT Jayne Buckland, Lee Chamberlain and Donald McGowan

OFFICERS: Andy Higham (Area Planning Manager), Steve Jaggard

(Environment & Street Scene), Aled Richards (Head of
Development Services), David Snell (Area Planning
Manager), Ann Redondo (Secretary) and Sandra Bertschin
(Secretary)

Also Attending:  Councillors Ertan Hurer and Achilles Georgiou.
Approximately 20 members of the public, applicants, agents
and their representatives.

Dennis Stacey, Chairman of the Conservation Advisory
Group.

612
WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT

The Chairman welcomed attendees to the Planning Committee and
introduced John Hood, Legal Representative, who read a statement regarding
the order and conduct of the meeting.

613
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

NOTED that apologies for absence were received from Councillors Buckland,
Chamberlain and McGowan. Apologies for lateness were received from
Councillor Lemonides.

614
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Councillor Constantinides declared a personal interest in application
LBC/09/0036 — Florence Hayes Recreation Ground, N18 as he had been part
of the original steering committee that helped drive the scheme through.

615

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

- 445 -



Page 18

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 17.12.2009

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning and Environmental
Protection (Report NO. 168)

616
APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY

NOTED that a copy of those applications dealt with under delegated powers
was available in the Member’s Library and via the Council’s website.

617
ORDER OF THE AGENDA

AGREED that the order of the agenda be varied to accommodate the
members of the public in attendance at the meeting. The minutes follow the
order of the meeting.

618
4, RADCLIFFE ROAD, LONDON, N21 2 SE

NOTED

1. Two additional letters of objection, circulated to Members and
summarised verbally summarised by the Planning Officer.

2. Additional conditions had been proposed.

3. The deputation of Mr. Ferrary, agent for Mr. and Mrs. Ward residents of
no. 2 Radcliffe Road including the following points:
(i) No further technical information had been provided by the
applicant or Planning officers as requested at the previous Planning
meeting, on what measures would be taken to prevent structure-borne
noise and vibration to neighbouring properties.
(ii) Enfield Environmental Health had elected not to set maximum
noise levels stating ‘ setting a noise level is inherently difficult as we do
not know how the sound will transfer through the structure of the
building’.
(i)  Planning Officers had provided new case information offering
information which was presented as a precedent within the London
Borough of Enfield. However, the example offered was for a large
detached property on Cockfosters Road and was inherently different to
this proposal as there was physical connection to the adjoining
property.

4. The deputation of Mr. Geoff Rubenstein, neighbouring resident,
including the following points:
(i) The proposed development would be contrary to UDP policies.
His written representation listed relevant UDP policies.
(ii) Concerns were raised previously over the inaccuracies in the
Ordnance Survey Map and the officer verbally corrected this at the
September Planning meeting. The inaccuracies were repeated in the
present Committee report and Committee Members may be misled to
believe that the building work would not go right up (and possibly
encroach) the property boundaries of 6, 8 & 10 Radcliffe Road.

- 446 -



Page 19

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 17.12.2009

(iii) ~ There would be a loss of mature boundary trees.

(iv)  The overall detrimental effect of the proposed development
would include a curtain wall of brickwork built up to and
potentially over the rear boundaries of No’s 6-10 Radcliffe Road.
His outlook, amenities and enjoyment of the garden would be
compounded by the loss of mature boundary trees at the rear of
his garden.

5. The statement of Councillor Hurer, ward councillor, including:

() The proposal had been deferred at the September Planning

Committee to allow for further technical data to be provided to

determine how noise and vibration would not impact on neighbouring

properties, this information had not been provided.

(ii) The proposal would be a substantial extension that would impact

on visual amenity.

(i) A comparison could not be made with the officers’ report
detailing a similar development on a detached house on the
Cockfosters Road.

6. The response of Mr. Michael Walliss, PMSS, the Agent and
architect, including the following points:

(i) The noise that would emanate from the proposed lift would be

minimal, comparing it to the noise of a domestic lawnmower.

(ii) The development would not encroach boundaries due to the
foundations.

(i) ~ The company that would be installing the lift was an International
corporation who had to comply with the highest European
standards.

(iv)  The boroughs Environmental Health and Building Control were
‘happy’ to accept that noise levels would be acceptable.

(V) In response to Councillor Simon, Mr. Wallis confirmed that the
European Standard that applied to the installation covered all
areas of the development, including, mechanical parts, vibration
rates and noise levels.

(vi)  The planning officer advised that an extra condition could be
added to include the European Standard being applied to the
development.

7. Planning officers’ confirmation that building regulations covered

foundation depths.

8. In response to Councillor Hall, the Planning officer’s confirmation
that the development would not encroach on neighbouring
properties.

9. Planning Officers’ confirmation that any outstanding issues could be
resolved by mitigation and that noise / vibration concerns could be
managed by conditions.

10. Councillor Delman’s concerns that the request for further technical
data to be provided, as detailed in the previous September Planning
minutes did not materialise. Further concerns over no guarantees
with regard to compliance noise / vibration concerns.

11.The Planning Officers’ confirmation that any breach of condition
would be a Planning issue.

- 447 -



Page 20

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 17.12.2009

12.Councillor Lamprecht’s concerns over the lack of technical data
which would have provided further insight on the vibration / noise
levels that may impact on neighbouring properties.

13. A proposal not to accept the officers’ recommendation supported by
the majority of the Committee.

14.A proposal that planning permission be refused supported by the
majority of the committee.

AGREED that planning permission be refused for the reasons below.
Reasons:

The proposed development due to its size, siting and massing would
represent an overdevelopment of the site, detrimental to and out of keeping
with the character and appearance of the surrounding residential area,
contrary to Policies (I)GD1, ()\GD2 and (I)GD3 of the Unitary Development
Plan and Policy 4B.8 of the London Plan.

The proposed development due to the absence of technical specification
regarding the operation of the car lift, could give rise to conditions through
noise and vibration that would be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining
and neighbouring residential properties. This would be contrary to Policies
(INEN3O, (I)GD1 and (I)GD2 of the Unitary Development Plan.

619
TP/09/1198 1 JUTE LANE, ENFIELD EN3 7PJ

NOTED

1. Councillor Simon’s concerns over Councillor Hurer’s intention to speak
on behalf of the applicant. He said that he believed it was only ward
councillors that could speak on behalf of applicants.

2. Councillor Hurer's explanation that he was speaking on behalf of the
applicant as he was asked for assistance due to the fact that Turkish
was their first language and he was one of three Councillors in the
borough that could help with any language barrier. He stated that he
had no prejudicial or personal interest in the proposed development.
He added that he had previously spoken on behalf of residents who
were not in his ward for the same reason.

3. Councillor Simon commented that he still felt that in principal, it sets a
precedence, whatever the merits of the case.

4. The Chairman accepted the reasons for Councillor Hurer’s speaking on
behalf of the applicant.

5. The statement of Councillor Hurer, including:

(i) The conditions imposed on the development should reassure residents

in the area that the proposed nightclub would not cause any direct noise

pollution.

(i) The site was an industrial unit and had previously been a snooker club,

where the age of the clientele would have been similar.

- 448 -



Page 21

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 17.12.2009

(iii) The applicant was aware of all the conditions imposed and had agreed

to comply with them.

6. Councillor Simon said that the development was in his ward and did
cause some consternation amongst residents in the area, particular
concerns were over noise and ASB that may derive from the nightclub.
He understood the concerns of residents, but realised that Licensing
Laws could control any problems of this nature. Councillor Simon
added that nightclubs do need to be sited at these types of areas ie:
industrial sites, and that on balance, he felt that the proposal was
acceptable.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to a legal agreement
requiring that the use only operates with the provision of car parking proposed
in application reference TP/09/1605 subject to the conditions set out in the
report, for the reasons set out in the report.

620
TP/09/064 129, PALMERSTON ROAD, LONDON, N22 8QX

NOTED

1. The statement of Councillor Georgiou, ward councillor, who reiterated the
officers recommendation for refusal .

AGREED that planning permission be refused for the reason set out in the
report.

621
TP/09/1575 94, NATAL ROAD, LONDON, N11 2HY

NOTED

1. The statement of Councillor Georgiou, ward councillor, including the
following points:

(i) He was against the officers recommendation for approval.

(i) He felt that the area ‘needed relief’ from these types of multiple
developments.

(i) 3 x units would mean at least 6 further vehicles, there was no off
street parking and to compound the parking problems there was a
CPZ installed in the vicinity of Bounds Green Tube Station.

(iv)  The officers report details that within the proposed studio flat
approximately 10 sqg m of the floor space would be lost due to
insufficient head height.

2. The Planning officer's acknowledgement that the development was
already divided into flats. The conversion into three units did mean that
although the proposed studio flat was inadequate in size, it was
sufficient enough to meet planning requirements. *

- 449 -



Page 22

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 17.12.2009

3. The Traffic and Transportation officer’'s comment that the point made
by Councillor Georgiou regarding the CPZ, was fair and that it does
have an impact on parking in the area.

4. In response to Councillor Pearce, the Planning Officer confirmed that
planning permission was granted in 2005 for 3 units and was
implemented in 2006, but did not complete the roofing works. This
application was to ‘regularise’ the development.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

622
LBC/09/0019 FORTY HALL, FORTY HILL, ENFIELD EN2 9EU

NOTED the Conservation Advisory Groups’ support for the proposals.

AGREED that in accordance with Regulation 13 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 the Director of
Edu8cation, Children’s Services and Leisure be invited to make an application
to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government who should
be invited to attach the conditions set out in the report to any approval.

623
LBE/09/0029 FORTY HALL, FORTY HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 9EU

NOTED the Conservation Advisory Groups’ support for the proposals.

AGREED that Planning Permission be granted, subject to Regulation 3 of the
Town and Country Planning (General Regulations) 1992, subject to the
conditions set out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

624
LBE/09/0036 FLORENCE HAYES RECREATION GROUND, FORE
STREET, LONDON, N18 2SP

AGREED that planning permission be granted in accordance with Regulation
3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations, subject to the
conditions set out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

625
TP/96/0150/3 LAND TO SOUTH OF WILLIAM GIRLING RESERVOIR,
LOWER HALL LANE, CHINGFORD, LONDON, E4

AGREED that planning permission be refused for the reason set out in the
report.

626

TP/09/1091 1-18, OLD PARK HOUSE, OLD PARK ROAD, LONDON, N13
4RD

- 450 -



Page 23

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 17.12.2009

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report.

- 451 -



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25 Agenda ltem 5

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/2010 - REPORT NO 188

COMMITTEE: AGENDA - PART 1 ITEM 5
PLANNING COMMITTEE

19.01.2010 SUBJECT -

REPORT OF: MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Assistant Director, Planning
and Environmental Protection

Contact Officer:
David Snell Tel: 020 8379 3838
Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848

5.1  APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF

5.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 309 applications were determined
between 18/11/2009 and 06/01/2010, of which 233 were granted and 76
refused.

5.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library.

Background Papers

To be found on files indicated in Schedule.

5.2 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY
ADVERTISEMENTS DEC

On the Schedules attached to this report | set out my recommendations in
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements. |
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting.

Background Papers

(1) Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP).

(2)  Other background papers are those contained within the file, the
reference number of which is given in the heading to each application.



5.3

Page 26

APPEAL INFORMATION INF

The Schedule attached to the report lists information on town planning
application appeals received between 03/12/2009 and 31/12/2009 and also
contains information on decisions taken during this period.



Page 27

LIST OF APPLICATIONS
TO BE DETERMINED

BY THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
ON: 19" January 2010

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0034 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to
Conditions

WARD: Cockfosters

Location: TRENT PARK, COCKFOSTERS ROAD, BARNET, EN4 0PS

PAGE No: 29

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0037 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to
Conditions

WARD: Haselbury

Location: CHURCH STREET RECREATION GROUND, GREAT CAMBRIDGE

ROAD, LONDON, N9 9HP

PAGE No: 34

APPLICATION: TP/09/0969 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to
Conditions

WARD: Southgate

Location: 311B, CHASE ROAD, PICKARD CLOSE, LONDON, N14 6JS

PAGE No: 38

APPLICATION: TP/09/1176 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to
Conditions

WARD: Town

Location: Car Park Site, Little Park Gardens, Enfield, EN2 6PQ

PAGE No: 55

APPLICATION: TP/09/1200 RECOMMENDATION: Refusal
WARD: Grange
Location: 27, THE CHINE, LONDON, N21 2EA



Page 28

PAGE No: 68

APPLICATION: TP/09/1238 RECOMMENDATION: Granted subject to S106
completion

WARD: Winchmore Hill

Location: Land rear of, 483/499, Green Lanes, London, N13.

PAGE No: 77

APPLICATION: TP/09/1523 RECOMMENDATION: Refusal

WARD: Palmers Green

Location: 34, New River Crescent, And Land At Rear Of, 2-32, New River Crescent,
London, N13 5RF

PAGE No: 119

APPLICATION: TP/09/1631 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to
Conditions

WARD: Highlands

Location: MERRYHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL, BINCOTE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 7RE

PAGE No: 138

APPLICATION: TP/09/1658 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to
Conditions

WARD: Chase

Location: Land south side of Whitewebbs Lane, Incorporating Rolenmill Sports

Ground, And Land Rear Of Myddelton House, Bulls Cross, Enfield, Middx, EN2 9HA

PAGE No: 145



Page 29
Application No:- LBE/09/0034

[ -

Development Control

¥ 1 a L £

ENFIELD"

. Sealo - 11260
Council e

Time of plog: 11:28 Crae o plat: G801/2310

e cogprigh, Lozt 3uaagh o Crdals LAIGIGD. 2303




Page 30

Application Number. LBE/QS/0034 Ward: Cockiosters
Date of Reqgistration: 19th November 2009

Contact: David Snell 3828
Location: TRENT PARK, COCKFOSTERS ROALD, BARNET, EN4 OPS
Proposal: Installation of a new children's adventure playground.

Applicant Name & Address:

Mr David Brekenridge, Londan Borough of Enfield
P QO Box 52

Civic Cenlre

Silver Sirest

Enfield

Middx

ENT 3XA

Agent Name & Address:

Recommendation: That planning parmigsion be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with
Reguiation 3 of the Town and Coumtry Planning General Regulations 1992,

1. G514 Time Limited Permission

Sife and surrcundings

2000 square metres of land within Trent Park to the south of the Cockfosters gate access road
close to the cafe. The site lies within the Melropgiitan Green Belt and Trent Park Conservation

Area.

Proposal
The proposal involves the construction of a climbing forest children's play area. The area would

accommuodate climbing ropes, nets, swings and timbers supported on timber poles 4 and 6
metres in height, The ares is {o be installed at the base of three mature oak lrees in part of

Church Wood.

Relevant planning history

Mone,

Consultations

Public

The application has been adverised in the press and on site. No responses have been Tecefved.
Southgate Civic Trust raise concerns about the safety and supervision of chifdren and comment

in this regard that some of the equipment is clearly for older rather than younger children.
Howevyer the Group deoes not object to the proposal.



Page 31

Trent Park Conservation Committee support the application and comment thal their ondy
suggestion that remains outstanding is the desirability to increase safety for children crossing the
road from the car park, toilets and café.

|nternal

MNane.

Lxlernal

Mene.

Relevant policy

The London Pian

306 Green belt

3820 Health objectives
3D.13 Children's play sirategy
3015 Traes and woodlands
48.12 Conservation

Unitary Development Plan

{1}G0 Appropriate regard te surroundings
{151 Green belt

{1331 Promote recreation use in the green belt
(ICH Conservation

Losal Developrment Framewark

The Enfizld Plan — Proposed Subsmission Stage Core Strategy document was published for publie
cansullation on 14" December 2008. Fallowing this stage of consultation, the Councif will submit
the Core Strategy to the Secretary of State who wilt appoint a Planning inspecior to consider
whether the Strategy meets legal requirements and that it passes the tests of soundness, The
following policies from this document are of relevance to the consideration of this application.

CR33 Green bell and countryside
CP24 Playing fields, parks and open space

Other material considerations

PPGZ - Green Belts
Analysis
The proposal would enhance recreation and play faciiities within Trent Fark.

The proposed recreational use is appropriate development in the green belt and it would serve to
maintain its apen character.

The form of construction and natural materials to be used in the construction of the play
equipment are appropriale to the seiling of the site and would serve to preserve the character of
the conservation area,



Page 32

Conclusicn
The application is recommended for approval for the {ollowing reasons:

The proposed recreational use is appropriate development in the green bett and it would serve to

maintain its open character having regard to Policy
2019 of the Lendon Plan, Policy {(IDG1 of the Unitary Development Plan and PPGZ _ Green Bells,

The foarm of construction and natural materials to be used in the construction of the play
equipmenl are appropriate to the setting of the site and would serve to preserve the character of
the congervation area having regard to Policies (HG01 and ()21 of the Unitary Development
Pran.



VT

o Cr RS

[

LRI A R R T

v

QUrS
"'ﬂ"“

o

P — (R
4 a Ly I-..-[.-"'ul-r\.;'_a |'\|_..:'ik'JL
e | L b
e m
ey ] T
i ] s o
R FoLox 4
: =4 7 F ¥
B o 2 Dovoa o3
S | B L Eb i
i o ‘_F' W l 3 [
! v *;}qu‘-'"; = n
}flé}?’i& it _‘:‘E 2 % 4 w0 of e . ouoz

G o .
L ‘z{;
; .,-L.»..JI- gk
R i
LRt

T SRR )

b

i
i
o

fo

Rt
e R I

! ff@%ﬂﬁﬁx.r' ke
L el

2
5

13
s
i

=

,
e
XA

QLAY A

%

F
.
1-'?“*_

ECHALE

L it
g o

‘i’ha[qb’&c’lgj :‘uﬂk

A O T DT R R

"
2

i
¢
&

kw7

?\'.T:E-\.}“".‘lvit?r:’:"}«-



Page 34
Application No:- LBE/09/0037

LY A .
£

Development Control

1 4 H r r E b A " 1 ] [E} Rl

ENFIELD

. Soale - 101254
Council

Tirmg oof plaf: 1534 Date ot plot; 05012010

S1CrE Copylighl Lengor Boralgh ol Ertci LASEGHE A0




Page 35

Application Number, 1 BE/DSDG3IT Ward: Haselbury
Date of Registration: 241h Movember 2009

Contact: Nigel Catherall 3833

Logation: CHURCH STREET RECREATION GROUND, GREAT CAMBRIDGE ROAD,
LONDON, NG 8HP

Proposal: Installation of a 5.28m high basket swing to new play ares.

Applicant Name & Address:

M Mathew Havil, London Boraugh of Enfietd
Carterhalch Depol

7 Welling Drive

Enfield

Middtesex

ENT

Agent Name & Address:

Recommendation: In accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning
Regulalions 1982, planning permission be desmed to be GRANTED subject to the following

conditions.
1. CB1A Time Limited Permission

Site and Surroundings

The applicalion site fs a large recreation ground in Edmonton bounded by the Greal Cambridge
Road to the west, Haselbury Road to (he east, the rear of resideniiat properties on Church Street
and Haselbury Road io the north, and to the south by Latymer School and the rear of residential
properties on Latymer Vay, The recreation ground includes a play area siled towards Haselbury
Foad.

Proposal

Permission is sought for the installation of a basket swing as part of a new play area to be sited
adjacent to the existing play area. The structure would have a maximum hetght of 5.29m and
woukd be supported by a three-pronged frame wilh a base diameter of 7. 55m An extended safety
area would have a diameler of 10.52m and a total ground coverage of 87m?,

Relevant Planning Decisions

Mone.

Consultations

Public

Consultation letters were sent to 50 surmounding properties. No replies were received.

Externad; Mone.



Page 36

fnternal MNaone

Relevant Palicy

London Flan

488 Respect Local Context and Communities

303 Children ang Young Peoples Play

UDOP Policy

(G0 Appropriate regard 1o surroundings

fhishaz Improve environmert, quality of life and visual amenity

fGO3 High standard of functional and aeslhstic design

{INCS51 Support a full range of facilities and services appropriate to the needs of the
Borough

(ICS2 Ligise with Service Authorities regarding the siling and design of developmen

Other Material Considerations

Mone
Analysis

Principle

in principle, the addition of a basket swing adjacent to an existing play area within the recreation
ground would be acceptable, though consideration must be given to the visuat impact of the
basket swing, and {he impact on the amanities of properties in the immediate surrounding area.

impact on Character of Surfounding Area

The proposed basket swing would be sited immedialely adjacent to an exisling play area and as
such is considered to be in an appropriale focation and compatible with the existing facilities. it
would not detract from the established character of appearance of the open space.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The siting of the proposed swing would be approximately 20m from Haselbury Road and 25m
from the rear of the residential properies on Church Street and Haselbury Road. Conseguently,
the impact on amenities enjoyed by the residents of the surrcunding properties will not be
affected and the proposal is (herefore considered acceptable,

Conclusion

In the light of the above, the proposat is considered acceptable for the following reasan:

The proposed basket swing does nat detract from the character and amenities of (he surrounding
area or lhe amenities of neighbouring residential propetties, in keeping with Policies (1)C81,
(NC32, (hiEDY, (NGB2, and (IMGD3 of the Unitary Development Plan.



Page 37

SERUE A2|C UaFmMi B0 SHIEUS 15095 B SR FEFA |0 ATE00 GudEas uEnond 5380 g
sasyrub gE1 AG FERUNDNNE G B papa SLLERN CUIRLEIE] B0 JO 3D DESGI,Y

m.. ¥ x..@ E ..........: - @

e Sl - TE T 1T T S
Tae 0T B Sugsi

sassd o o
- TR pOpUNOLING SE0ME Aed L

L BaMNEG SRS 4085
o T ...rr.r

Bl ~
g

L sy o edoa Suggixo giinaag) stau

i  Surgwn Guoe(eq Jaquun Ja Insen
Supunean giiie 1) ug

ARMAMET F3N20
m_._”._.mmr,.._.wmtml.m P
Juu B|a0 1801 A EPURDUNG EORLRE . . md@_u__un__.u_..
sgra 2k, o 15 Suans wWnEapsec abie : : : WLl
teacadde Suibded o prafqns B2 A Sty ¢ Bu,S § SIEpn0g ; IIEUNG A Al prarom el yihy us)

[esodoid Apuer sty 5) Burms JUmiD ag§ 310

v

Baly A4 12UCRIPDY Re3odnug
aseds B0BRN 125811 Youny D

Tranu g A pajeasuin {_
Buipes paucgstday Lupas 122puag —e-d  seagpes funsees _|....E.f..wnmq a1



Page 38

Application No:- TP/09/0969

el

-
T
Ty
Vi

ENFIELD’

Councif

2 Coal cadiplt Longon Sarbeyglt ol Talield LAJRGIRI.ZI0S

Development Contro!

1

] 1

Septe - F1250
Tirme gl plot 12:04

Daie of piot: CRASEMD




Page 39

Application Number. TP/Q8/0968 Ward: Southgate
Date of Registration: 14th July 2008

Contact. Robert Lancaster 4019
Location: 3118, CHASE ROAD, PICKARD CLOSE, LONDON, Nid4 685

Proposal: Redevelopment of site by the erection of a 2-storey detached nursery building (class
D) with cutdoor play area and associated parking.

Anplicant Name & Address:

Active leamning
cfo Agent

Agent Name & Address;

Indige Flanning Lid
Swan Court
Worple Foad
London

SIS 4)5

Note for Members

Al the maating of the Planning Committes on 3Hh November 2004, it was agreed to defer
consideration of this applicafion to enable further assessment of the traffic and highway
implications arising from the proposal. in paricular, concerns were raised over the potential effect
of traffic generated by the proposed use on Pickard Close. Additional comments have therefore
keen prepared and this addiional note reports on this additional assessment.

The proposal was inilially considerad in the light of information submitted in support of the
application plus background information coltated by the Council. This LBE information is set down
in lables 1 — 3 below,

Table 1- Existing traffic movements in Fickard Close,

’ Time Arrivals Departures

08.00-09.00 | 54 32

Table 2 - Movements associated with children drop offfpick up for the nearby primary

school
Arrivals Deparﬁul;é;
Time LBE Applicanl ; EBE Applicant
08.00-09.00 | 17 13 £ 10 8

Table 3 - Southbound queuesidelays along Chase Road from junction with Yinchmaore Hill Road
{L.BE}



Page 40

Queuesidelays along Chase Road |
Time | Mumber of vehicles |
7.30 | no queus
745 | ne queus
.00 |5

g15 | 14

8.30 | nc gueue
§.45 | no quele

9.00 | 28
9.15 |21 .
0.30 | 5

On the basis of the information submitted with the application, it could be concluded  that if trip
generation from the "TRAVL' database (ie. a London source of survay

information) example, o from the applicant's existing nursery at West Hampstead (WH), was
replicated at Pickard Close, then very few car borne trips waould be generated and the proposal
would give rise to less overgll traffic than the existing gymnasium use of the site.

However the very low traffic generation cases cited did not seem to reflect the situation of other
nurseries in the Borough, and in response to soncerns raised at previous Committes maetings,
additional analysis has been undertaken with particular focus on a similar example within the
Borough Of the many nurseites within the Borough, there are only a limited number i similar
circumstances i.e. in terms of size, situated within a CPZ and having equivalent PTAL (public
transport accessibility) rating. Nevertheless a good match was found, also in Southgate, and

the car borne diop-off position was surveyed.

The results of this survey compared with the position predicted by the applicant, are set out
in Table 4 below. The existing Southgate nursery survey atso confirmed a higher level of car
based rips as a proportion of overall trips [ as shown in Table §), although the situation does

fluctuate.

Table 4 - Car borne drop-off

. Avrivals |
Time TRAVLY | WH* | N14*
i 08.00-09.00 & 3 11 |
17.00-18.00 7 7 | 105 |

* TRAVL, West Hampstead — applicant's information, N14 example surveyed by LBE {2 day
average)

Table 5 - Modal split for existing N14 Site

Mode of Transpart % of trips )
Tuesday Wednesday

Private vehicle 51%. 43%

Otker (walking, public transport, 49% 57%

atc)




Page 41

This information suggests that there will be a higher levet fraffic generation which will then be
added to the existing drop-offs / pick ups in Pickard Close associated with the nearby 5t
Andrew's Schoot notwithstanding the traffic associated with the neighbouring commerciad
premises in Pickard Close and the movements in and out of the housing estate.

A3 there will be limited drop off facilities proposed within the curtilage of the premises, some
parants may choose ta stop in the car park to take children into the nursery and this could give
fise to conflicts, This possible danger has been cited by one of the neighbouring occupiers
fariliar with the current daily operation of the overall site and was a major congern with the
earlier nursery application and lorming one of the reasons for refusal. Although the drop-
offipedestrian access arrangemeants have been improved within the curreni application, the
additional traffic generation now identified brings into question whether adeguate drop-off
arrangements are being provided.

Concern was also raised by more than one of the naighbouring premises that the overall parking
availability for the estate is insufficient and that many conflicts/double parking regularly cocur.
This scheme will remove 9 spaces (largely to create a play space). The Councitis not party to
who has rights to use (hese spaces nor is it able to re-allocate thetr use.

Conclusion

in response to the additional assessmeant underlaken, there are several key issues

1The adequacy of dedicated parking/drop-off arrangements to cater for the level of traffic that
may be generated, with the potential for this to lead to vehicle/pedestrian  conflict, and
congeastion/obstruction/parking pressure, both within a. the site, and

b, within Pickard Close,

2Additional traffic generation off Chase Road at a location where southbound queuing
vehicies can extend past Pickard Close. On occasion cars turning right from Pickard Close
and waiting to join the southbound traffic may block northbound traftic in Chase Read, which can
ihen extend back as far as Southgate Circus, causing more delays,

It should also not be overlooked that traffic conditions witl vary on a daily basis and hence
individual traffic surveys may therefore be inconsistent. (Hence an objector's own traffic survey
showed a different picture of both lrips to and from the site and gueue lengths along Ghase Road.
Weather conditions may affect travel choices, with poor weather generally encouraging greater

levels of car use).

Reviewing the operation of a local equivatent nursery site suggests that if this situation is
repeated at Pickard Close then the car trip generation will be higher than considered previously,
This may give rise to additionat conflicts and further compound the problem of Pickard Close
being used for drop-offipick-up from the nearby primary school, as well as within the privete car

park.

If Members are minded to accept the recommendation, a condition requiring the introduction of ‘at
any time' waiting restrictions in Pickard Close would appear appropriate to deter parents from the
proposed nursery and existing school parking on the highway. Nevertheless, it wilt still be the
same offence that is currently occurring by cars parking on the single yeliow lines. Parking
enforcement on smalt cul-de-sacs at peak times is generally not a priotily, and the road is
not under Council CCTY surveillance, Cantrolling any conflicts within the private site car park
could nof be undertaken by the Council or realistically enforced by any planning condition and
mconsiderate shor term parking/stopping is always difficudt to prevent.



Page 42

A condilion for a scharme managing the rght-tums from Chase Road would be assisted with a8
dedicated lane right-turn lane in but there is no real solution to addressing exiling Fickard Close
right, into on the northbound lane, nor to address the wider traffic generation concern.

Additional obiection response

Since the 30th November Cormmittee an additional objection has been received from the occupier
of fremises al 317 Chase Road. The above traffic and transportation assessment has addressed
the traffic refated matters raised in this objection. The points below address the non-traffic related

maliars:

-unsafe pedestrian movement for adults and chifdren {pedestrian access is addressed i the main
body of the report)

- the safety of children,

No.311 Chase Road was not consulted, (Ouwr records show that a consultation fetler was sent to
this address. Motwithstanding this, Ms Maier has been aware of the application for a considerable
time and is not considered to be prejudiced by not receiving a consultation letter.

~guesticons the nead! dermand for a nuesary in this area.

-& nursery i not appropriate among industrialfcommerciat units.

Recommendation: That planning permission be GRANTED subjec! to the following conditions.

1. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until such lime as a dropped
kerb from the southern footway of Pickard Cioge, new road alignment markings for a right
turn restriction into Pickard Close off Chase Road and new keep clear road markings
along the western section/turning head' area of Pickard Close have been instated unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed pedestrian access can be safely accessed by
disabled users and those with buggies as well as ensuring the free flow of traffic and
highway safety.

2. The development shall be implemented and thareafter retained for af least five years in
accordance with the subimitted travel plan accompanying the application,

Reason: In the interests of sustainakbility and to ensure that traffic generated from the site
ig minirised

3. Motwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order
1987, as amended, the premises shall be used solely for as a children's day nursery and
créche up to a maxmum of 88 children and shall not be used for any other purpose within
Zass D1 of the Order or for any other purpose whalsoever,

Reason: To prevent the establishment of an alternalive D1 use detrimental to amenities of
hearby residential occupiers and/or the free flow or safety of traffic on the adjoining
highways.

4. That the outdoor play areas in connection with the use of the premises as a children's
mirsary be in accordance with the submitted Play Ares Management Plan sent via emait
on 20/08/2008 and the cutdoar play areas be used solely between the hours of:

- 08.00 to 10.00 hours for a masximum of 20 children
- 10,00 to 12.00 hours for a maxirmum of 30 children
- 12,00 to 12,30 hours for a maximuin of 20 children
- 13,30 to 14.00 howrs for a maxirmum of 20 children



Page 43

- 14,00 1o 16.00 hours for 2 maximum of 30 childran
< 16,00 to 17,30 hours for a maximum of 20 chiédran

and at no other time unfess otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authorily,

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does niot unduly prejudice the
amenities of nearby cammearcial and residential ccocupiers.

5. Prior to the commencerment of any davelopment a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) wiltten in accordance with London's Best Praclice guidance
shall be formally submitted to and approved in wiiting by the Local Planning Authority. The
{ CEMP} will address the following issues:

{1} Noise

(i} Control of sie drainage and run off

{iii} Storage and remaval of excavation/ demetition matertat

{iviThe siting of work compounds together with loading and unloading
{v) Contractors parking

{vi) Vwheel washing facilities and methodology

fviil) Construclion traffic routing

fwiil) Contrel of dust and air quality during demolition and construction
fwiiif) Hours of work

The CEMF shall nominate a Construction Manager to oversee the management of these
issues and the CEMP shail detail mechanisms for addressing complaints, monitering,
public Bafson, prior natification works, The CEMP shall be adhered to at ali times and
regular rnonitoring and auvditing performance shalt be carried out in accordance with &
schedule to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason : To avaid nuisance or other environmental effects during demalition or
construction and operational phases of the development,

CO7 Delails of Malerials

C0g Details of Hard Surfacing

C10 Details of Levels

The gite shall be enclosed by acoustic fencing in accordance with details to be submilfed

to and approved in writing by the Locat Plarning Authority. The means of enclosure shall
be erected in accordance with the approved delail before (he develepment is occupied.

R oe

Reason: To ensure satisfactory appearance and safeguard the privacy, amenity and
safety of adjoining occupiers and the public and in the interests of highway safety.

10. C16 Private Vehicles Only - Parking Argas

11. C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities
12, C20 Details of Fume Extraction

13. C25 Mo additional Fenesiration

t4. C2G Restriction of Use of Exension Roofs

15. C37 Restricted Hours - Deliveries

15, 38 Restricted Houwrs - Opening

17. 058 Cycle parking spaces

18, C&1A Time Limited Permission

Site and Surrcundings



Page 44

The application site is within a Business Park accessed from Pickard Close, off Chase Road. The
site 5 in the soulh-west corner of the Business Park and currently containg a 2-storey buidding
occupied as a Gym and Tanning Centre,

The Business Park abuts the northern boundary of the Scuthgate Circus Conservation Araa.

Proposat

Fermission is sought for the demalition of the existing building and erection of a 2-storey
detached building for use as a Children’s Nursery with cutdoor play area and assoctated parking.

A maximum of 88 children, between 3 months and 5 years, on the roll is proposed, with 24 fult-
time membars of staff. A total of 3 parking spaces are shown for this proposed use.

History

TRI0B/1B08: Construction of first and second fleor to existing building was approved subject to
condifions in September 2006

TRIOGM 80BN ART: Canstruction of first and second floor to existing building {revised scheme] o
also now incorporate a change in fenestration paliern and entrance doors on the side and front

elevation was approved subject to conditions in August 2007,

TPRIDS/0410: Redavelopment of site to provide a 2-storey detached nursery building with outdoor
play area and associated parking was refused planning permission inn May 2009,

Relevant Policies

London Plan
acC23 Farking in Town Cenlres
3424 Meeting Floor Targets

Unitary Devalopment Plan

(G0 Regard to Surroundings / integraled into Local Community
fHGo2 Guality of Life and Visuat Amenity

(WS Appropriate Incation

(INGE3 Character ! Design

{INGEDe Tratfic Generation

{INGOE Site Access and Servicing

{INHE Privacy and Owverlooking

(IS Amenity Space

c Preserve and Enhance matlers of Archaeological, Architectural or Mistoric Interest
fHC30 Development infor adjacent to a Conservation Area

(HED Suitable planning for disabled people

(INT Accessibility

(HYF13 Access onto Public Highway

(S Communily Services

(K254 Day Nurseries

Other Material Consideration

PP31 Delivarirg Sustainable Communities



Page 45

FFE4 Industrial and Commercial Development and Smal Firms
FPG13 Transport

Consultation
Putdic

Consultation lstters were sent ta 82 neighbouring properties. In addition, notice was displayed at
the site. Replies were received from 6 neighbouring residents which raised all or some of the
following points:

- ncreased traffic resulting in congestion
- impeded access for other busingsses in the Estate

- Inereased parking pressure
- Playground adjacent to traffic and parking area would be detrimentat to children's health

- Loss of light to upper tfloors of 311A Chase Side
- Proposed fiat roof will be access route for burglars
- Installation of CCTV and mare police patrols should be encouraged
- Goopd use of vacant building
- QOverlooking to residential properties to the west
Possible sound paollulion

Incampatible with existing use of the area
Parking survey carried out during surmmer holiday, did not take account of vehicie

movements associated with nearby school,

Pedestrian salety
Internal
Transportation raises no objections to the proposal subject to 5106 agreement and conditions.
Enviranmental Health raises no objection subject to conditions.

Analysis

Frinciple of Use

& day nursery {Class D1) would in principte be supperted as it meels a community need in an
area that is not immediately adjacent to residential properties but is tocated near public transport
links (e.g. Southgate Tube Station) with onward connactions to Central London. However due
consideration must be given {o the intensity of use and the associated effect on the character and
appearance of the area, the amenilies of nearby residential and business uses, the impact an
aceess to, and parking within, the Business Estate and a suitable quality of provision for users of

the nursery.

Character and Appearance

The design of buildings within the Business Estate is an ecleclic mix, with some two-storey
buildings with dormers in the roof stope and a madem-style 3-storey building with a signficant
amount of glazing. The proposed building is 2-storey with & mono pitch roof, simitar in
appearance lo the existing structure. Given the existing character of the Estate, the proposal is
considered to have an acceptable presence and would not detract from the character and
appearance of the locality

Relationship to Meighbouring Properties




Page 46

The proposad Building would occupy a similar footprind to the existing structure but would be 1.5m
higher. As a result, the building would be 24m away from rear walls of Nos, 2-6 Pickard Close,
approximately 24m away at first floor level from the rear walls of Nos. 18-22 Pickard Close and
22m away from the rear walls of Nos 26-40 Chase Side. Given these relationships the proposal is
considerad not to give rise (o any additional loss of light, or outlook associated with the presence
of the existing building sufficient to warrant refusat of the application.

In addition, due to the distances between the proposed building and nearby residential properties,
the absence of windows in the first floor flank wall facing Nos. 2-6 Pickard Close, as well as the
nature of use of the first floor accommodation with windows facing No 18-22 Pickard Close and
the hours of use of nursery (Monday to Friday 7.30am to 6.30pm) means that there would not be
any unacceptable level of overlooking and associated loss of privacy o nearby residential
occupiers. A condition requiring obscure glazing couid also be imposed 1o address any
overlooking issues.

The issue of noise and its impact oh the amenities of neighbouring residents formed a reason for
refusal on the previous application. it stated that;

The proposed intensity of use is such that the vehicular and pedestrian comings and goings as
well as the use of building, in particular the outdoor play areas, would result in undue tevels of
noise and disturbance detrimental to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers. This is contrary 10
Policies (1GD1, (HGD2 and (INGD1, {1ICS4 and {INGOE of the Enfield Unitary Developrment
Flan.

In support of this propesal, a Noise Assessinent has been submilted. This concludes

that the noise and disiurbance arising from the propoesat {e.g. the vehicular and pedestrian
coming and goings as well from the use of the building, in particular the outdoor play areas}
would not be detrimental to the amenities of nearby residents through undue ievels of noise and
disturbance, in particular those at MNos.2-22 Pickard Close. Environmental Heaith raise no
ohjections having reviewed this assessment and in the fight of this together with the conclusion of
{he noise assessment subject to the imposition of conditions limiting the numbers of hours of the
play ares as well as details of an acoustic fence enclosing the play area, the proposed
relationship to neighbouring properties is considered acceplable thereby addressing the previous

raason for refusal,

Traffic. Farking and Access

Traffic Generation
A remson for refusal on the pervious application stated:

The proposed change of use does not make appropriate provision for the expected additional car
parking demand, and the hours of use in which the increase in vehicle movements associated
with the dropping off and collection of children can be expected to prejudice the ability of the
existing car park to serve the office units by reducing space available for service and delivery
vehicles as well as limiting manoeuvring space for vehicles currently using the car park, contrary
to Policies (INGDS, {HGDS, (IICS4 of the Unitary Development Plan, Government advice
corained in PPG 13 and The London Plan policy 3C.23.

This amended scheme now provides additionat on-site parking and drop-off areas and a sufficient
turning area for refuse vehicles.



Page 47

The additional car parking demand and activity is mainly associaled with the drop-off and pick up
of children. The transport assessment notes that typically 10% of the children arrive between 7.30
and 8.00 am and the vast majority arrive on staggered basis between 8.00 and 9.30am.
According to travel estimates this is further defined as & arrivats in the A peak. Should parents
remain on site for 15 minutes, 4 drop-off bays are more than adeguate. Furthermaore, it is
suggested that a significant proportion of parents and chitdren travel to the site on foot rather than
by car, supported by the sites proximity {o public franspont and local services avaitable from the
adioining town centre which would encourage linked trips. A condition is also recommended {o
secure the developmant and implementation a travel plan

it should also be noted that the transport assessment shows that traffic flows over 3 24-hour
period are approximately half that of the existing use aithough of course, it is acknowledged the
proposed use wilt have different peaks of activity. With regard to the existing users of the
Business Park therefore, there is over 6§ metres betweaen the nursery parking bays and those
servicing the office development meaning that there is sufficient turning and manoeuvring space.
Taking the averall projectad patterns of activily, iU is considered therefore that the proposed
nusery should nol unduly prejudice the existing business.

Further o the October's Committee's decision to defer the application, Transportation carried out
a further Traffic Survey and Assessment of he Transpor Statement and made the following

observations and conclusions:

The Transport Statement submitied by the applicant based the traffic flow calculations for the
existing use (former gyrm) on TRAVL database whilst the predicated traffic generation for {he
proposed nursery was calculated both from: TRAVL database and also the West Hampstead

Survey on an existing premises.

EXISTING USE:
Table 1 TRAVE exisling gym {consented] use”
Time Arrivals Cepartures
08.00-08.00 2 3
17.00-18.00 ! 4 4 :
Daily T N 45

L. SR Yl ST

*No additional infarmalion {.e. site description, parking facilities, etc) about the sites extracted
fram the TRAVL database was attached with the Transport Statement which makes it difficult to
determing their robustness

FROPOSED USE;

Table 2 TRAVL® f West Hampstead Survey (WHS) ™ proposed nirgery

Arrivals Departures _3

Time TRAVEL WHS TRAVL | WHS
$58.00-05.00 G 3 7 3
17.00-18.00 | 7 7 8 7
Psteffdaly | - | 4 : 4

[ total daily 25 31 LS B

*Mp additional information (i.e. site description, parking facilitieg, etc) about the sites extracted
from the TRAVL database was attached with the Transpor Statement which makes it difficult to
detarening their robestness



Page 48

**Wast Hampstead Mursery's site characteristics were not presented in more detail in the
Transport Stalernent

The resulls presented above show that the proposed nuwsery will generate higher peak hour
movements than the existing site with 13 movements dwing the morning peak hour and 15
movements during lhe evening peak time. However, over the course of the whole day, the
scharne wilf result in fewer movements than the existing scheme.

Furthermore, based on the results of WHS {(Wes! Hampslead Survey), stalf movements on a
daily basis seem low [only 4} and the WHS fails to establish the time that they would occur during
the day which might have a furdher impact on the traffic generated during the peak times. The
Transport Statement also claims that 15% off staff are likely to travel to the site by private vehicle.
However the applicant agrees to mitigate the issue by contrelling the number of staff who drive to
work as part of their conditions of employmant, to ensure that the 3 spaces provided is not
exceeded.

Langdon SBorough of Enfiedd Classified Traffic Survey

London Borough of Enfield carsied out a classified Traffic Survey on the 8" of Oclober between
0730 and $9.30 am in 15 minutes intervals at the junction of Chase Road! Pickard Close fo
determine the traffic volumes generated by the existing site. The results attached in Table 3
reveal that during the morning peak time 08.00-08.00 AWM there were in total 85 movements fo
Pickargd Close {of which 54 were ariivals and 32 departures}) which accounts for 1 vehicle
movement every 42 seconds,

EXISTING SITUATION:

Table 3 Londen Borough of Enfield Traffic Survey

Time Arrivals Departures

07.30-0745 |6 | 2

07 45-08.00 ] 1 i

08.00-08.15 ] 5

08, 15-08.30 ] 5

(8.30-058.45 18 Y

08.45-08.00 22 13

09.00-09.15 12 12
09.15:08.30 |4 3

total i 78 50

Applicant's Parking Accumulation Survey (APAS}

In support of the application, the applicant carried out & Parking Accumulation Survey on the 28
of Septembear (Manday). The survey included the installation of 3 cameras to record all vehicle
activity entering and exiting the site as well of any double parking that occurred.

Table 4 London Borough of Enfisfd Traffic Survey [ applicant's parking accumulation sunsey
[APAGY

Arrivals Departures
Time LBE 1 APAS LBE APAS
08,00-09.00 | 54 43 32 11
17.00-18.00 | unknown i unknown 16




Page 49

The resulls preseniad above in Table 4 show a major difference in departures during the AM
peak hour hetween both surveys, Mowever taking the worst case scenario, it is assumed that the
axisting site generates 86 vehicle moverments in the AM peak time and 17 vehicle movements in

the Pht peak time.
PROPOSED COMBINED WITH EXISTING

Table 5 Proposed combingd with existing based on LBE survey

_______________ Arrivals | Departures |
Time TRAVL | WHS | TRAVL | WHS i
08.00-08.00 AM 50 57 30 35
| 17.00-18.00 PM | unknown | unknown | unknown | unknown

Table B Proposed combined with existing based on AFAS survey

Arrivals Departures
Time TRAVL | WHS | TRavL WHS
08.00-09.00 AM 49 | 44 18 14 |
17.00-18.00 PM 10 i 10 24 23 |

Based on the results presented in Tables (5 and 6) above it is concluded that at the worst case
scenanio the proposed site together with the existing situation is predicted o generate 99 vehicle
movements in the AM peak hour {iable 5) and 34 vehicle movements in the P peak hour {Table

g).

Crop-offiPick-up Bays (PatentsiCarers)

The additional car parking demand and activity is mainly associated with the drop-off and pick up
of chiidren. The Transport Statement based on the information provided from the West
Hampstead Survey notes that the majority of children (83%) whose parents use car {24%) are
dropped off at nursery befween 07.20 and 10.00 howrs and the vast majoridy (50%) arrive
between 05.00 and 10.00. Should parents remain on site for 15 minutes, 4 drop-off bays are
mare than adequate. Furthermore, it is suggested that 2 significant proportion of parents and
children travel to the site on foot ralher than by car, suppoited by the sites proximity to public
transport and local services available from the adjoining town centre which would encourage
linked trips. A sondition is also recommended to secure the development and implementation a

travel plan.

Table 8 Movements associated with children drop afffpick un to a nearky school

Arrivals Cepartures
Time LBE APAS LEE AFAS
_08.00-69.00 7 13 ' 10 B
i 17.00-16.00 unknown 1 Unknown 1

31.7% off all arrivals between 0B.00-08.00 are associated with the school drop off,

it was observed that out of all these movements 13 vehicles that arrived at Pickard Close
betwesn 08.30-08.30 AM were most likely associated wilh a drop off school children for the
nearby St Andrew's Southgate Primary Schogl,



Page 50

The traffic survey carried cul by the LBE also revealed a substantial size of the queuesidelays
along Chase Road between 9.00 and 9.15 AM. The lengths of the queues were measured on the
soulhbound fane towards the Soulhgate Roundabout & reached as far as 14 metres north

Fickard Close {the axisting ‘traffic island").

Table & Oueussidelays along Chase Road

Time | Mumber of vehicles
7.30 | no gueue
7.45 | no queue
8005
81514
8.30 | no gueue
_8.45 | no gueue
900 |28
G151 21
83005

in conclusion, having regard to road capacity and the wider on street situation, this level of traffic
movement is felt unlikely to give rise to condilions prejudicial to the free flow and safely of traffic
on the adjoining highway.

Combined
Existing proposed Increase
Time movements movements {veh)
08.00-08.00 AM 85 88 13 {15.1%)
17.00-18.60 P 17 34 ! 15{100 %)

This considered opinion is based on the imposition of a Gramgian condition 1o address a number
ot off-site requirements. An 81068 agresment is also required {o provide: new road alignment
markings for a right turn lane/restrictions into Pickard Close off Chase Road, and, new ‘keep
clear road markings along western sectionftarning head” area of Pickard Close to deter vehiclas

from using it as a pick up/drop off point at any time,

Staff Parking

The appfication notes that staff parking be provided at a rate of 15% in accordance with
established methodology within the transport assessment. However, only 3 staff spaces have
been pravided. At a rate or 15%, 24 staff would require 4 spaces (3.8). Although this level of
provision represents a deficiency, the sile is cenlrally focaled with very good access to a range of
public transport and is close fo local services in Southgate Town Centre. This would encourage
staff to use alternative modes of transpont. This approach wolld be reinforced by the location of
the premizes within the Southgate CPZ which would prevent parking on the surrounding streets.
Consequently, it is considered that a shortage of 1 space is not considered sufficient grounds far
refusal. Il should be noted that 1 disabled parking space is provided adjacent 1o the entrance.

Pedestizan Movement

& reason for refusal on the pravious application stated;



Page 51

The proposed change of use does not make appropriate provision for safe pedestrian access to
the site and the increase in vehicle movements associated with the change of use would
compromise the safety of pedestrians who as a8 result of there Being no segregated pedestrian
access would nead o use the car park as a meane of access to lhe nursery. This is conlrary to
Policies (I)GD8 and {11 T13 af the Unitary Development Plan and The London Plan Policy 34.24
of The London Plan

The new application has overcome this reason for refusal by provision of a dedicated and marked
out pedestrian access route, hounded by boltards. This wilt ensure a segregated pedestrian
walkway is available to the rear of parking spaces abating concerns raised in the previous
application regarding pedestrian safety and conflicts with vehicular movements in the car park.
Thisg is considered sufficient to address this reason for refusal.

Dropped kerbs will be required from the {ootpath on Pickard Close o the sie for buggies and the
disabled to ensura the retention of pedestrian desire lings. A condiion to this effectis

recormmeanded

Cycle Parking

There is no accepled cycle parking standards for nurseries. With reference to TiL's Cycle Parking
Standards for educational establishments, cycle parking should be provided at a rate of 1710 staff
or students. However, as the rajority of children attending the school are too young o cycle this
standard has been relaxed and the 5 spaces are considered appropriale. Furthermore, the Sno
cycle spaces are suitably located and a condition will ensure that facilities are both secure and
undercover.

Fefuse

Refuse is suitably located close to the site entrance and the layout is adequate to facilitate the
movemeni of refuse vehicles

Canclusion

Given the above appraisal the propesal is recommended for approvat for the following reasons:
1. The proposal due to its size and siting does not significantly affect the amenities of adjolning ar
nearby residential properies having regard to Paoliey (NGO, (13GD2 and {(NG03 of the Unitary
Development Flan.

2.The proposed buitding due to its design, does not detract from the character and appearance of
the surroending arsa having regard to Policies {1GD, ()GD2 and ({12503 of the Undary

Developmenl Plan,

3.The proposal provides adequate parking and servicing, as well as pedestrian paths, thus would
net give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free Nlow and safety of traffic and pedestrians on the
adjeining highways having regard to Policies (11713, (#1506 and (HGDE of the Unitary
Developrment Plan and London Plan Policy 32 23,

4 The sustainability measuras identified in accompanying Design and Access Statement are
considered to be sufficient to meet the requirements of Interim Policy SDC1 of the UDP, theretore
achieving a suitabla level of sustainable design and construction,



Page 52

GG - FHIEL

P J1VOH1NOS ‘TYLNID HOIMSNNHE - AHISHNN

- R B0 Grinoe T

S

R et
——

1
¥ N RN et T i
- P i R I

L PP Fea e e ..“

) 3¢ ‘
o ¢

RIS T =3 i
.

WA DTSkl Srkirasti ) m ; LI PEUE N
Xl >

- ——d -

el H0HT HOO

.
LA R ”.“ .
H [OOSR TR L)
e i
m .m_ m_ ........ .
= RN ;
i M e R0
Toemypng G ETEE TR R e e . . e i
2
) i
;
o j
!
i ) [ -
=] :
fa I
i
= :
: R e I Tr e S ) ) I e R
& CIERTIEeE 2 . —— : : |
. % A0 3 S . ]
: I ForStal Y L0 LT PRI LIS T T AL m_ﬁaiw| i SEELL LU TR Sl
1 : . e - Il
Danmo s L T Sroooab N T A i
LAB QUG u_rc_:..._,%ﬁc HI : R ;

PR PR P
YRR

’ [ ERE P

g i

.-1[._,. - H '

= : i

bl .

= :

= . -—- —_——— . —— - e A — . .

- M - R ER LT A I L M T




Page 53 o Ca

e
i) TN S
: :
2
Z ] [ ]
- Briefing Not 1
Active Learning Nursery, Sauthgate Play Area Management
Plan . it 0
‘l s :
el E| i tncligra Plannlng Limlted
Background &ﬁw ) e
LHM---M-- ’ Suwar Co
Active Learsing is a responsible childcare provider, with & humber of nurseries Horcha o
lecated throughout Londor: in similar residential locations to that prapesed i A 213
Southgate. T Q] A S
¥ (20 B3 S
The use of the play area is timestabled with a rotg syslem in operation in order o :'F*U“'iﬁ;:'é":':rﬁf‘
minirise the aumber of childran wsing the piay area at one time. The use of the PRI,
play arez s also weathar dependant and seseon dependant (unusable during
: dark winber marnings and afternoons); therefore annually the use predominantly
; takes place during the summer months of April — Seplember,
The nature of use of the Active Learning piay areas is not like the typizat school
play areas. A majority of the playlime is crganised and haavily supervised i.g.
chilldren have listen, lzarn and respend b instruction given by supervising
adultz, Therefore a majarity of the playtime is much quieter 1 that of any
i unplanned tire,
;
! Propusal
Whth the above in mind and censidening the concerns raisec by the Council,
Active Learning proposas the following in order to reassure both residentf Fhd {35 t AT
the Councif that na there will be ne undue gisturbance to residents during the SLU
use of the proposed play area: WAV,
+ A scoustic fence will be placed around the perimeter of the play - i
area’ }MD QJ‘-"“‘“L f“’“"‘cf"“@"s‘ /ﬂr
O, datbt: 2ol oy

+  Asthe use of the play area is timetabled and in a rota system, the
use can recarded In a log-baok on a daily basis (detailing .
activitigs, numbers of chifdren and type of activity etc) and made
readily available for Inspection by the Council; - -~ R oo

«  The use of the play area will follow the foflowing timetable:

¥.30arn ~ 8.00am Mo use of play area.
B.G0am - 10.00am Croanized & supervised use of the play area
1 oily, Nn e than 2 groups of 10 childrerl i

HEdDam — 12.00pm | Gigan: sed and supervised was of play area (as
por previous EHO comments). MNumber of
P children not to exceed 30,

12. ﬂl:lpm-12 20pm Crrganised & suparvisad use of the play area
only. Mo rmore Uan 2 groups of 10 children
gach_using the play area at any one time
J12.30-1.30pm Mo use of play area

1.30pm = 2.00pm Organisad & sepetvised Use of the play area
! cnly, Nomaore than 2 groups of 10 children
’ each using the play araa at any one tims.




Page 54 . _

2.00pm — .00z

3

D Qrganised and supervised use of play ares Jas

per previsus ERD gemments). Mumbar of
chifdren nettoenceedad |

4 D0gm — 5.30pm

Organised & supanised Use of the play ares
ontly, Mo mene than 2 groups of 10 ohifdren
gach using the play area al sy one time.

{5 50pm - 6.30pm

No use of play area. Nursery closes at §.3Upm. |

+  Staft will have to adhere ko slrict guidelines an the approprizle and
cangidarata use of the play araa i e. if 5 child is hurt or upset they
will be moved indoors immeadiataly; and

«  Activa Eearning will be happy o accept a condition on any
permission which restricts the use of the proposed play area
acearding to the terns set o in this note,

Paqe 2



Page 55
Application No:- TP/Q9/1176

e,

TEMFIELD TOWH

3 '

a

ENFIELD

Council

Soale - 121250
Time of plal: 15:45

SO ciprrining Lardsn Beveagh o Crteig LAGEEYED Z0%S

Development Contral

Dare af piat OS012014




Page 56

Application Number, TRI08/1176 Ward: Town
Date of Registration: 19th August 2009

Contact Sharon Davidson 3841
Location: Car Fark Site, Littie Park Gardens, Enfield, ENZ 682G

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide a part 2-storey, part single sterey detached building
for [ use {children's nursery or day centre for adults with learning difficuities).

Applicant Name & Address:

Mr Marios Miltiadous, Elizabeth Homes UK Lid
68, BOURNE HILL

LOMNDOMN

MNT34LY

Agoent Name & Address:

Feter Koumis, Vivendi Architects Ltd

Unit EAU, Bounds Green Industrial Estate
Eing Way

Leondon

M1 2D

Recommendation: That, subject to the completion of & 8108 Agreement securing the
amendments to the an-street parking contrals, the extension of the public feolway to adoptable
standards, the planting of a replacemenlt tree and the submission of a travel plan, ptanning
permission he GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. That development shalt not commence until details of all external finishing materials,
including windows, doors and rainwater goods, have been submitted to and appraved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shalt be completed in

accordance with the approved details prior to ocoupalion.
Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of this part of the Enfield Town

Consearvation Area,

2. That development shall not cormmence uniil detaited drawings to a scake of 1.20 or larger
of the proposed glazed intersection between the two buildings have bean submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
completed in accordance with the approved delails prior to occupation
Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of this pan of the Enfield Town
Conservation Area.

3. The paneis framing all windows shall be constructed in accordance with the delails shown
an drawing number OT01-00 unless otherwise agreed in wriling by the Local Planning

Adihorily,
Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of this par of the Enfield Town

Conservation Area.

C08 Details of Hard Surfacing
G110 Details of Levels

@b



Page 57

&, That the development shali not be occupied unti such time as the foolpath has been
constructed atong the eastern boundary of the site | as shown on drawing number PO2-
000 and is available for use by the pubhic.

Reasaon: In the interests of highway safety.

7. Thal development shall not commence until detailed drawings of the proposed acoustic
walls, including materials of construction, have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The wall shall be construcled in accordance with the
approved details prior to occupation of the development,

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the adjeining propertias.

8. G148 Detatls of Tree Proteclion

8. C23 Details of Archaeological Investigation

10, ©25 Ne additional Fanestration

11. C26 Restriction of Use of Extension Roofs

12, C33 Contaminated Land

13. C4A8 Reslricled Use

14, That if the premises are occupied as a children's nursery, no more than 75 children shalt
be cared for on the premises at ary ohe time and that if the premises are used as an adull
day centre, no more than 45 adults {(excluding staffi shall be on the premises at any one
time,
Reason Having regard to the amenities of the occupters of adjoining properties.

15. That if the premises are occupied ag a children's nursery the outdoor garden area shall be
used for a maximum of one hour in the morning and one howr in the afternoon, unless
otherwizse agread in writing by the Locat Planning Authority.

Reason; To safeguard the amenities of the ocsupiers of the adjoining properties.

16. That the premises shall only be open for business between the hours of 0700 Lo 1900
hours Monday to Saturdays only and not at ail on Sundays, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of lhe accupiers of adjoining properties.

17. That development shall not commence untit details of the siting and design of covered
cycle parking facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Flanning Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details
prior to sccupation of the preniises.

Reasan To comply with Unitary Development Plan policy,

18, C5Y Sustainability
19. CE1A Time Limited Permission

Site and Surroundings

The site comprises a small part of the Littie Park Gardens Pay & Display car park, formerly
owned by the Council, located wilhin the Enfield Town Conservation Area. The site is detached
from the main car park, separated from it by Chapel Street. it is bounded by single storey
detached residential properties to the north and west; that to the west has its rear wall directly
along the boundary with the application site. The site frontage to Litle Park Gardens has a raised
bed containing two trees, a sweet chestnut and a red oak. The site has the benafit of an existing
vehictar access from Chapel Street.

Proposal



Page 58

This application proposes the redevelopment of the site by the erection of a part two storey, pait
single storey building to be used as either a children's nursery or as & day centre for adults with
lzarning difficullies (D13

A8 a children’s nursery the premises would accommodated between 70 and 75 children with a
staffing ratio of 1:5. As an adults day centre the occupancy level would be 40-45 users at any
given time with a staffing ratio of 1:10.

The application makes no provision for off-street car parking. However, the applicant advises that
he would togk to sesure the tse of 3-4 parking hays within the existing Pay and Display car park
apposite the site. Provision is shown for & drop-offiloading facility to the Liltke Park Gardens
frantage

The raised landscaping bed to the Lillle Park Gardens frontage would be reduged in size resulting
in the loss of the red gak. 1t is proposed to retain the sweet chestnut tree.

Ralevant Flanning Decisions

LBE/0410001 — Permission granted for the erection of new single storey shopmobility wnit,
reconfiguration of existing car park and provision of 10 disabled persons car parking spaces
together with associated landscaping scheme.

Consultation
Public

Letters have been sent to the occupliers of 67 adjoining and nearby properties. in addition, lhe
applicalion has been advertised on site and i the |ocal press. As a rasult 14 letters of objection
have been received. The objections raised can be summarised as:

Design, scale and mass of the building would detract fiom the Conservation Area

the proposed uses are mappropriate within a residential area

the proposed building is too large

the trees and grass that exist an the site should be retained

existing householders subject to strict rules about the changes they can make to their
properies

s gither use will generate significant fevels of traffic and increase demand for car parking
+ implications for access and traffic movements in Chapel Street and to public car park
opposite, given narrowness of road, No romm for vehicles to turn, especially mini-

= & % & 4

buses

» implications for pedestrian safety as many people walk through Chapel Street as & cut
through

» proposed uses will generate significant notse detrimental to the amenities of adpoining
oCoupiers

« concern about the nature of adults using the day centre in a residential area with
minimal securily

«  position of proposed building with a fiat roof increases security risk to No.31, which
has rooflight in the recf facing the site

s treses should be retained

Further consultation has taken place following the receipt of revised plans and a further two
fetters of objection have been receivad, reiterating some of the peints outlined above and raising

the following additional issues:



Page 59

+ location of the garden area agdjoining Ne.31 Little Park Gardens would imake fife
intelerahle for the geccupants.

» The noise assassment submitted considers that the noise entering the property would
he & serious nuisanoe.

«  Noassessment made of the transmission of noise hrough the roof or walls and no
assessment made of noise arising from use of the site as an adulis day centre.

Enfield Town Conservation Area Group raised concerns in refation to the originally submitted
plans ahout the 'factory like' appearance of the building and in particilar the roof vents, and the
green wall which they considered gimmicky. They expressed particular concern about access and
servicing for the building, considering that if the building is fo be used as a children’s nursery,
then there is hittle scope for drop offfpick up in either Chapel Street or Little Park Gardens, the
patking of vehicles in Chapel Street would restrict the flow of vehicles into the car park, access to
garages in Holly Walk and access/egress from Chapet Street. They considered this problem
would he compounded with an adult day centre if mini buses to be used, with no space to furm
such vehicles. They afso considered that noise pollution from the use of the building needs Lo be

addressed.

Following the receipt of revised plans, the Group comment that they are pleased to see the
removal of roof vents and the amendments to the size of the windows. However, they still ars
concerned about the proposed zing roof and consider that the roof should be a genuine slate fo
match the other properties in Little Park Gardens. The Group are stifl concerned about the lack of
green space on the south and east elevations and consider that the chestnut tree will struggle to
sivive, even with the amandmaents to the entrance arrangements proposad.

The Group also guestion what measures are proposed 10 achieve the 20% energy saving
referred to in the application and are concerned to ensure that this does not result in the fitting of
equipment external {o the building and not shown on the plans.

External

Thames Water raises no objection to the application in terms of water and sewerage
infrastruciure.

Enfield Primary Care Trus! advises that the propesal will not cause undue hardship on the GP
practises in the area and as such hey raise no objections to the application.

English Heritage {Archaeology} advises that the site is located within an Area of Archaeoclogical
Significance due to the medieval settlement of Enfisld Town. The development proposals are now
of a significant size, wheraby nat only may archasclegical remains be encountered, but also that
they might retain contextual information. They consider that no further works needs to be
undertaken prior to determination of the planning application but that a condition shoutd be
imposed requiring the no development shall take pface until the applicant has secured the
implemeantation of a pregramme of archaeoclogical works.

Internal

The Health and Adult Social Care Team advises that there is concern regarding the opening of a
day service with the applicant's present proposal for supportad living as there may not a specific
need and sufficient demand within the Borough. However, there is a need to a day centre for
older people (50+) who have a learning disability. There are a number of older service users who
have indicated that (hey would prefer a more appropriate environment that acknowladges that
they now want calmer and more relaxed activiles in the day. The team object to the praposal until



Page 60

such time as they are in fudl agreement with appiicants propesals for service delivery and
eonfirrnation that they wilt be working in partnership with Enfield and Enfield clienis,

Traffic and Transporation advise that the development is unlikely to create more trips than the 26
space public car park it replaces and hence there would be no material impact on flows o this
streteh of Little Park Gardens. The site has a PTAL rating of 5 with good public transport access,
The {ack of on-site car parking is off-set by the sites proximity to the public car park opposite the
site. Tha applicant is able to apply for car park season tickets andlor permils for staff to use the
nearhy business bays, Lying within the Contralled Parking Zone {CPZ}, users of the site will not
have access to un-restricted on-street car parking. Day time restrictions currently apply past most
of the site, plus some residents parking bays. it is suggested that "any time” restrictions be
apphed to the bendfjunstion arcund the site to aid highway safety and this will nesd o be funded
vy the applicant and secured through a $106 Agreement.

Further safety improvements would be achizved if the eastern flank of the site had a footway
constructed, which is then adopted for public use. The applicant has agreed to this and these
works would be secured through a 5106 Agreement,

The proposed dropping-offipicking up faclity s best accommodated by creating a ‘loading bay'
alongside the entrance to the Little Park Gardens .This wilf avoid blue badge holders from
obstructing it and keep the carriageway clear. This can be addressed through minor changes to
the CPZ butwould have to be funded by tha applicant and secwred through a 5106 Agreement.

Environmental Health and Reguiation advise that the issue with a nursery will be the children
using the outside play area, if this is limited to a couple of times & day it should not be too
intrusive, although if does depend on numbers playing outside at any one time, In terms of the
adult centre, whilst the needs of the proposed users or what behavioural traits they will exhibit
are not known, it is considered that such users would be less noisy than small chiddren, and again
the use of the garden could be Hmited 1o a couple of times a day.

The Aboriculfurat Officer advises that the amendments to the entrance arrangements Lo the
building allowing for the retention of a larger bed around the sweet chestnut, should safeguard
the tree. The red oak, also sited with this raised landscape bed is shown far removal, He advises
that this iz a refatively poor specimen in terms of its cendition and appearance. The red oak
shows signs of stress in the form of die back in the crown and dead branches distributed within its
crown indicating impaired root function. The tree's appearance and mechanical structure is also
impaired as the free lacks a central leader | the main stem forking about 2m off the ground. In
addition. there is evidence of sfime flux eminating from the stemn, which suggests a bacterial
infection. In hig view the tree has low amenity value contitbuting litke to the visual guality of its
surroundings, and if retained will continue to decling in condition, a state which cannol be
overcome by remedial works.

Consarvation Advizory Group

The Group objectad to the development an grounds of excessive footprint, not enough green
areas, preservation of trees, size of windows and usage of the building.

Relevant Policy

London Plan

288 Town Centres

3417 Addressing the needs of London's diverse poputalion

3A.18 Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure and communily facilities
3C.1  Integrating transport and development



Page 61

3C.23 Parking strategy

3C 24 Parking in town centres

D Supporting town centres

443 Sustainable design and construction
481  Design principles for a compact city
4B 5  Craating an inclusive environment
4B8.8 Respect local context and communities
48 .12 Heritage Conservation

4B.15 Archasology

Unitary Drevelopment Plan

{111 Development in conservation areas lo preserve or enhance

{I1}C28 inappropriate use of areas of hard or soft landscaping within congervation areas

{INC30 Mew buildings in conservalion areas to replicate, reflect or complemant the
traditional characteristics of the area,

{03 To secure the rermoval of features which serve to detract from the character or
appearance of conservalion areas.

{38 To resist, in general, developments which entail the loss of trees of acknowledged
public amenity value.

(G0 Mew developmen! 1o be appropriately located

(102 New development to improve the environiment

ieiny Uses to be appropriately located

{INGD3 Drasign

{INGDE Traffic implications

(G0E Access and servicing

(T4 To reguire contriibutions from developers for highways works necessitated by
development proposals

(Y15 To improve, maimain and enhance foolways

(THE Pedestrian acoess

NE] Provision for cyclists

Local Development Framewnork

The Enfield Flan ~ Proposed Submission Stage Core Stralegy document was published for public
consultation on 14th December 2000, Following this stage of consultation, the Coungil will submit
the Core Strategy to the Secretary of State who will then appeint a Planning Inspectar to consider
whether the Strategy meets legal requirements and that it passes the tests of soundness. The
following policies from this document are of relevance to the consideration of this application:
Core Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the buill and open entvironment

Caore Policy 31 Built and landscape herttage

Core Folicy 42 Enfield Town

Core Policy 46 [nfrastructure Contributions

The Enfisld Town Area Action Flan 1ssies and Option April 2007

Other refevant policy

PPS1 Delivering sustamable development
PRPGE13 Transpart
PRG1E Flanning and the historic environment

Enfizld Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal



Page 62

Analysis

Principle

The site is located within Enfield Town Centie and as a conseguence is highly accessible. Whilst
Littie f2ark Gardens has a residential character, the area also contains a number of offices uses
within fermer residential properties, a large town centre car park and the site is in proximity to
Enfield Grammar and Enfietd County Secondary Schools. Having regard to the location of the site
within the Town Centre, the mix of uses in the immediate area and the sites accessibility, there is
no objection in principle 1o the development of the site for D1 purposes, either as & children’s
nursery or as a day centre for agults with kearning disabiiities.

Design and seale

The Enfield Town Conservation Area Character Appraigal nates that the existing car park detracts
from the core of the Little Park Gardens street setting. Accordingly, there is some benefit in
achieving a redevelopment of the site and the removat of the car park.

The site has two frontages, one to Little Park Gardens and one lo Chapel Street and therefora it
has been considered important in discussing development options for the site to ensure any new
buifding presents a frontage to hoth roads. This has resiited in a building designed as two solid
blocks, connected by & predominantly glazed inter-section. The main buildings would be of brick
conslruction and would be surmounted by a shallow pitched zinc roof, The glazed link is simple in
design with a ftat rocf. A single storey element extends the building towards the western
baundary, reducing the scale of the building in proximity to the bungalow adjnining. The single
storey element is treated with a green wall system to continue the line of adjoining boundary wall.

The design of the building has been through extensive pre-application discussion, including
consuitation with the Conservation Advisary Group, 1o get to the current footprint and design; a
variety of design opfions having been considered at pre-application stage and rulad out. The
design of the building has been further amended dwring the precessing of this application to seek
to address some of (he objections raised through public consultation, including the removal of the
roof vents and amendment to the proportions of the windows, The roof material has not bean
amended. The approach has been to try and achieve a contemporary building, whilst respecting
the scale and character of the local area, rather than a pastiche. Moreover, the vse of slate to the
roof was considered al pre-application stage. This increased the pitch to the roof and hence the
height and bulk of the roof element and was not considered acceptable and the reversion to zinc

was recommended.

Overall, the proposal is now considered acceptable in design terms. The development results in
the removatl of this surface car park thal detracts from the character and appearance of the area.
The scale of the proposed building respects the scale of the residential buildings in the locality, it
recreates a sense of enclosure and defines the corner. The elevation treatment and use of
materials generally reflects those found in the area. The result is & contemporary building,
designed to reflect is 'instititional/community’ function that it is considered wil complement the
scale and pattern of development and will enhance the character and appearance of this part of

the Consarvation Area.

impact on neighbouring properties

The two most immediately affected properties are No.10 Chapet Street and No, 31 Liltle Park
Gardens



Page 63

Mo 10 Chapel Street is a bungalow located to the nodh of the applicalicn site. There is a 3m high
brick wall forming the boundary with the application site. Given this and the posilion of the
proposed bailding in relation to this property, it is considered that the proposed development
would nat have any undue impact on the amenities of the cceupiers of this property in tenms of
fight or outicok, The 3 windows an the rear elevation of the proposed building at first floor level
are to be fixed and obscured to 1.6m above floor level and therefore the developmeant would not
give rise to issues of overloaking or doss of privacy for the cooupiers of this property.

M0, 31 Little Park Gardens is simifarty a bungalow located 1o the west of this site. The rear wali of
this property forms the common boundary with the applicalion site. There are no windows in the
rear wall. However, there are a series of rooflights in the roof of the property; 4 in the rear roof
pitch which runs parabel with the site and two in the roof piteh that runs at right angles to the site.
These provide a secondary source of light and ventilation to lving/dming rooms within Ne.31. The
proposed building is designed g0 that the single storey element is located in proximity o Mo.31,
thus providing an appropriate height relationship with the bungaiow and ensuring that there is no
undue less of light to the roof lighls. There ate no windows in the flank elevation facing No.31 and
theretore the developmem dees not give rse 1o issues of loss of privacy.

The pceupiers of this property have raised concerns about an increase risk of burgtary due to the
position of the single storey element of the building to the roof lights in their property. This is
nhoeled. However, the single storey eferment is set away from the boundary with No. 31 by
appraxtmalely 1.5 - 1.¥m with a gated access to the rear of the site. This relationship of buildings
is not enusual 1 an urban situation and the pereeived risk of increased oppaortunity for
unauvthorised access needs to be weighed against the current position where the propery adjoins
an open and unsuparvised puablic car park. Given this, it is considered that the development
would not have an undue impact of the securily of the occupiers of No.31.

A key issues raised by the ocoupier of No. 31 relates to noise and disturbance arising from the
use of the building as either a children's nursery or adull day care centre. The configuration of
the propesed buildings creates an external playrecreation area to the rear, north west carner of
the site, directly adjoining the rear wall of No.31 and the garden of No. 10 Chape! Street. A noise
impact assessment has been submitted by the applicant but this relates to the use of the
premises as & children’s nursery andy, on the basis that this use is likely to generate the most
noise of the two uses, The assessment finds that the use of the externat play area will cause
negioible increase in ambient noise levels al the garden with Mo 10, Noise levels within this
property would fall within the ‘good’ acoustic envirpnment range. In contrast, noise lovels at the
rooflights 1o Mo.31 may rise by approximately 5.5dBA and this is considered retatively high. The
report assumes that these rooflighis are to bedrooms and that these rooms would not be in use
during the likely hours of use of the play area. This is not the ¢ase as the rooflights serve living
and dining areas. However, the roof lights act as a secondary source of naturak light and
ventilation, the primary windowsidoors being located at ground level on the west facing elevation
of the building and therefore it would be reasonable to assume thal they are not always open.

To mitigats noise impact into the building, the applicant proposes the erection of a new acoustic
wall to supplement the existing rear walt of No.31 and reduce any noise travelling through the
walls. In addilion, play times for the nursery would be restricted 1o 1 hour in the morming and a
simitar period in the afternoon. This approach has been accepted on a number of applications for
chifdren's nurgesies in the Borough. However, in a recent appeal decision in relation to a proposal
for a children's nursery for 18 chitdren at 79 Scuthbury Road, the Inspector in granting planning
permission commented:

"Thiz part of Scuthbury Road is partly commercial and partly residential, and
there is considerable noise from traffic on Southbury Road. Thare is a
residential propeddy al No 77 and there would be a flat above the nursery,



Page 64

However, the nursery woldd operate during the daytime fram 0B.G0 to 19.60
with very young children, whom | would expect to be supervised in the outdoeor
play area. Consequently, | do not consider that the noise from up to 18
chiddren playing outside would be intrusive to lucal residents and | see no
reason to impose conditions resticting the numbers or hours of use of the play
area”.

This application proposes a children's nursery for up ta 75 children, significanty mare than at the
Southbury Road site, although not all would be in the garden at the same time. Accordingly, it s
considered appropriate to limit the times for use of the cutdoor play area to safeguard the
amenities of the occupiers of the adjoining property, particularky Mo, 31 Litde Park Gardens.

Mo assessment has been made from noise generated by use of the site as an adult day centre.
However, it is reascnable to assume that noise from this vse would nol be as significant a5 a
children's day nursery, 1t is not considered necessary to restrict the use of garden o one hour
periods as with the children’s nursery as this would prectude adults choosing to sit ot read in the

gardens outside these times.

With the exception of No.12 Chapel Street, which has a simalf section of rear garden adjoining the
site, but where the impact of the developiment would be no greater than with either property
referred to above, there are no other properties directly adjoining the site, The impact of the
development beyond those identified above will be fargely associated with traffic and car parking.

In summary, and it is sonsidered that with appropriate condition securing the miligation measures
offered by the applicant, the proposed development is acceptable and the amenities of the
occupiers of adjoining properties will be safeguearded,

Traffic, access and parking

This is a town centre site with good access to public transport. There are existing on-street
parking controls which would deter Linauthorised parking on-street or in residents parking bays
and there is a large public car park oppesite the sile. In such circumstances the lack of on-site
parking provision is considered acceptable.

Cn-street parking conlrols should be further tightened to prevent short term parking on the bend
and this is to be secured through a 5106 Agreement.

The application makes provision for a drop-offiloading area for the benefil of clients of an adull
day centre. This has been moved from the Chapel Street frontage to the Little Park Gardens
frontage, reffecting the amendments the position of matn entrance to the building. This loading
area will require amendments to the existing on-strest controls and this is similarly to be secured
thraugh a S106 Agreement,

Traffic and Transportation have requested the extension of the public footpath alang the eastern
boundary of the site to improve pedestrian safety. The applicant has agreed to this and this can
be securad through the 5108 Agreement.

lmpact on treas

The proposal does result in the loss of the red oak. However, aboricultural advice is that this tree
has low amenity value contributing iittle to the visual quality of its surroundings, and if retained will
continue to decline in condition, a state which cannol be overcame by remedial works.
Accordingly, no objection is raised to its removal. The applicant has offered to plant a
reptacement tree on land in Council ownarship to the north of the site, adjoining No. 16 Ghapel
Street, This can be secured through a 5106 Agreement.

The proposal allows for the retention of the existing sweet chestnut. The application has been
amended to re-site the entrance to the proposed building to safeguard more of the raised bed in



Page 65

which the free sits. The aboricultural advice is that there is every chance that this tree would
survive the development.

Sustainable Design and Construction

The development achieves a good score against the Council's sustainable design and
construction assessenenl, Measures to be incorporated 1o reduce energy demand include:

« The proposed construction design to include high energy efficient features such as well
insulated wall, floors and roof to minimize use of mechanical ventitalion, heating and
cooling systems.

« Nalural daylight is provided in every activity area which reduces daytime energy needs
considerably,

« Installation of energy efficient bollers and heating systems,

» Energy efficient light fittings to be installed inside and outside the building.

« The proposal incorporates rain water collection systems lo be used for maintaining
landscaped/garden areas.

« Water saving systemns such as installation of low flush toilets, taps and showers with water
saving devices etc- to reduce the use of water within the development.

5106 Agreement

A 5108 Agreement is recommended to suppert this application to secwve the necessary
arnendments to the exisling on-sireet parking conlrols to allow for the provision of the loading
area to the Little Park Gardens frontage, the tightening of cantrols on the bend, the provision of
the public footpath along the eastern boundary and the planting of a replacement tree in the
vicinity of the site to compensate for the loss of the red oak. In addition, it is considered
necessary for the applicant to submit a travel plan to suppaort either use to demonstrate what
measuras will be employed to minimise car borng traffic to the site,

Conglusion

In conclusion, the proposed uses are appropriate for this lown centre site with the benefit of good
public transport access. The design and scale of the building is considered appropriate given the
proposed non-residential use and respects and complement the character and appearance of its
immediate surroundings and the Enfield Town Conservation Arga, in which it is located. With the
conditions recommended it is considerad that the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining
properties will be safequarded. Accordingly, it is recommended that planning permission be
granted for the following reasons.

1 The proposed uses are appropriate in this town centre location with good public transport
access and the having regard to the availability of public parking nearby. In this respedt
the devetopment complies with Policies {1}GD1 and (G0 of the Unitary Development
Pian and London Plan policies 248, 3A.17, 3A.18, 3C.1 and 3D.1.

2 The proposal resulls in removad of the surface car park, a feature that detracts from the
character and appearance of this part of the Enfield Town Conservation Area. In this
respect the development complies with Policy {IHC31 of the Unitary Davelopment Plan.

3 The design and scate of the building has appropriate regard to its surroundings and will
enhance the character and appearance of this part of the Enfield Town Conservation
Area. in this respect the development complies with Policies (121, (1230, (NGD1, (IGD2
and ([13D3 of the Unitary Development Plan and London Flan policies 4B.1, 4B.5, 4B.8

and 4B8.12.



Page 66

4 The development will not give rise to an increase in traffic in local roads given the existing
use and having regard to the sites accessibiity, the availability of pubbic parking and
existing on-street parking restrictions and the requiremeants of the proposed $106
Agreamert, the developmeant will not lead to an undue increase in on-street parking to the
detriment of highway safety. In this respect the development complies with Policy (H}GDS
of the Unitary Development Plan and London Plan policies 3C .23 and 2C 24,



Page 67

T

TSR
EE s
e e e e

AL ER L P

A

s T AT IDTRTD
[ i Tt ==
VErea  TEATnE

S

e e o

e S S S

TSI p— AT e el
11111 e Pramr S
§ T TR =it -




Page 68
Application No:- TP/09/1200

T

a e
g

Development Control

. ' a 4 4 H L]

ENFIELD

. Seale - 111250
Council

Time of plog: 16:51 Data of plot: 071285175

Fa ol gapyrifing Lerden Baeouglt ol Enheld | BERESEI LD




Page 69

Application Nuimber, TP/O9/4200 Ward: Grange
Crate of Registration: 18th August 2009

Contact David Warden 020 3379 3831
Location: 27, THE CHINE, LONDON, N21 2EA

Proposal; Subdivision of site and erection of a 3-bed chalet style single dwelling with off street
parking and access from Nestor Avenue.

Applicant Name & Address:

b & Mrs Michasl Gilmartin
27, THE CHINE

LONDOM

MZ21 2EA

Agent Name & Address.

Mr Kevin Birch

184, HOPPERS ROAD

LONEGON

M21 3LA

Recommendation: That planning permisgion be REFUSED for the following reason:

1. The proposed development, by reason of its size, height, scale, bulk and design, represents
an inappropriate form of development that would result in an unaccepted adverse impact on
the strestscens, as well as failing to preserve or enhance the character of the Grange Park
Conservation Area. This is contrary to Folicies (NGO, (GD2, (11 GO3. (MG and {30 of
the Unitary Development Plan, as well as Policies 48.8, 48,12 and 4B.13 of the London Plan,
having regard also to the Grange Park Conservations Ares Character Appraisat,

Site and Surroungings

The application site comprises part of the rear garden of 27 The Chine, currently occupied by a
detached garage accessed via Nestor Avenue,

Nestor Avenue is characterised by a mixture of garages and dwellings. Numbers 25 to 31 The
Chine are served by garages accessed via Neslor Avenue. These garages afe single storey
structures with low-pitched roofs, with the exception of the garage senving no. 3t The Chine,
which is a triple garage with a high-pitched roof,

To the south of the site planning permission (ref, TR/QS/0611) has recently been granted for the
arection of a detached 3-bed bungalow with dormer windows to front and rear. Beyond that site
lies no. 22 Nestor Avenue, a detached bungalow erected in 1984

Al the southern end of Mestor Avenue, on its westarn side, are three pairs of semi-detached
buildings containing purpose built maisonettes. Due to the incline of the land, these properties are
set at a much higher ground fevel than the developments on the easlern side of Nestor Avenue.
Midway atong Meslor Avenue, immediately to the north of the maisonettes is a brick-built garage
court, with 14 no. garages. Immeadiately to the north of this is a plot of land, currently with a
detached garage and shed, with planning permission for a detached 2-starey, 4-bed dwelling
house.

There is resident permit parking within Nestor Avenue, with some business parking at its northern
end,



Page 70

The sile is within the Grange Park Conservation Area,
Proposal

The proposal is for a 3-bed chalet style dwelling fronting onto Nestor Avenue. The building will
have eaves and ridge heights of 5.1 to 5.4 and 7 metres, respectively. This provides for a two
storey dwelling with a shallow pitched roof, with its ridge running from east to west resultingin a
gable facing Nestor Avenue. The overail design of the building is that of a chalet style
meorpoarating rendered ground Aoor walls with vertically hung decorative cedar of graingd tarch
panelling to the first flogr. The roof will be finished in folded zinc and windows will be aliminium

powder coated.

The building will be set approximately 1 and 1.6 metres from the side boundaries to the north and
south, respectively. The front of the building will be approximately aligned with that of the
recently approved bungalow to the south, with the single and two slorey etements of the proposat
projecting 1 and 2.4 metres, respectively, beyond the rear this approved dwelting.

The submitted Design, Access and Conservation Statement states the proposed design allows it
to blend into the surroundings with the use of cedar to batance the trees.

The site will be accessed from Nestor Averiue, with one off streel parking space provided.
Refuse storage is proposed to the Mestar Avenue frontage.

Relevant PMlanning Decisions
Mone at the application site

Adjacent site 25 Nestor Avenue

TRIGS0611 — Subdivision of site and erection of a detached 3-bed bungalow with dormer
windows to front and rear, off street parking and new access to Nestor Gardens, granted June
2008,

TR/O07/0323 ~ Erection of a two storey detached 3-bed single family dwelling house, incorporating
accommodation in the roof, rear dormer windows and integral garage with access via Nestor
Avenue — refused August 2007, An appeal was dismissed in July 2008 over grounds that the
size and appearance of the new dwelling would significantly detract from the character and
appearance of the area.

Elblic

Consultation letters have been issued to 13 neighbouring properties. One letter of objection has
been received stating concerns relating to!

- Overcrowding
- Impact on Conssrvation Area
- impact from construction grecess and foundations

External

The Grange Park Conservation Area Study Group abjects to the application stating concerns
regarding the following matters:



Page 71

- Proposal is for & 2 storey house wilth 3 bedrooms upstairs, not a “chalet’

- Scate and bulk greater than recently approved at no, 25 The Chine

- The scheme at no. 25 The Chine has a roof ling with a hipped roof and dormers, whereas this
scheme presents a vertical wall with a very flat roof aspect, resulting in a far maore significant
overall impression from the strest

- Metaf seamed roof will not enhance the Conservation Area

- Lack of design and access stalement

- No delails of how the proposal enhances he Conservation Arga

Any other regponses will be reported at the mesting.

Consensation Advisory Group

The Group objects to the proposal on the grounds that it is not in keeping with the area, the effect
on the streelscene, rise, scale and design. The response goes on 1o state that the Grange Park
character appraisal referred explicitly 1o the generpus plote, which addad to the character of the
area. Concemns on the bulk and size of the scheme, along with its ridge line, which is higher than
that approved at the adjacent site, were supported. The existing bungalow to the south was
noted and # was stated that Nestor Avenue could be improved by building bungaiows in the back
gardens but not houses as proposed.

[nternal

Any response from the Director of Education will be reported at the meeting.
Ralevant Folicies

London Plan (2008)

341 ncreasing Supply of Housing

342 Borough Housing Targets

34,3 Maximising the potential of sites

3A5 Housing choice

AL Cuality of new housing provision

aC.21 lrgproving Conditions for Cycling

acza Parking Strategy

30.3 Maintaining and improving retail facilities
443 Sustainable Design and Construction
4420 Feducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
4812 Heritage conservation

4B8.13 Historic conservation-led regenearation
Annex 4 FParking standards

Unitary Devatopment Plan

{1}GD1 Regard to Surroundings ! Integrated into Local Community
{1psh2 Quality of Life and Visual Amenity

{INGD3 Character / Design

NHahe Traffic Generation

)
1GLE Sile Access and Servicing
THE Range of size and Tenure
YHE Privacy and Overlogking
1HE Amenity Space

T3 Creation or improvemernt of accesses

VT16 Adequate access for pedestrians and disabled persons



Page 72

(1 Preserve and Enhance matters of Archasological, Architeciural or Historic [nterest
{30 Development in a Conservation Area
{138 Resist the Loss of Trees of acknowladged public amenily value

i.ocal Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Enfield Plan — Proposed Submission Stage Core Strategy document was published for public
consullation on 14th December 2009, Fallowing this stage of consubtation, the Council will subrmit
the Core Strategy to the Secretary of State who will appoint a Planning thspector to ¢consider
whether the Strategy meels iegal requirements and that it passes the tests of soundness. The
following palicies froem this docement are of relavance to the consideration of this application.

S04 Sustainability and Climate Change

03 Frofect and enhance Enfield's envirpnmental guality,

S06 High gquality, sustainably constructed, new homes to meet the aspirations of local
pecple

508 Affordable Housing, Family Homes and Social Mix

501 Safer and stronger communities

5018 Fresense the local distinctiveness

S0O17 Safeguard established communities and the quality of the local environment

5018 Conservatian, Lisled Buildings and Heritags

5021 Sustainable Transpont

CP1 Sustainable Design and Construction

CPE Air, Water, Noise and Light Pollution and Contaminated Land

CR10 Managing the Supphy and Location of New Housing

CP12 Howsing Mix

P14 Saler and Stronger communites

CP23 Built Heritage

CP2% Promoting sustainable transpont and improving access for people with restricted
mdildy

CP3t Walking and Cycling

Other Material Considerations

PFS1 Delivering Sustainable Communities

FRE3 Housing

PPSE Teawn Centres

FPG13 Transport

PR3 Fistoric Environment

Grange Fark Conservations Ares Character Appraisal, November 2008
Analysis

Frinciple

The redevelopment of the sita for residential use would be consistent with the surrounding
character of the area and, moreover, permission has recently been granted for a dwelling on the
adjacent site. The proposal would increase the supply of housing within the Borough assisting in
the aitainment of the Boroughs housing targets. The principle of the proposed development is
therefore, subject to the detailed considerations below, considersd acceptable. The primary
matters 1o be considered are whether the proposal praserves or enhances the character of the
Grange Park Consarvation Area and wheather there are any unacceptable impadts on
neighbouring properties ar highway safety.



Page 73

w-haracter and Appearance of the area

As detailed above the principle of the provision of a property fronting Nestor Avenue has been set
by the approval of a dwelling an the site to the south. However, this was for & dormer bungalow,
which, whilst larger than the existing bungalow at no. 22 Nestor Avenue, at jeast respects the
scale of that property. The current proposal, however, is for a two starey building with an eaves
and ridge heights some 2.6 and 1.3 metres, respectively, above that of the approved bungalow.

it is considered this would be out of character with the existing and emerging form of
development in this location. Even the triple garage to the réar of no. 31 The Chine, with its
dominant gable feature, retains a single storey eaves line,

Government guidance provides that design that is inappropriale tn its context should not be
accepted. Notwithstanding the two storey properties to the west, it is considered that the
proposal is out of scale with the single storey context of the existing devefopment to the east side

of Nestor Avenue,

The proposed ‘chatet’ design of the property would also be at odds with the surrounding pattern
of development. The site is visible from one of the focal points identified within the Grange Park
Conservation Area Character Appraisal. |t is considered its size, height, scale, bulk and design,
particdarty when compared to the existing and approved adjacent buildings, would have an
unacceptably harmful impact an the character of the street and the conservation area.

The proposal would involve the loss of the existing trees around the garage fronting Mestor
Avenue. However, none of these make such a significant contribution to the strestscens or wider

Caongervalion Area that would warrant their protection.

in respect of amenity space, the UDP standard requires & minimum of at least 100% of the Gross
Intarnal Area (GIA) of the proposed new dwelling, or 60 square metres, whichever is the greater.
[n this case, the GiA and proposed amanity space are approximately 160 and 165 square metres,
respactively, with 121 square metras provided to the rear of the property. The proposed lgvel of
amenity space iz, therefora, considered accaptable,

The application was considered by the Conservation Advisory Group, who raised objections to
the proposal detailed in the consullation section abowve.

There area also some concerns regarding the selected materials. However, notwithstanding the
above determinative concerns, this matter could be addressed by condition.

Cverall, it is considared that the proposal represents an inappropriate form of development that
would result in an unaccepted adverse impact on the streatscene, as well as failing to preserve or
enhance the character of the Grange Park Caonservation Area. This is contrary to Polictes {(1)GD1,
(HED2, (11} GDI, (KC1 and (1IC30 of the Umitary Development Plan, as well as Policies 4B.8,
4B8.12 and 4B.13 of the London #1an, having regard also to the Grange Park Conservations Ares

Character Appratsal.

lmpact on Neighbouring Proparties

The adjacent sifes fo the north and south are currantly occupted by garages, which,
notwithstanding the two storey nalure of the proposal discussed above, will ensure that it does
not have an unacceptable overbearing impact on these garden areas. tn addition, the recently
approved bungalow to the south has no windows in its northern elevation,

The single and lwo starey efements of the proposal woutd project 1 and 2.4 metres, respectively,
beyond the rear of the recently approved bungalow to the south. However, these would not



Page 74

breach a 30 and 45 degres Hnes, respectively, from the nearest window of the approved building.
As such, this relationship is considered acceplable.

In respect of overtooking, the proposal retains adequate distances form the rear of the properties
fronting The Chine and the front of the properties fronting Nestor Avenue. Whilst there would be
an increase in gverlooking of the rear gardens of the adjacent properties, including the proposed
Bungatow to the south, it is not considered this would be to such an extent that would warrant the

refusal this application.

Overall, the impact on the neighbouring properties is considered acceptable.

Parking and Access

The site is Iocated in a moderate {o low PTAL 2 area but ltes in ¢lose proximity to the Grange
Park Station. The site is accessed from Nestor Avenue and provided with one off street parking
space. Having regard to the sites proximity to the station, as well as the existing on street
restrictions, this level of parking is considered acceptable, The proposal alse involves the loss of
off street parking to the existing property. Mowever, this was also the case with the recently
approved bungalow to the south and is considered acceptable.

The plans show an appropriate location for refuse storage, but no details of any retated enclosure
are provided. No details of cycle parking are provided. However, these details, including security
features, can be by secured by condition.

Cverall, the highways elerments of the proposal are considered acceptable.

Cther Maters

Concerns have been raised regarding distuption during the construction process. However, an
ordinarily level of disruption during construction has been held to not constitute a material

planming consideralion
The proposal will provide a 3 bedroom dwelling thal would be suitable for family oceupation and

waolld accord with the current housing needs of the Borough
The proposal is located a minimum of 4,35 metres from the Hounsdeen Gutter, which is less than

{he 4.5 metres usually sought and that approved for the bungalow to the south. The Environment
Agency reguires such clearance for access and maintenance, Comments have been sought from

the Environment Agency and will be provided af the meeting.

Sustainable Design and Construction

The submitted application does not include any details of sustainability measures o address the
objectives of policy 443 "Sustainable Design and Construction' of the London Mlan. However,
having regard to the scale of development, it is considered this matter could be adequaltaly

addressed by condilion,

Conclusion

in the: light of the above assessment, H is considerad that the proposed would is for an
inappropriate form of developmeant having regard to its context that would have an unacceptably
adverse impact on the Grange Park Conservation Area. As a result it is considered the proposal
should be refused for the following reason.



Page 75

The proposed development, by reason of its size, height, scale, bulk and design, represents an
inappropriate form of development that would resudt in an unaccepted adverse impact on the
streetscene, as wel as failing to preserve or enhance the character of the Grange Park
Conservation Area. This is contrary to Policies (hGD1, (HGD2, (1) GD3, (HC1 and {IFC30 of the
Unitary Brevelopment Plan, as well ag Folicies 4B.8, 4B.12 and 4B.13 of the London Plan, having
regard also to the Grange Park Conservations Ares Character Appraisal.



Page 76

PRI A e

LLTIEEE LT

NI S L L

PR
LT

Fle EIN e b, et

alh




Page 77

Application No:- TP/08/1238

ENFIELD

Councit

Sl gyl London Soough ol Saliv'd LAIDEIG, 200

Development Controf

Beale - 1:1240
Tirng ¢ plot: 12:28 Crate of plal: H01:2010

e




Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79

Apnlication Humber: TPOG/1238 Ward: Winchmore Hilt
Date of Reqistration: 14th Aogust 2000

Contact Dawvid Warden 35831

Location: Land rear of, 483/489, Green Lanes, London, N13.

Propogzal: Redevelopment of site by the erection of a part 2, part 3-storey block of 36 residential
units {comprising 8 x 1-bed, 16 x Z-bed, 6 x 3-bed, 7 ¥ 4-bed) incorporating 18 affordable units,
with accommodation in roof space, roof terraces, balconies and dormer windows, together with
provision of associated car parking and access to Green Lanes.

Applicant Name & Adtdress:

Beacon Securities Ltd, and, London and Qadrant Mousing Trust

266, Slamford Hill
Landon
MN1GBTL

Agent Name & Address:

Studio:08 Architecture & Pianning Lid
Orawbridge

The Rear Courtyard

&, Stonard Road

London

N13 40P

Note to Members

At the meeting of the Planning Commiftee on 20" November, it was agreed lo defer consideration
of this application to enable officers to provide further guidance on the access arrangements for
the development with Green Lanes. This followed an earfier deferral at the Octoher meeting for
officers o identify potential reasons for refusal,

in the light of these requests, the previously reported "Note for Members™ has been updated to
provide the requested clarification on highway matters together with the previously identified
reasons for refusal and the olficers' assessment regarding their merit.

This application follows a previows scheme for 42 units on the site. The application was refused
for seven reasons, each of these reasons is included in ull and considered below.

Characier and appearance

The proposed development by reason of its siting, size, scale, design, massing and proximity o
sHe boundaries would result in the introduction of an overly dominant and visually intrusive form
of development that would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the surrounding
area and the visual amenities enjoyed by neighbouring properties, as well as representing an
overdevelopment of the site contrary to policies (HGO1T, (IGD2 and {HGDI of the Unitary
Development Plan and Policy 48.8 of the London Plan (2008}, as wall as the objectives of PP51
and PP&3,



Page 80

This scheme has a reduced buitding footprint and increased separation from the site boundaries.
I particular, the depth of the buildings has been reduced and apexes added to the ends of the
blocks to reflect the predominantly pitched roofs within the surrounding area. This reduction in
depth has significantly reduced the bulk of the building at the upper levels. The density now ligs
within the middle of the range sel out within the London Plan, with the scheme providing only &
riore units than was envisaged when it was allosated in the Unitary Development Planr. 1t must
be acknowledged thal this was in 1894, was based upon density standards that have now been
superseded by the London Plan and predates thres editions of central government guidance on
housing which each promole more dense forms of development. Officers are therefore of the
opinion, an balance, that the current scheme has satisfactorily addressed these concerns.

Amenity space

The proposed ameanity space is of insufficient size and inadequate quality to provide for the needs
of future occupiers, in particular for the proposed family sized accommodation. This would result
i an unsatisfactary and unsustainable form of residential development, contrary to Policies
(G0 and ([1HS of the Unitary Devetopment Plan, as well as the objeclives of PPST and PPS3,

The previous proposal had a GlA of 3,187 square metres and provided 1509 square metres of
amenity apace or 47% of the GlA, whereas the current scheme provides amenity space al 64% of
the GlA. Whilst there remains a deficiency of 393 square metres of amenity space and 27% of
the amenity space providad is in the form of balconies and terraces, government guidance is that
stardards such as these must be applied flexibly. In ihis case the scheme provides for a darge
tsable area of arnenity space within the courtyard area and a mixturg of private gardens,
balances and terraces. |0 addition, the schame provides for a conlribution 1o provide improved
naturat pray faclities of £15,000 to the nearest public cpen space. Officers are therefore of the
opinion, on balance, that the current scheme has satisfactorily addressed these concerns.

Overtooking facing Glebe Court

The propaosed first floor balconies, second floor windows and balconies to elevation AA, facing
Glebe Court, would unduly prejudice through averlooking and loss of privacy the amenities
enjoyed by neighbouring properties, particdarly Glebe Court itself and the amenity space of
Glebe Court and no.'s 501 to 505 Green Lanes, contrary to Policies (17G01, (HGD2 and {I1)H8 of
the Unitary Development Plan, as well as the objeclives of FFS1 and PP33.

The first and second floor balconies facing Glebe Court have now been removed from the
scheme entirely. The second floor dormer windows have been revised to provide onty velux style
raof lights to the elevation facing Glebe Courl. Whilst these roof lights would still provide some
views towards Glebe Cour, the angles and {sightly improved) separalion distances involved
would prevent an unacceptable level of overlooking of Glebe Court or the perception of being
overtooking. It must also be acknowledged that the armenity space to Glebe Court is currently
directly averiooked die to the open nature of the fencing aleng the public footpath, Officers are
therefore of the opinion, on balance, that the current scheme has salisfactorily addressed these

CONCeTNS.

Qverlooking fram roef gardens

The proposed roof gardens to blocks A, B and © would unduly prejudice through overlooking and
logs of privacy the amenities enjoyed by neighbouring properties, paticutarly Glehe Court and
no.'s 801 to 5056 Green Lanes and to a lesser extent no.'s 483 to 438 Green Lanes, contrary o
Palicies {1G01, (HGD2 and {111HE of the Unitary Development Plan, as welt as the objectives of
PPST and PPE3.



Page 81

The roof gardens have now been provided with screening above average eye level lo prevent
unacceptable overlooking of the surrounding properties. The only exception of the elevation
facing the railway, the views from which are suffictently distant and adequately screenad by rees
and to which the above reason for refuse does not relate, Officers are therefore of the opinion
that the currert scheme has satisfactorily addressed lhess concems,

Owitlook and lights for future residants

The proposed development would result in an unacceptable outlook and levels of ight for the
future residents of units CG.2, BG.1 and BG.2 and their respective amenily space, in respect of
the proximity to the requisite public footpath retaining wall, and units BG 2, 8G.3, BG 4, AGA1,
AG3 AG A and AG.S and thelr respective amenity space, in respect of the proximity to the
railway embankment significantly compounded by the presence of a row of large established
trees and overhanging balconies. This would result in an unsatisfactory and unsustainable form of
residential development, contrary to contrary lo Policies (1}GD1 and (1}GD2 of the Unitary
Development Plan and Policy 34.6 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the objactives of PP51

and PPS3.

This revised scheme has increased significantly increased the separation distances from the
prapesed units and both the footpath retaining wall and the railway embankment. In addition, the
corner unit has been arranged such that it has both north and west facing windows. With the
exception of units BG.1, BG.2 and BG.3, all of the units to the ground floor are dual aspect
reducing the impact of retaining wall and embankment. n respect of these remairing units, unit
B3, would face south towards the courtyard: unit B2 would face north with approximately 4.5
metres of separation to the retaining walf, which itself will be between only 0.6 and ¢.28 metres
high with cpen railings above; and, unit BG.3 would face west with approximataly & metres of
separation the railway embankment, |t is considered, on balance, that these units would have an
acceptable outlook. OHficers are therefore of the opinion, on balance, that the curreni scheme
has salisfaclorily addressed these concerns.

hMechanism to secure adecuate noise afignuation

In the absence of an appropriate mechanisn to secure adequate noise atlenuation measures {o
screen no. 501 Green Lanes from vehicle noise from the proposed access, the proposed
development would have an unacceptable impact on the amenities of this dwelling contrary to
policies (1GD1, (NGD2, (NENG and {(INEN30 of the Unitary Developrnent Plan and Palicy 4A.20 of
the London Plan (2008}, as welt as the objectives of PFE1, PPS3 and PPG24.

The applicant has made contact with no. 501 Green Lanes, who, without prejudice to their
remaining objections to the scheme, has confirmed if the developrent is lo proceed they would
accept improvemesns to their property. The applicant’s solicitors have been in contact with
Officers regarding drafing such an agreement, which could be completed before the issues of a
decision. Officers are therefore of the opinion that the current scheme has satisfactorily
addressed these concerns,

Loss of protected trees withowt adequate replacements

The loss of T2 {Oak), T3 {ash), T4 {(Ash) and T5 (Weeping Ash), without adequate replacements,
would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the area and the street scene, in
particular views from the adiacent pubkic footpath, resulting in & loss of amenily o the surrounding
residential properties contrary to policies {IBC38 and {11}C38 of the Unitary Development Plan,

The previous application was refused due {o the lack of adequate replacements for the protecied
raes thal would be losl. This revised scheme provides & larger area of amenity space within the



Page 82

centre of the site and proposed four mature specimens to replace the protected trees, with
measures proposed to protect the retained Horse Chestnut. This approach is supported by the
Council's Arboriculturalist. Officers are therefore of the opinion, on bakance, that the current
scheme has satisfactorily addressed these concerns.

Other matiers

Finally, it showld be noted that the previous application for 42 units involved substantially the
same access to the site and approximately proportionately the same number of parking spaces.
That application was not refused on highway grounds.  As sueh, having regard to the reduced
number of wnits and consequent reduction in vehicle movements, it is considered that a reason
for refusal could not now be introduced on these grounds,

Additional Information from Traffic and Transportation

The previous report set out the main issues and describes the location and issues. In summary, il
should be noted that :
s the {northbound} right-turn lane at the Green Lanes/Hedge Lane junction is retatively
short and accommodates about 5 cars,
v Green Lanses is subject to a 30mph speed limit,;
o there are loading restrictions and 'at any time” waiting restrictions on the west side of
Green Lanes past no 495,

As already identified, the highway concerns raised by Members focus on:

1. The adeguacy of the new access read to serve the site; and
2. The suitahility of the access joining Green Lanes at this location.

The Proposed Access Hoad

The development comprises 38 flats and it is considered a scheme of this scale would not
generate undue movements for the proposed access. This access is of adeguate width (5.3m) at
its junction with Green Lanes to ensure thal 2 vehicles can pass, thus ensuring that flows on
Green Lanes are nat impeded whilst an entering vehicle waits for another to leave the site. In
addition, the sight lines for exiting vehicles are adeguate to ensure that sufficient visibility is
provided to the north or south. It is accepted however thal when the northbound gueue from the
Hedge Lane/Grean Lanes signals extends past the site access, then stationery vehicles could
compromise this visibikity.

The proposed access is generally 4.8m wide, but does have a pinch point {3.6m) ag it passes the
corner of the retained property. Road markings will give priority to cars coming into the site, again
to ensure vehicles do not back up out onte Green Lanes, This featurs, in conjunction with the
build-outfchicane will aiso have the added benefit of siowing down vehicles, The tight bend into
the back of the site does have limited visibility but the siow speeds involved do not pose any
undue safety concerns, The bend itself does widen on the radius to permit all vehicke movernents,
In particular, the access road has been designed so thal it is suitable for use by refuse freighters
ar emeargency service vehicles. However, this layout is reliant on the inclusion of a narrow stitp
from the adjoining public Right of Way to achisve the proposed carriageway dimension, This
requires & Stopping Up Order to release this land for this purpese.  This would be processed at
the applicant's expense should the scheme be approved and currently, a condition requires this
o be organised before (he development is impleménted.

The new road will not be adopled and hence will not have {enforceabla) wailing restrictions on #
to minimise obstructive parking. It will rely on any on-site management arrangements to keep the



Page 83

road clear for users, a common arrangement for most developmeants of this scale. However there
would be a concern if no action was taken to address parking on the access read closs to where
it joins Green Lanes, thus frustrating the suitability of the design as described above,

Farkingturning into the front garden of no. 489 Green Lanes off the new access would also be
prejudicial 1o the safe operation of the access close to Green Lanes. Such parking is to be
preventad by a condition.

Accessilunction onto Graen Lanes

The new access joing Green Lanes about 40m norh of the north-bound bus stop and 63m south
of tha north-bound stop line to the signalied unclion at Bourne HillHedge Lane. This is a vary
busy junction which is often subject to congestion. It also has & poor accident record within all
categories (slight, serious and fatal). There is also a record of casualties away from the junction,
along Green Lanes,

Concerns about the junction have already resulted in preliminary  investigations into whether a
roundabot configuration would offer refief to the jumction’s current operation. A roundabouit
sofution would not directly cater very well for the needs of pedestrians and hence separate
pelican crossings away from the junction would be required: that required for this section of
Green Lanes would not conflict with the proposed access.

The access also joins Green Lanes opposite the southbound bus stop, This stop has a bus
boarder — e a widened footway, which extends 1.4m out from the kerb line. This functions to
deter unauthorised patking in the bus bay and allows the bus to fully reach the kerb. However it
does place any waiting bus furher into the carhageway where other vehicles need o continue
southbound whilst passengers are boarding. There are on-street short term parking bays either
side of this bus boarder.

The main issues relating to the use of he naw junction on to Green Lanes are therefore:

T. Safety when vehicles durn in and out of the sile; and
2. dmplications regarding delaysicongestion {o other road users.

There are several footway crossovers serving individual properties along Green Lanes, These
give rise fo numerous turning movements oh and off the road, akthough the scale of these s
limited,

The applicant cites the nurmber trips arising from the premises along Green Lanes {part of the
application site} as a relevant consideration to this traffic being replaced by that from the new
development. However many of the vehictes apparently based there seem somewhat static and
do not appear to generale the number of trips that may be suggested.

ln 2008 consultants acting on behalf of the Council, tooked at the Green Lanes/Hedge Lang
junction and ils environs as a precursor to developing the roundabout option for the intersection
referred to above, That study confirmed that the junction:

ls generally operating over capacily in peak perieds,
In the AM peak all inks operate over-capacity excepl Green Lanes northbound;

- In the PM pesk the Green Lanes nomthistraight aheadfright turn {(+ Boume Hill, has
capacily. but the Sreen Lanes straighl sheadilell has the highest queues and a degree of
saturation of 103%, and overall the junction has a reserve capacity of -34% and a total
delay of 78.2 vehicles.



Page 84

This provides context far the current aperation of the adjoining main road junclion, within which
the new development will be located,

The application was itself supported by a Transport Statement This followed accepted
methodology of assessing traffic generation and concluded that that the development would
generate 10 trips in the am peak, 11 in the pm peak, and 112 two-way trips for the whole day. [t
was further acknowledpged in the svening peak “that traffic continually guevsd back from the
traffic signals”. Mowever, it contended that the peak time traffic generation is therefore quite low,
and the stationery lraffic gueuing past the access would assist exiting vehicles to tern right out of
the site.

The CouncHl underdook its own surveys outside the site in Green Lanes {o understand the
frequency of queuing and general fraffic conditions. This confirms that queuing s 8 regular
oecurrence and that queues will regularly biock the access/egress from the site unless 'give way'
ar box markings are installed across the nothbound lane, This also suggests that at some times
vehicles thal approach from the north, and wish to furn right into the site, will delay other
sowthbound wehicles as there is insufficient kane width to proceed past the turming wehicle
alongside the bus-stop

The surveys also noticed that on some occasions northbound/right-turn raffic vse the Green
Lanes southbound fane to join the end of the right-turn lane, thus extending the queue south
beyond the limit of the right-turn flare. The aflect of this is that the southbound {ane could be
blocked if the is a bus waiting at the southbound stop, if northbound cars are encroaching into this
lane.

In summary, it can be noted that:

- Green Lanes/Hedge Lane junction is freguenlly congested and operating over capacity;

- This juneiion and Green Lanas itself has a poor accident record;

- The width of Green Lanes at the point in guestion is tight for the flows and movements
present and this is exacerbated by the bus-stop/boarder,

- MNorthbound gueues regularly extend back past the location of the site access,

- The proposed site access is geomelrically satisfactory for the scale of development
currently intended, including for refuse freighters etc, and has adeguate sight lines to
Green Lanes,

- Addressing any concerns owver the right-turn movements in and out of the site access
could not be controlled by securing 'lefl-infleft-out’ only arrangements within the current
proposed access geometry availahle;

- This adeguate access is reliant on securing an additional width by stopping up part of the
footpath alongside,

- The modest development will not generate unreasonably high levels of traffic at peak
times, but overall dees add to general raffic growdth;

Yehicles leaving the site will be assisted to exit by nonthbound gueues to the signals to the
north (when the 'keep clear’ controls are obeyed);

- Right-turning vehicles exiting the site could conflick with northbound tratfic moving ouiside
stationary vehictes queuing o the signals;

- In free flow condilions, wehicles turning right into the site could cause delays to
southbound wvehicles waiting behind them and in extreme examples this may cause
gquetes back nordh inlo the Green Lanes/Medge Lane junction,

Conclusion

Owerall, having regard to the amendments made, it is considered that on Balance, this revised
scheme has addressed each of the reasons for refusal applied to the previous scheme. In



Page 85

particuiar, the matters relating fo: character and appearance, amenity space, overlooking from the
second ficor roof Hghts facing Glebe Court, the outlook and light levels for future residents and
the loss of protected trees have required carefut and detailed assessment as part of our overalt

cansideration,

Neverthelass, it is acknowladged that although based on policy is subjective and balansed. I
Mernbers remain concemed about the acceptabifity of the proposed davelopment, it is suggested
that & defendable case could be made in respect of. character and appearance, ameanity space,
overlgoking fram the second floor roof lights facing Glebe Court, the outlook and light levels for

future residents and the loss of protected frees.

With regard to traffic generation and the acceptability of the access, the scale of the development
is guite modest and the traffic generation quite low. As a result, the proposed road |ayout is felt to
be acceptable for this scale of development. Nevertheless, it is acknowledged that cerlain traffic
mancelvies associaled with the development may cause delays to other road users and
potentially give fise to traffic conflicts with the turning movements involved. Although not
previously used as a reason for refusal, if Members are 50 minded having considered the details
and impact thereof, of the proposed access arrangements, a reason for refusal could be applied

in response fo this concern.

Recormmendation: That subject to the completion of a section 106 Agreemeant ragarding a
financial contribution for education, play and open space pravision and highway works together
with the provision of 18 affordable units on site and acoustic improvements to no.’s 489 and 501
Green Lanes, planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. No development shalt take place until full details of the existing and proposed ground
levels or contours, means of enclosure, car parking layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian
accesses, junclions and circulation areas, a high kerb to protect pedestrians using the
adiacent public footpath, streel and other forms of external lighting {including mitigation for
adjoining properties and nature conservation afong the railway elevation), and surfating
materials/markings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authotity. These works shall be carded out in accordance with the approved details before

any dwelling hereby approved is occupted.

Reason: To ensure that they are constructed to satisfactory standard, in the interests of
safety, access needs of the proposed use, visual amenily and amenities of the adjoining

occupiars.

2. That developiment shall not commence on site until a construction methodology has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, The construction
methodology shall contain include a Construction Logistic Plan (CLP} in accordance with
Transport far London's current guidance, a photographic condition survey of the roads
and footways |2ading to the site, details of construction access and vehicle routing to the
site, arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas, arrangements for the parking of
cantractors vehicles, arrangements for wheel cleaning, arrangements for the storage of
materials and hours of work. The development shall then be undertaken in accordance
with the approved canstruction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the

Local Planning Authorily,

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead to damage to
the existing roads, prejudice highway safety or the free-fiow of trallic on Green Lanes, and

to minimise disruption to neighbouring properties.



Page 86

The parking areas shown on approved plan P80A received by the Local Pianning
Authorily on 22nd Septemter 2009 shall be provided prior to the cccupation of the
dwelling to which they relate and shall be only be used for the parking of private motor
vehicles and shall not be used for any other purpose.

Reason; To ensure that the development complies with Unitary Development Plan
Policies and to prevent the introduction of activily which would be detrimentat to amenity.

Detaits of sustainable design and construction methods, renewahle energy pravision and

tetails angd specification of the wheelchair accessible units shall be submiltad to the Local
Planning Aulhority for approval prior to the commencement of development. The scheme
will achieve a minimum Code for Sustainable Homes rating of 3.

Reason: In arder fo secure on site renewable energy provision and ensure the
development is constructed in accordance with sustainable design and construction

methods.

Mo development shalt commence until a scheme detatting the specimens and a planting
and 5 year maintenance schedule for the replacement trees detailed on the approved
plans has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall be implementad in accordance with the approved details and schedule. Any planting
which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five years of planting shall be
replaced with new planting in accordance with the approved details.

Reason; To ensure adequate replacements of the TRPO trees to be losl within the scheme
in the interests of visual amenity.

No developmenl shall commence until a scheme (o protect the TPO Horse Chestnut Tree:
1} during the period of construction, 2} from roat compaction of damage, o include
foundation design, methods of excavation (including had digging where reguired) and a
gea-grid root protection system and 3} 2 management stralegy to ensure the fong-term
heallh of the protected tree have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The measlires shat! be in place during the period of construction with
(he root protection system and management strategy shall be retained thereafter.

Reason: To protect existing planting during construction.

The development shall not commeance until detaits of trees, shrubs and grass to Le
planted on the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Flanning
Autharity, The scheme shall include measures to enhance the natural environment in
accordance with the objectives of PPS9. The planting scheme shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details in the first planting season alter completion or
occupation of the development whichever is the sooner. Any planting which dies,
becomes severaly damaged or diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced
with new planting in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance and ensure that the development does not
prejudice highway safety.

Mo development shall take place until an assessment has been carried out into the
potential for disposing of surface water by means of a sustainable drainage (SuDS)
scheme, in accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems set out in
national planning policy guidance and statements, and the results of thal assessment
have been provided to the local planning authority. The assessment shall take nlo



10.

11,

12,

13

Page 87

account the design storm periad and intensity; methods to delay and conteol the surface
water discharged from the site; and measures to prevent polution of the receiving
groundwater andior surface walers.

Reason: To ensure (hat the proposal would not result in an unacceptable risk of flooding
from surface water run-off or create an unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhers.

Surface water drainage works shall be carried ouf in accordance with details that have
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authorily before the
devetopment commences. Those details shall include a programme for implementing the
works. Where, in the light of the assessment required by the above condition, the locat
planning authority concludes that a SuDS scheme showld be implemented, details of the
works shall specify:

i a management and maintenance plan, for the lifetime of the development, which shall
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker or
any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime; and

i the responsibiiies of each party for implementation of the SuDS scheme, together with
a timelable for that knplementation.

Reason: To ensure implementation and adequate maintenance to enswe that the
propasal would not result in an unacoeptable risk of ficoding from surface water run-off or
create an unacceplable risk of flooding elsewhere.

The glazing to be instalted in the east elevation of unit H1 of the development indicated on
drawing No. P@1t/A receivad by the Local Planning Authority on 20th September 2009
shall be provide with obscured and fixed glazed except for any point more than 1.7 metres
above imternal floor level. The glazing shaH not be altered without the apgroval in wriling
of the Local Pianning Autharity,

Reasen: To safeguard the privacy of the coceupiers of adjoining properties.

Motwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permutied
Development} Order 1985 or any amending Order, no walls, fences, gates or any other
maans of enclosure shall be grected within any part of the comimunal courtyard or access

way.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the area is retain far communat
Use.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1985 or any amending Order, no buildings or extensions to buildings
shall be erected within the cartitage of units H1, H2, H3, B4 or HS shown on approved
plan PE1/A received by the Local Planning Authority on 22nd September 2009 without the
prior approval in witting of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure adequate amenily space is retained and to prolect the amenities of
adjoining oosupiers.

Before the development is commenced details of measures to ensure that noise from
external sources (transport and industrial) is conltrolled should be submitted to the Local
Planning Autharity. This shoufd be in the form of a report and have regard to PPG 24 and
B54142. The insulation and building design to be adopted shall be stbmitted to and
approved by the Local Flanning Authority, The measures proposed shall be implemented



Page 88

in accordance with the approved detait before the building is occupied or use commences.

Reason: To ensure the external noise does not prejudice the amenities of occupiers of the
prermises

14. The developmeant shall not commence until details of measures to ensure that amplifisd
sound generated from plant and macshinery {ie; air conditioning wnits) onfvwithin the
premises have been submitted to and approved inwriting by the Local Planning Authorily.
The measures shalt be provided in accardance with the approved detail before the

premises are occupied.

Reason: To enswe that the use of the premises does not prejudice the amenities of the
public or the accupiars of nearby premises due to noise poliution.

15. Mo development shall commence untld details of drainags, excavations and security during
and post construction aleng the railway boundary have been submilled to and approved in
writing. These measures shall be in place during the period of construction and any post
construction fencing shall be retained tharaaftar.

Feason: To protect the stabilily of the radway embankment and in the interest of railway
safety.

16, COT7 Detaile of Materials

17. C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recyeling Facilities

18. C23 Details of Archasological Investigation

189. Mo development shall commence until the statitory extinguishment of the part of the pant
of the adjacent footpath required to provide the access, untess otherwise agreed in writing

by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure adequate access to the site in the interests of tighway safety.

20. No development shall commence until & schems to prevent parking at the frontage of no.
400 Green Lanes has been submitted to approved in wriling by the Lacal Planning
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented prior the occupation of any dwelling hereby
approved and shall thereafter be retained. Nolwithstanding the provisions of the Towm
and Country Flanning {General Permitted Development) Crder 1685 or any amending
Order, ne changes shall be made 1o the frontage or any means of enclosure without the
written permission of the Local Planning Authority,

Reason: [n the inlerests of highway safety.

21. 058 Cycle parking spaces
22 C51A Tirme Limited Perrmission

Site and Surroundings

The sife forms an area of back land to the rear of no. 483 to 49% Green Lanes, which is made of
up two areas, The area to the north, accounting for approximately three quariers of the site,
comprises a former, now largely claared, area of trees. The soulhern area is a car park and
repair garage access from 483 Green Lanes. The site also includes no. 488 Green Lanes itself.
The remaining trees on the site largely comprise those subject 1o Tree Preservation Orders.
These orders cover five trees in lotal, namely: a Horse Chestnut along the boundary with the
public footpath to the north, an Oak and an Ash to the soulh of this point, & further Ash is localed
in the centre of the site and a2 Weeping Ash to the northwest corner of the site. in addition, there



Page 89

are a number of significant mature trees to the western boundary that appear 10 be on Network
Rail land.

The area is of mixed use, o the north on the other side of the public footpath lies Glebe Court
elderly person accommodation, with residential dwellings to the northeast and St Jehn's Chureh
beyond. To the east are the properties fronting Green Lanes that are largely either in entirely
commercial use or have a commercial use at ground floor and a residenlial use above. Whilst
many of the rear yards area are clearly in commercial use, some {including no. 485 Green Langs)
provide residential amenity space. To the south is a car park serving a car rental business at 477
to 478 Green Lanes, bayond which is a nursing hoime with a single storey rear projecting
exiending deep into the site towards the ralfway. Finally to the west, on the opposile side of the
deep railway cutting, are residential dwellings fronting Caversham Awvanue.

The site is allocated within the Unitary Development Plan as a Site Intended for Development
(10H). The retevant table suggests that it may be possible to achieve 30 dwellings on the {1.38
hectares of land,

The railway embankment is allocated within the LUDP as a Wildlife Corridar,

Proposal

This application is for 36 residentiat unils arranged as an E-shaped pan two and part three slotey
block with accommodation in the roof space. The three storey element will front the existing
public footpath that forms the nothern boundary with the site, with the thiee storey element
facing towards the raitway. Both elements will provide a partial courtyard incorporating open
gpace, parking and replacement tree planting.

The proposal provides for a contemporary design with a mixture of brick and rendered panels,
with balconies to the courtyard and radway elevations. The pitched roofs incorporate both
projecting and inset dormer windows, along with providing ascreening for roof top terraces.

The scheme includes 18 affordable units located primarily tocated within the block fronting the
public footpath these include 5 x 4 bed houses arranged over three floors with a small private roof
terraces above and garden areas adjacent to the public footpath along with 4 x 1 bed and $x 2
bed flats.

The site utilises an improved existing access from Green Lanes that will incorporate part of the
adjacent public foolpath, The access leads to a courlyard area providing 30 car parking spaces,
36 secure and covered cycle parking spaces and refuse and recyching storage.

Relevant Planning Decistons

TRO8/2229  Redeveloprnant of sile by the erection of & part 2, part 3-storey block of 42
residential units (comprising 5 % 1-bed, 20 x 2-bed, 15 » 3-bed, 2 X 4-hed)
incorporating 21 affordable units, with accommeodation in roof space, roof terraces,
balconies and dormer windows, tagether with provision of assoctated car parking
and access to Green Lanes, refused in April 2009 for the fellowing reasons:

The proposed development by reason of its siting, size, scale, design, massing
and proximity to site boundaries would result in the introduction of an overly
dominant and visually intrusive form of development that would be detrimental to
the character and appearance of the surrounding area and the visual amenities
enjoyed by neighbowing properties, as well as representing an overdevelopment
of the site contrary to policies (NG, (1GD2 and {13303 of the Unitary



PREME/0065

PRE/OBAOOGY

Page 90

Bevelopment Plan and Policy 48.8 of the London Plan (2008}, as wel as the
objectives of PPS1 and PPS3.

The proposed amenity space is of insufficient size and inadeguate quatity to
provide for the needs of future occupiers, in particular for the proposed family
sized accommodation. This would result in an unsatisfactory and unsustainable
form of residential development, contrary to Policies {501 and (1149 of the
Unitary Devefopment Plan, as wetf as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3.

The proposed first fioor batconies, second floor windows and balconies to
elevation A4, facing Glebe Counl, would unduly prejudice through overlogking and
loss of privacy the amenities enjoyed by neighbouring propertias, parlicutaly
Glebe Court itself and the amenity space of Glebe Court and ne.'s 501 o 508
Green Lanes, contrary to Policies (G0, (HGE2 and ()HE of the Unitary
Development Plan, as well as the objectives of PR51 and PPS3,

The proposed roof gardens to hlocks A, B and C would unduy prejudice through
overiooking and |oss of privacy the amenities enjoyed by neighbouring properties,
particularly Glebe Court and no.'s 501 to 505 Green Lanes and to a lesser axtent
no.'s 483 to 499 Green Lanes, contrary to Paolicies (1$GEH, (1MGD2 and (|18 of the
Unitary Developmenl Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3.

The proposed development would result in an unacceptable outiook and levels of
light for the future residents of units CG.2, BG.1 and BG .2 and thek respactive
amenity space, in respect of the proximity to the requisite public footpath relaiing
wall and units BG.2, 85,3, BG.4, AG 1, AG.3, AG.4 and AG.6§ and their respective
amenily space, in respect of the proximiy to the railway embankment significantly
compounded by the presence of 2 row of large established lrees and overhanging
balconies. This would result in an unsatisfactory and unsustainable form of
residential development, conlrary to contrary to Policies ()G and {)GD2 of the
Unitary Development Plan and Policy 3£.6 of the London Plan (2008), as well as
the objeclives of #FS1 and PRSI,

In the absence of an appropriate mechanism to secure adeguate noise attenuation
measures to screen no. 501 Green Lanes from vehicle noise from the proposed
access, the proposed development would have an unacceptable impact on the
amenities of this dwelling contrary to policies {(1GER1, (HG02, (1JENG and {IBEN3D
of the Unitary Development Plan and Policy 44.20 of the Londen Plan {2008), as
wetl as the objectives of PPS1T, PPS3 and PPG24.

The loss of T2 (Qak), T3 (Ash), T4 {Ash) and T5 (Weeping Ash}, without adeguate
replacements, would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the area
and the street scene, in particular views from the adjacent public footpath,
resulting in a loss of amenity to the surrounding residential properties contrary to
policies (11/C38 and (IC39 of the Unitary Development Plan,

Proposed demolition of exisling property at 439 Green Lanes and erection of 57
fats within part 3, part 4, part 5-storey blocks (20 x 1-bed, 18 x 2-bed, 18 x 3-bed)
with 82 caw parking spaces - Advice issued.

Proposad redevelopment of site by the erection of 46 residential units in 3 blocks -
Inilial advice given,



Page 91

TRE9T16  Erection of 2 three-storey blocks to provide 29 one-bedroom and 1 two-bedroom
tlats {sheltered housing) and the partial rebuilding of 49% Green Lanes to provide
social room and 2 guest sitting reoms together with the formation of new access
road and the provision of parking facilities, withdrawn fapsed January 1958,

TP/B4/0734 Residential development (Qutling) including access and the demolition of no. 469
Green Lanes, refused August 1984 for reasons retating to iack of comprehensives,
insufficient access width and demochition of 485 resulting in an enbatanced propeny
detrimental to the street scene.

An appeal was upheld and parmission granled. The inspeclor concluded that no.
487 Green Lanes would he of sufficient size and scale to not appear out of
character with the surrounding properties, that access to the adjoining land could
be secured by condition and that a 4.8 metre wide sccess with pedestrian footway
coutd be provided and was adequate,

Surraunding Area Planning History:

{Rear of 481, Green Lanes):

TRIO4/0658 Demolition of existing buildings at rear and erection of a single storey office
building and provisions of 4 No. parking bays, granted November 2004,

Consultation

Publig

Consultation letters have been issued {o 120 neighbouring properties, The intial consuttation
period expired on 14™ September 2009 and the current re-consultation period will expire on 207
Oetober 2009, At the time of writing 7 replies have been received, whilst many residents
comment that they do not object to the principte of the development, they state the following
CONCEMS!

Character and Appearanta
s Loss of unspoilt naturat Bnd
«  Overdevelopment, above what is acceptable in an outer London borough
» Loss of protected trees, which report suggests have 50-80 years of life and no pressing
reasan for their loss
« Rigk to only remaining tree during construction
« Loss of rees surrounding the site
v Encroachment into wildlife corridor
o Qut of characler, style and height do net reflect the surroundings
» 4 storey continuous line of development when viewed from the rear of Caversham Avenue
+ Proxinity to boundaries
« Overbearing impact on public footpath

Impact on Amenity
«  Noige and disturbance from traffic, paricularly 1o no. 501 Green Lanes
o Heflection of irain neise to Caversham Avenug
v hMeighbours already impacted upon by surrounding developmeants
« Loss of privacy
= Light pollution
+ Impact on Glebe Court



Page 92

Change in views from neighbouring properies

impact on guality of life of local residents

Site currently acts as a buffer between Green Lanes and Caversham Avenug
Height of trees shown on the plans is & misreprasentation

Balconies are an over dominant feature

Little reduction in impact from the previous proposals

Highways and Parking
= Access would be unsafe
« Lack of highway capacity
Existing conversions already place significant pressure an parking and congestion
Potential impact of future developrment 1o the south
Lack of parking, including visitor parking
Existing impact on adjacent recent from parking cars
Disregard for existing double yellow line restrictions
Lack of barrier between public footpath and proposed access
Potential for cars to mount the public feolpath
Access standards are less than required in 1984 appeal, whilst Green Lanes is busier
Reduction in width of public foolpath
irmpact of open car parking areas on the salety of the public footpath
tnadequate consideration af right turning vehictes into the proposed access
Emergency service including fire brigade access
Keep clear markings are insufficient

& & & & = & ¥ F 8 & 8 @

Other

« |mpact on protected species including stag beetles, slow worms and bats; as well as a
nurnber of birds

« Lack of play areas for children within the development

«  Developers should not provide contributions towards off-site open space to obtain
planning permission

« Lack of capacity at local schools, GP's and other local services

s Parfy wal agreements may be required

» Lack of consuitation by developer

tn addition, a response has been received from no, 501 Green Lanes regarding the potential to
upgrade the windows within this property. n summany, he letter states that 'without prejudice’ to
any objections to the scheme, if the development is to go ahead, the owner would welcome such
Wworks,

The Parish of St John the Evangelist expresses concern regarding the scale of development, the
traffic it will generate and its impact on the local community suggesting that a smatier
development would he preferable and more suited to the site. Further concerns are raised
regarding the need for a barrier to separate the proposed access and the public footpath.

Fox Lane & District Residents' Association objects to the application on the grounds that
+ Proposal is oo large, high-density development, which together with ils appearance, is
gt of keeping with the residential character of the area
+ The access is toc close to the public footpath and to the busy Green Lanes/Bourne Hill
nction, which would be hazardous for pedestrians and other vehicles
« MNoise and disturbance from vehicles



Page 93

v The units are very cramped for the number of people expected to cccupy them, The
rooms are very small — this is totally out of keeping wilh olher residential properties in the
araa. 5o litle space for each peyson would be very stressful.

+ There is not encugh car parking space for the number of units/people. Although residents
of some units will nol require a parking space, inevitably others will require two spaces, o
more, alss vigitors and trades people would require parking space. This woulld cause
even more parking problems in surrounding strests.

s  The loss of tress

« Developmenl is still oo close the footpath and is overbearing

+ HMNoise and disturbance from roof terraces

« RNotwilhstanding the changes, the gardens remain very small, particularly the & terraced
houses.

+ The gardens are ovarlpoked from the public foolpath and are uniikely to be used, instead
simply collecling rubbish

»  The living roem windows ook out on to this area and the path, as there is no other
communal space in the units the occupants miaht feel that being overtooked in this way is
an invasion of their privacy.

+ This alevation faces north therefore the 'gardens” would get very liltle sun and then only
very early in the momning and kate in the afternocon/evening for six or eight weeks in
midsummer, and none at all for the rest of the year. 0 all probability not very moech would
grow in the gardens and, as there is so hittle internal space, they would be used as storage
arcas for iteims which passersby might well regard as rubbish. On the plans there
appears to be hedges between each garden and along the footpath boundary, this woutd
create even more shade and reduce air girculation; thus the gardens would become damp
and dreary and be of no use except for storage and would be an eyesore to passershy.

Councillor Hurer has written to endorse and support the concerns of the Residents’ Association.
Me also states particular concern regarding the significant additional pressure on the already busy
junclion and if vehicles are permitted to turn right out of the site it could become an accident black

spot.

Christian Action Housing Association {who own Glebe Court) have not commented on the current
proposal but did object 1o the previous scheme based upon overlooking, loss of sun light, lack of
amenity space, overbearing and out of character, backland site requiring less dense
development,

Councifior Frescott has not commented on the current schame bt previously wrote in support of
residents concerns commenting that whilst he believes the previous proposat would be
inappropriate and over-intense development under any circumstances, his pringiple concern is
about access from Green Lanes. The proposed vehicle access is very close lo the busy junction
of Green Lanes, Hedge Lane and Bourne Hill, yet this junclion has already been the focus of
mach critical attention for a very fong time. Traffic waiting to cross the junction heading nosth is
ofter backed up beyond the proposed enfrance, and there is also 2 bus stop on the south-bound
lane immediately opposite, He cannot see how the design of this development could
accommodate a sufficiently wide access-way al all bul, if the proposal is accepted a condition is
saught to restrict vehicular access to be via the north-bound lane of Green Lanes ONLY, in other
words, acocess to and exit from by feft turn only. The sheer volume of traffic passing at the
lncation of the proposed access-way would mean that tuens to and from the south-Bound lane
would effectively compromise the nearby junction itself for much of the day, and this would have a
knock-on effect on much of the surrounding road network. He further asks that highway
alterations are made (and paid for by the Applicant via 106} to physically enforce this condition,
For the safety of all road users, the south-bound side of Green Lanes should not be accessible
AT ALL at this point. If Officers are minded to approve, a request is made that the apptication be
considered by Planning Committee, Finally, consultation with Transport for London is requesled.



Page 94

Dravid Burrows MP has not commented on the current scheme but wrate to objects to the
previous application stating concerns regarding:

» The scale of development impacting upon the character of the surrounding area and the
amenity of neighbouring residents, particularly those direct neighbours who will be most
affected by the buildings

v Impact on local environment, wildlife and the loss of protected trees, which the developers
repaort confirms appear to be in a reasonable condition

s |mpact on the surrounding road aetwork, particularly as access will be onto busy Green
Lanes close to an already difficult junction, giving rise to the lkelihood that traffic will be
impeded.

« The narrowness of the access, at points allowing only 1 car to pass, with the potential for
vehicles to encroach on the footpath compromising pedestitan safety, many of whom are
children, and also a significant loss of amenity

»  Cumulative impact with other developmen!, including that at New River Creseent, on local
infrastructure

Fxternal

Tharmes YWater does not abject to the applisation, bul seeks informatives relating to surface water
drainage and the minimum water pressure that Thameas Water aims to provide.

Metwork rail has not commented on the current propoesal but did not object to the previous
scheme subject to conditions relating to drainage, a construction management plan, details of
excavations, enclosure and securily of the ratway boundary, noise allenualion and landscaping

L.ondon Fire & Emergency Planning Authorily has not commented on (he current scheme, but
were satisfied with the previous schemes proposals, but commented that dry riser maimns or
domestic sprinkiers may be required to overcome internal travel distance excesses.

Enfield Primary Care Trust has not commented on the current scheme, but did not consider the
previous proposal would cause undue hardship on local GF practices in the area, and as such
does not object to the proposat.

[ntermnaf

Diractor of Edoecation, Child Eervices and Leisure commenls that there is a lack of school places
in this area, which they are seeking to address through expansions and new schools, a S106
sontribution is sought. The average child yield from the proposed development has been
calcidated, based upon the current ratios, as 5§ primary places and 1 secondary place. The
related capital costs based on the 2008/08 mutipliers are detailed below:

Primary
b places x £13%,115 = £65 575

Secondary
1place x £19,762 = £18 762

TOTAL = EB85,337

The Affordable Housing Enabling Officer comments that 2 50% affordable housing provision has
been negotiated with a 60% intermediate and 40% social rented splil. Whilst the targer family
accommodation for rent is supported and that space standards result in greater storage for
restdents, a8 3 bed wheeglchair unit had been requeasted.



Page 95

The Council's Place Shaping Team has not commented on the current scheme but in response to
the previous scheme commenied that issues may arise with access from Green Lanes but that
the mix of housing appeared to be what was required in the Borough, reof gardens are good for
increased amenity space but should be well designed and accessible for use; and, cansideration
needs to be given to the wider impact of varicus infilling schemes an the A408/surrcunding araa.

The Head of Economic Devetoprant has not commented on the current scheme b his previous
response stated that whilst the proposal would not displace an employmeant generating activities
he is concerned about the potential increase in local traffic congestion in the town centre, arising
from the proposed access arrangements at Green Lanes to and from this development site,
which could serve to detract from the health and vitality of the retail centre of Pakmers Green. He
notes that the applicant refers to a2 precedent to backland redevelopment having already been set
through the construstion of Skinners Court - bt that scheme, in fact, is not backland
development, as it is served directly from Fox Lane, not Green Lanes, The proposed access point
is close to a set of traffic lights at Green LanesiBourne Hill, from which there is very often a long
tadback south wards along Green Lanes and directly across the proposed access point. There is
also & pinch point in the widlh of the access read alongside No. 499 which would appear 1o
prevent 2 cars passing along the whole route. Such a pinch point coudd | | suggest, give rise to
queues forming from both directions on Green Lanes [ especially at peak times)] as vehicles wait
to turn into the site, theraby increasing the local congestion levels, If 5o, the retailers and
hbusinesses in Green Lanes are likely to become very displeased as it could deter thedr
custorners. In the cirgumstances | suggest that the traffic nplications be very carefully

considered at this stage.

The Counci's Arboriculluralist previously commiented that the lrees T1 lo T4 stand i a row more
ar less toward the centre of the site. Hence, whilst they alf remain the full development potentiat
cannot be exploited. The weeping ash T5 stands adjacent to the rail embankment and is
encroached upan by the nearby trees. From my recollections of previously visiting the site (in
garly 2008} | recall that all the trees have various defects (listed in the report). It might be possible
to relain all the trees if the development proposals were substantially modified and reduced in
scale, and the trees subjected o works to substantially reduce their existing visual impact to
make them compatible with their new surroundings, The Horse Chestnut T1 slands in close
praxirnity o the existing acesss to the site. The report recommends an adeguate root profection
ZoNe to protect the tree but also records that a trench has been excavated in close proximity {o
the tree and revealed limited root develapment probably as a result of surfaces! building
instatiation in close proximity to the tree resfricting root growth. As long as the precaulionary
measures cutlined in the report are adhered to in my opinion the tree could be successfully
retained, although it should be acknowledged that this tree too has limilalions in terms of its long
term contribution to the site. In addition the scheme as it stands does not compensate for the
loss of the trees in terms of adeguately screening the developrient and providing sufficient
amenity space.

Relevant Policies

London Flan (2008}

24.9 The Suburbs: Supporing sustainable communities
3A1 Increasing Supply of Housing

342 Borough Housing Targets

3A3 Maximising the potential of sites

3A5 Haousing chaoice

3AG Chality of new housing prowvision

aas Definition of affordable housing



Page 96

3A8 Allordable housing targets

3440 Megotiating affordable housing in individual private residential and mixed-use
schemes

3401 Affordable houeing thresholds

3AT Agdressing the needs of London's diverse population

acH Integrating transparn and development

ac.z Improving Cenditions for Cyceling

3023 Parking Strategy

48,3 Sustainable Design and Construction

447 Renewable Energy

4412 Flocding

4413 Flood risk management

4A.14 Sustainable drainage

45 20 Readucing nolse and enhancing soundscapes

4B.1 Design principles for 8 compact city

4B8.2 Architectural design

4B8.6 Respect the context of local communitiss

Annex 4 Marking standards

Unitary Development Plan

G0 Regard to Surroundings / Integrated into Local Community
(nGo2 Qualify of Life and Visual Amenity

(ING03 Character / Pesign

fIE06 Traffic Generation

{(IhGD3 Site Access and Servicing

{43012 Development in Areas at Risk from Flooding

{I1y¥aD13 ncreased Risk of Flooding downstream

{II}HE Range of size and Tenure

f1IHH8 Privacy and Overloaoking

fiHg Amenity Space

(T3 Creation or improvement of accesses

(INT16 Adequate access for pedestrians and disabled persens
fIC38 Loss of trees of public amenity value

(I3 Replacement of frees

{I}EMG Minimise impact of development {noise, pollution and vibration}
{I}EN3 Mature consensatinn

{I1INENS Development in sites of nature conservation impeniance
{INEMT1 Wiidlife Cornidors

fIEM30 Land, air, noise and water pollution

Local Developmenl Framewark - Core Strateqy Praferred Optiohs

The Planning and Compulsory FPurchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a
Locat Development Framewark (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is al an early stage in its adoption
pracess, As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevanl objectives are reported
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy

direction,

S01 Sustainability and Climate Change
s02 Biodiversity
503 Pratect and enhance Enfield's environmenta quality,



Page 97

SO6 High quality, sustainably constructed, new homes 10 meet the aspirations of local
pecple

S04 Affordable Housing, Family Homes and Social Mix

501t Safer and stronger communities

S015 Presarve the local distinctivenass

5017 Safeguard established communities and the guality of the local envirenment

SO Sustainabie Transpor

CP1 Suslainable and Efficient Land Use

CR2 Sustainable Design and Construction

CP5 Air, Water, Noise and Light Pollution and Contaminated Land

CPid Managing the supply and location of new housing

CPiz Housing Mix

CP14 Safer and stronger communities

CP28 Promoting sustainable transpert and improving access for pecple with restricted
mobility

CR31 Walking and Cycling

Other Matenal Consideratinong

FPS1 Dedivering Sustainable Communities
PPSA Housing

FPSS Biodivarsity and Geological Consenation
PPG13 Transport

PPG24 Molse

Analysis

Principle

The proposal has the potential to contribute to the quantily and range of accommodation
available, as required by the London Plan, in particular through the provision of affordable
housing. The area is characterised by a mix of commercial and residential uses. The principle of
residential developmant of the site was also previously established at appeal, whilst this
permission lapsed some considerable time ago, the site Is also allucaled within the adopted
Unitary Development Plan as ‘Site Intended for Development {10H), The relevant table suggests
that it may be possible to achieve 20 dwellings on the 0.39 hactares of land. As such, subject to
the resciution of the below malters in respect of the scale of development, impact ch
neighbouring properties and access maters, the principle of the development of the site for
residential purposes is considered acceptahle.

Character and Appearance of the area

Density

The site is within 800 meties of Falmers Green dislfic! centre within an area characierised by
mixed-use developiment including semi-detached and terraced houses and flats. for the
purposes of the London Plan 2008 density matrix, it is considered the site lies within an urban
area. The site is located within PTAL 2. The density matrix suggests a density of 200 to 450
hakitable rooms per heclare, Given the predominance of units with batween 3.1 10 3.7 habitable
rooms within the vicinity of the site the matdix suggests a unit range of 55 to 145 units per
hectare, which is the middle density option within PTAL 2-3 Urban. This indicates that an
acceplable densily would be towards the middle of the 200 to 450 hrph.



Page 98

The propasal is for 36 fiats {8 x 1-bed, 15 x 2-bed, 6 x 3-bed and 7 x 4-bed resulting in 120
habitable rooms giving a residential density of 312 hrph (140/3850x10,000) or 83 uh, These lie
just below the middle of the range set cut above and indicate that the density is likely to be
acceptable. However, advice contained in PPS1 and PPS3 states that & numerical assessment
of density must not be the sofe test of acceptability and must also depend on the attainment of
appropriate scale and design relative to character and appearance of the surrounding area. In
this instance the backland nature of the site is a matertat factor that will limit the scale of any

proposal,

The previous application was refused partially dug to the proposed overdeveiopment of the site.
In particuiar concerns were expressed regarding the scale of the proposal, extent of site coverage
and proximily to the sile boundaries. Mowever, the curent scheme provides for reduced butding
depths with 8 conseguential reduction in scale and site coverage along with an increase in
distance from the site boundaries providing for larger areas of amenity space, These reductions
comhine with the design features of the buliding that seek to reduce Hs cveralt mass by lhe use of
projecting elemenis and variation of materials. Overall, having regard to both the numerical and
physical elements of the scheme, iLis considered that the proposal would now result in an
acceptable scale of devetopment and would not result in an overdeveloprnent of the site.

Amenity space provision

The propased amenily space provision for the blocks comprises a mixture of roof terraces,
balcomies, areas along the northern and western boundaries and a communal garden area within
the courtyard. The previous apglication was refused due to the insufficient size and inadeguale
guality of the amenity spaces provided. The current appiication, however, provides for significanl
improvements to the guality of the open space provide. This is achieved by providing a larger
central courtyard amenity area for communal use, along with enlarged ‘rear’ garden areas along
the norlhern and western boundaries whilst retaining roof terraces and balconies. Whilst some
concerns remain regarding the usability of the areas along the northern boundary, it is considered
their increased depth significantly increases the likelihood that hey will be constructively used

cpaces.

Int respect of the amount of amenity space provided the UDP standard seeks amenily space to be
equal to at least 50% of the Gross Internal Area (GIA) of the proposed 1-bed flats, 75% of the
Gla of all other flats and 100% of the GIA for houses, Balconies may provide an alternative form
of amenity space provided that they are not detrimental to the privacy of adjoining occupiers. The
provision of amenity space in the form of baiconies and roof terraces should not exceed 15% of
the total amenity space provision. Eight of the proposed units are 1 bad flats, five are houses
and the remaining twenty-three are 2, 3 and 4 bed fiats. This results in an amenity space
reguiremnent of 2,241 square metres (269 x 50%, 625 x 100% & 1908 x 75%). The total propused
amenity space is 1,848 or 64% of the total GiA, resulting in a deficiency of 293 square metres. In
addition, approximately 500 square metres or 27% of the amenity space is provided in the form of
terraces and bafconies, which significantly exceeds the 15% stated within the UDP. However, in
light of guidance within PFPS1 and PPS3 on a more fiexible approach to planning standards,
regard must also be had to the context of the development including its preximity to Falmers
Green Town Centre and location along a busy arferial route. These factors must be balanced
against the backland nature of the site. In addition, consideration must be given to whether an
off-site contribution could mitigate the impact on the proposed onsite deficiency.

The site is approximalety 800 metres walking distance from Broomfield Park, Whilst this is
beyond the generally accepted 5 minute (400 metre) walking distance, it is the nearest usable
open space within & built up area and is likely to be used by future residents. Maving regard o
the extent of the deficiency, it is considered that & contribution fowards improvements to
Broomfield Park may address the reduced level of on site provision. 1Lis considered that such a



Page 99

contribution, provided it ts appropriatety allocated, would mest the tests of Circular 05/05 and
wolld accord with the objectives of the Mayor's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Providing
for Children and Young People's Play and Infarmal Recraation,

The Park Business & Development Tearm has identified thal whilst there has been a recent
replacement of some of the play equipment at Broomfield Park, there remains a deficiency in
respect of natural play facilities. Natural ptay is a key aim of both the Mationat and Borough Play
Surategies, VWhitst improvernents continue to be made o natural play within the Borough, no such
facilities are currently present at Broomifield Park, Thus far such schemeas have cost
approximately £50,000. Another scheme at 90-120 Green Lanes required a contribution of
£35,000 towards such as scheme, whare a far greater on site deficiency was present. Having
regard to the more limited deficiency in this case, it is considered that the application shouid
contribute a surm of £15,000 of the cost of a scheme in Broomfiedd Park. This conlribution has
been agreed by the developer and can be secured within a 5106 agreement. Having regard to
the improved play facilities that will result from Lhis contribution, for the benefit of both the
occupiers of the proposed development and the wider communily, it is considered that the on sile
deficiency has bean adequately addressed, As such, the proposed amenity space provision and
contribution are acceptable.

Design and Impact on the Street Scene

The proposed deveiopment would not genarally be visible from Green Lanes, save for down the
access to 1he site, bt would be prominent from the adjacent public foolpath and adjoining
properties. The proposal provides for a moderm design with architectural features thal seek to
‘break up' the mass of the building with projecting elements and the variation of colour and
materials. The scheme has been designed (0 provide an active elavation to the public faotpath,
whilst balancing the overicoking issues considered in detail befow.

The previous apphication was refused due to the overall scale of the proposed buildings and their
proximity 1o the site boundaries. However, the current proposed has been revised to seek to
address these concerns. in paricular, the depth of the buildings have been reduced, separation
from the northern and western houndaries increased and dummy apexes added to the ends of
the blocks to more closely accord with the pitehed roofs of ihe serrounding dwellings. The
application has recently been revised to provide more activity to the elevation facing the site
access by providing a projecting elemant and the provision of additionat windows to the elevation,
Cverall, it is considered that the previous concerns regarding the design and scale of the scheme
have been adequately addressed.

Impact an Neighbouring Properties and Futire Occupiers

Clutfook

The proposed development is origntated at 80 degrees to ne.'s 19 to 28 Glebe Court and projects
some 34 metres from the eastern elevation of Glebe Cowt. However, the proposed building is
located 8 metras from the southern etevation Glebe Court at its nearest point. In addition, much
greater separation is present o the remaining units within Glebe Court. Having regard to the
open courtyard to the eas! of Glebe Court, the reduction in ground levels on the application site
and the separation referred to above, it is not considered thal the propesal would have an
unaceeptable impact on the outlook of the residents of Glebe. Morgover, this current application
proposes greater separation than was previcusly considered acceptable within the 2008 scheme,

Planring permission has been granted for an office building to the rear of no. 481 Green Lanes.
It is not considered the proposal wauld adversely affect the amenities of the occupiers of this



Page 100

tuilding norwould there be an unacceptable impact from the building to the rear of no. 481 Green
Lanes on the proposed development.

it i3 considered that the proposal weould maintain sufficient separation fram the remaining
surrounding propetlies such thal there would be no uwnacceplable impact on outlook fromm these
properties.

Turning to the cutlegk from the development for future occupiers, the previous application was
refused due to the proximily of the proposat to the refaining wall fo the public footpath and the
railway embankment, which at their nearest points were only 1.4 and 4 metres, respectively. The
surrant propasal has increased this separalion to 2 minimum of 3.8 metres and § metres,
respectively. In addition, in alt but ene case, units have been reconfigured to ensure the northern
elevations facing the retaining wall {o the public footpath is not the only aspect. Unfortunately,
unit BG.2 does provide a single northern aspect. However, there is between 4.3 and 4.5 metres
of separation before the retaining wall, which itself will be between (1.6 and 0.8 metres high. The
applicant has also provided Blustrations o show the absence of buildings on the other side of the
public footpath ensure that the unit will have an appropriale sky aspect and levels of light,
Owerall, it is considered this issue has been adequately addressed,

Qverlooking

The proposed development will result in windows facing lowards Glebe Court al ground, first and
second floor level. The previcus application was refusad due to the extent of overlooking from
the first ficor halconies, second floor windows and balconies facing Glebe Courl. The current
application has removed the dormer windows and balconies from this elevation, which
significantly reduces the extent of overlooking of Glebe Courl and the perception of being
overlooked. In addition, there has been a slight increase in separation from the norlhem site
boundary, Having regard to the existing largely open views from the public footpath into the
Glebe Court site and the reduction in activity in this proposed elevation, it is considered that the
proposal would not result in an unacceplable degree of overlooking of Glebe Courd, its related
amenily space or the amanity space of no’s 501 to 508 Green Langs.

A8 discussed above, the application has recently been revised to provide for increased activity to
the elevation facing the entrance {o the site. This involves additional fenestration that has the
potential to overlook the rear of the properties fronting Green Lanes. Whikst this would also bring
the benefit of increased natural survedlance of the access and some of the rear gardens to the
praoperies fronting Green Lanas are in commercial use, H is considerad that it will be necessary to
pravide obscured and fixed windows up to 1.7 metres above internal floor levels to protect the
remaining residential gardens.

In respect of the remaiing fenestralion, as well as lhe proposed balconies o lhe south, east and
west elevations, having regard to the tree screening along the railvay embankment, the largely
commercial use of the rear of the properies fronting Green Lanes and, moreover, the separation
distances and angles involvad, it is considerad that these elernents of the scheme would not

result in an enacceptahle tevel of averlocking.

in respect of the proposed roof terraces, the previows application was refused due to the
panoramic views and the potentiat for large numbers of people to overlock adjoining properties.
However, the roof desian has been revised to provide screens at avérage ave tevel of 1.7 metres
in heighl, which, along with durmrmy apaxes, serve to substantially prevent overlooking from the
proposed roof terraces. The application has recently been revised by reducing the height of the
screens franting the railway, as this would improve the ocuticok for future residents, without a
significant impact on the residents of Caversham Avenue due to the separation distances and
tree screening.



Page 101

Other matlars

Concerns have been raised regarding the overall impact on properties fronting Caversham
Avenue. However, it is that the separation distances, along with the intervening free screening,
prevent there from being an unacceptable impact on the amenities of the residents of these
properies.

The applicant has provided a noise assessment that deals with both railway noise and noise from
the praposad access that will run in close proximity to no's 498 and 501 Green Lanes. The
document proposes construction details for the proposed units including thermal glaring. In
addition, the documant recommends replacement thermal glazing to hoth 489 and 501 Green
Lanes. Whilst it is acknowledged that the resident at no. 501 Green Lanegs maintaing objections
ter the schems, they have weitten to confier that if development is to proceed they would accept
the mitigation measure of replacement glazing. Maving regard to all relevant factors, including
lhe scale of the proposed use and Ekely vehicle movemenls, it is considered that the potential for
noise and disturbance from the proposed access may not itself be sufficient grounds 1o warrant
the refusal of this application. Moreover, there are technical mitigation measures that would
substantially address these concerns. These mitigation measures would require the installation
of glazing and an acoustic fence along the boundary with no, 501 Green Lanes and the public
footpath. It is considered that mprovements to both no. 498 and 501 Green lanes should be
secured by an appropriately worded seclion 106 agreement and that these requirements woulkd
reet the relevant fests in Circuiar (35/05.

Cwerall, it is considered the previous concerns regarding overlooking, outlook for future residents

and securing mitigation measures for vehicular noise {0 no. 301 Green Lanes have all been
adeqguately addressed. As such, this elemant of the scheme is considered acceptable

Affordable housing, unil size mix, tenure and accessibilily

The proposed scheme includes 18 affordable unils comprising 4 x T-bed, 9 x 2-bed and & x 4-bed
and 18 open market units comprising 4 » 1-bed 6 x 2-bed and 6 x 3-bad and 2 x 4-bed wmnits,

The current housing needs assessment indicates that the overall mix of new housing sought
should be as follows: 10% % T-bed, 35% % 2-bed, 38% x 3-bed and 18% x 4-hed. The mix of the
current scheme is as follows; 22% x 1-bed, 42% 2-bed, 17% 3-bed and 18% 4-bed. The scheme
includes an over provision of 1-bed units, a skight over pravision of 2-bed units and an under
provision of 3-bed units. Howsver, having regard to the extent of the deficiencies and, in
particulas, that the scheme provides 38% family sized units with 50% of the schema affordable
housing, it is considered, on balance, that the proposed mix is acceptable,

The Affordable Housing Enabling Officer suppors the scheme and the proposed tenure sphit of
60% intermediate and 40% social rented, which will be secured by a section 106 agresment.

The internal floor areas of the proposed units excesd those set out within the Unitary
Oevelopment Plan and area considered acceptable.

The London Flan seeks at least 10% of the units {0 be wheelchair accessible. The applicant has
amended the scheme to provide 4 units that spacifically meet the standards, with a number of
otiter units within the schame that mest the vast majorily of the refevant criteria. As such, the
proposal exceeds the standards set out within the London Plan and is considered acceplable, A
condition is proposed requiring details of wheelchair accessible units to be submitted and

appraved,



Page 102

Farking and Access

The site is accessed from the A106 Green Lanes is a busy Principal Rd, with a 30 mph {imit. The
PTAL rating {from Tl is low at 2 {albelt the TA says 3). The northern boundary of the site abuts
Public Right of Way 207. This joing Green Lanes approxirately 85m from the A105/4111 junction
and 1uns broadly westwards over the railway through to Caversham Avenuea. The 36 flats would
have 30 off-streal spaces, which Traffic and Transporiation have confirmed would be acceptable
provisian at this location. Four spaces for disabled users are provided, which is considered
acceptable. Full eycle parking provision is indicated, which is indicated as covered and sacured.
Whilst its location is slightly detached, an balance, it is considered acceptable.

The layout provides adequate turning/manceuvring space to serve the site via a new private road
alf Green Lanes alongside belween 499 and 501 Green Lanes, Traffic and transporation
consider a far mare satisfactory scheme would be achieved if ne. 489 is demolished. However, i
is considered that as adeguate access can be provided and the demchition of no. 488 Green
Lanes would provide for an isofated formerly semi-detached property that would be harmiul to the
appearance of the streetscene, the proposed access arrangements are considerad acceptable.

The junction of this new access is adeguate to accommodale vehicles entering & leaving the site
without creating a 1-way operation loffrom the site, Site lines are adeguate. The trafic generatiaon
for the site would he guite modest & should not give rise to undue delgys to Green Lanes, albeit
there is the south-bound bus stop opposite. When this i in use vehicles turning right into the site
will obstruct the scuthhound traffic.

The new access road has to narrow o pass the retained no 499 Green Lanes and relies upon
utilising space from the footpath 1o secure a greater carriageway width. This footpath is currently
around 2.4m wide and up to 800mm coutd be relinquished along this strelch as the aspect of the
path opens up past the development and is othenwise nol running between fairly high fencing
atongside as it does now. The access road's minimum width is 4 8, which will suffice for the
anticipated level of use, albeit there may be one way working past the pinch point.

New 'keep clear' markings would be required on Green Lanes at the new junction, which will
imvolved a Traffic Regulation Order to be funded by the applicant. This will be secured in the
section 106 agresiment,

To remove an area from the right of way for use as cariageway will necessitate a formal Order to
extinguish it as footpalh. This would only be pursued, at the applicant's expanse and risk,
fofiowing the grant of planning permission.

Cencerns have been raised regarding pedestian safety and the lack of space (o provide an
appropriate barrier. However, it is considered that an elevated kerb could be used to provide
adeguate protection 1o ensure that vehicles did not mount the pavement onto the footpath, this
could be secured by condition, In addition, having regard to lhe siles frontage fo the public
footpath and the proposed stopping up of part of the footpath a contribution fowards highway and
footpath improvements will be required. When added to the TRO required above this will involve
a highways contribution of £15,000 o be secured by section 106 agreement. Itis considered
these contributions are necessary and meet the tests of Circutar 05/05.

in teims of internal layout and parking provigion the scheme is acceptable subject to conditions
relating to: hard surfacing, details of levels, enclosure, construction methodelogy, parkingfturming,
junctionfaccess and no implementation until the footpath stopping up is in place.



Page 103

Traffic and Transportation have raised concerns regarding the potential for parking to the frontage
of no, 449 Green Lanes impacting upon the operation of the access. Howewer, & condition is
praposed raquiring a scheme (0 be submilted to prevent parking in this area.

Ir summary, on balance, the parking and access arrangemeants meet the minimum adopted
standards and as such are considered acceptable.

Trees and Biodiversily

The proposal includes the loss of 4 TPO trees (T2 (Oak), T3 {Ash), T4 {Ash} and TS (Weeping
Ashyy and measures to protect the remaining protected tree T1 {Horse Chestniut}.

The applicant's Arboricultural Report provides limited justification for the joss of these trees.
Whilst these trees are not visible from many public vantage points, they can be seen fram the
adjacent public footpath and adjoining properties. However, lhe variation in ground levels and
sifing of bulldings proposed by the applicant make it difficult 4o retain these trees. One of the
reasons for refusal of the previous application was that adeguate replacements had not been
proposed and the layout was such that these could not reasonably be secured by condition.
However, the current application now includes a much larger area of communal amenity space
within the courtyard. This areas shows four replacement trees with malure specimens. Hawing
regard to these replacemeant and that mature specimens will be used, the details of which can he
secured by condition, i is considered this issues has been adequately addressed. |n addition,
the protection of the retained Horse Chestnut could be secured by condition. These views are
supporied by the Council's Arboriculturalist.

The sile adjoins a Wildlife Corridor and concerns have been expressed regarding the proximity of
the new devalopment. However, whilst there are some concerns regarding the impacts of
additional tighting and noise on the Wildlife Corridor it is considered that appropriate mitigation
tan be secured by conditton. This would be in the form of a lighting report to minimise fight
spillage and a biodiversity repror to incorporate bat boxes elc. il is not considered, on balance,
that it would be appropriate {o refuse the application based upon the extent of the impact on the
Wildlife Corridor,

Cther Mallers

It is considered the sustainable drainage syslem detailed below will ensure the development does
nat resull in an unacceptable risk of surface water flooding on or off site.

It appears thal the sile may not have been disturbed for some considerable number of years. As
such, it will be necessary for an archaeclogical investigation to take place prior lo and, if
hecessary, during development. This will be secured by condition.

Conditions will also he reguired in respect of construction vehicle wheel cleaning, restricted hours
— construction sites and further details of noise control including plant and machinery noise.

S108 Matters

A 5108 agresment will be required to secure the provision of affordable housing and acoustic
improvements to no.’s 49% and 501 Graen Lanes, as delait above. In addition, financlal
contribufions will be required to make the development acceplable in planning terms of £85,337
for tocal education provision, £15,000 for play and open space improvemeants to Breomfield Park
ard £15 000 for highway and footpath improvements.



Page 104

Suslamable Bresign and Construction

An Energy Assessment and a Drainage Report, a3 well as a commitment to meet Code for
Sustainable Homes Level 3 accompany the application. The energy report concludes that it wilt
be possible Lo provide a reduction of 10% carban emissions and the generation of 10% of the
anargy requirements from onsite Solar Thermal panels. In addition, passive wind cowls, gréen
roofs, sun pipes, argon filled glass, low Nox boilers, low enargy AAS apphiances, Low flush
cisterns and water buits wilk ke incorparated into the scheme. Finally, further sustainables
drainage measures include soakways and rainwater harvesting syastems. |t is considered that the
accumulation of these matters, detailed within the sustainability assessmeant form, makes for an
acceptable level of sustainable design features. As such, it is considered the scheme accords
with the objectives of policy 44,3 "Sustainable Design and Construction’ of the Londeon Plan.

Conclusion

Ir the light of the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed be granled for the
following reasons:

The proposed development of 36 residential nol detract from the character and appearance or
the visual amenilies of the surrounding area having regard o Pelicies (NGD1, (1WE02 and (13503
of the Unitary Developrient Plan and Policies 4B.8 of the London Plan {2008), as wel as the
ohjectives of the emerging North Circutar Area Action Plan, PPS1 and PPS3.

The proposed development of 36 residential would not unduty affect the amenities of adjoining or
nearby residential properties having regard to Policies (G011 and (302 of the Unitary
Prevelopment Plan, as well as the objeclives of PPE1 and FFS3,

The proposed development of 38 residential unite would nol prejudice through overtooking or loss
of privacy, the amenities enjoyed by neighbouring properties, having regard to Policy {11)H8 of the
Unitary Development Plan, as welt as the objectives of PPST and PPS3.

The proposed development of 36 residential including the provision of 30 parking spaces and 36
aecure oycle spaces woHd not give rise 10 unacceptable on street parking, congestion or hghway
safety issues, having regard to Policies (INDGDES, {(INGEDE and (113713 as of the Unitary
Development Flan, Policy 3C 23 of the London Plan {2008}, as well a8 the objectives of PPGE13.

The proposed development of 36 residential units would not result in an snacceptable fisk of
fluoding or create an unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere, having regard to Unitary
Devetspment Plan policies (G012 and (130 13, as wel as policies 44,12 and 44,13 of the
Lendon Flan 2008 and the objectives of PP525,

The loss of T2 (Qak), T3 {Ash}, T4 (Ash) and TS (Weeping Ach}, having particiiar regard to the
replacement matune specimen secured by condition, weuld not have an unacceptable impact on
the character and appearance of the ares or the strest scehe having regard o poticies (138
and {111C39 of the Unitary Development Plan,



St ETN iR

Il

Page 105

LR Ussill] Bt
L HH

el

ARy g

wiedpp Fedirg 23
L T RUT T E PR T
BT g B . Nl AT T2,

L TRECE ML LS A B
prn

Aerdy, 1, -
AR g

R T

SUFF TAM SO RIS UHLT LK I AYE

el DIE D
dRcalic
2riCIET

FIRLY o

_U..L..r

x..mmmv

Al L e BT

..u...a... s

¥ i we

.;E.._a.u,f o u.w o

LT B0




Page 106

e

175709

-

i 3R T d £ B

I

e e,
ot 1
15 abs

Oren

25

TREQ2n
ZE
LRED/5A
K A
Hemac ey - R gat

BN

CGRCUND FLOGE, PLAN

2 Fatdads Hanm .
&%99 Graan Lares
ordoe il

ARTEEID

ar fakey

A
G !

RHE 2 L9 Cirann Lanaen, tonrioe HH L LGS

B L L W VPO TUI PEE W L R

i
§
!
i

S 3 e
B % e -
n i Oes, 150 708

M Lvda
I

Glebe Court

A Ty e FOGTEATH =

D LY

o

e

e

‘et o m e g a At

0 .,

i ; S
bl M .

i
ey L

&
sl

G T
R
e

e R

H [H]
-
.
oo
H aos
¥ . : ’ r
: =
j-'_n_n.-_.-v_u.;-_---u-'-_-.-_\.-..-?[ll-;"
o i' ) e
L e . J‘] ;o™ "
" b e

1L :
SRR L
C -

R T el

v,
+

A Lt

il ‘f.fvﬁ IR

CE)
A




&i

-~

W2 50074 L5ut
(L st T

S8 CTN uopuD]
SOUE] Wkt LA

L A

W A Ll

WL N TR L LT EE PR

AR L P

Palee 151 re s ke LYK

R DG L TS R LT
R ]
[PV

Page 107

aradf g25L 0 Lot eS
B 130 = eetal { STy

T L e SRl rar S

FAR S L U] L AR T

AR
e - i
(SR EE

LR

[

' T.._*.'

)

7 e

T

o—

JR=

! "1_"'-_-—"?'_ Rt '-T‘—I'T-‘ -H




Page 108

e xﬁi_m .WEG._...._.DZ.GU...L.M

Caieslobd

SEF £ TN Udfen
SRLIET SADIS Gak

TR

BOCE L WaE
w [ Tesl

Frdry ro sy
e PPy S

L g

L (T R LT Y

e R R v e
Lrgp AL TR P TP S T R4

I g e 15 L AL e
SOF SLN UOP-37 THHT] URLS] BGF 1T Sl
RN
2L 0a6R
A3/ TAEE
ab ML

420035




REId HOCA T
TR0

S LT WpedT
LIUE] USRS BEY

ST YN re ey
R R A )

AR 3 g )
Fals Sl A OEL VL aG okl SRS
e e T P e

Eat TENR L LA B - B ]
L LhE

Page 109

P ]
RETE T T R

VI e

SAP CHK Um0 | e D L 18 R
GLigaat
gk
e2rdz342

el zd

e

1e

'

FR I

[ :

H :

I H

=

Hoo P

Fons :
i,

AT O AT

L

Bl Ay

T

cw e S

’
o
a="1="1

Lt

o ;
{ e
T
;

L
- .

e [
) Bt

o




Page 110

; S .
n L . '
: £ . & ;

T NWIE TIAZT 2TVHEIL IG0W

2350 |
S9F LT LOPaLT Bt : 4
' . i : !
1 : i
i : !
! (R
1 . 1 . ]
1 . f [R— _
1 : ;
i O
B R :
e o o .- {
[ H g e Leeymd A - H H i
...... o !
... . - 1
Ve T . !
“ .H-IP-I-I_. . - r . ﬂ
H [ ' : ;
; e : : 7 :
1 i ; b ;
- [ ;
] : e : !
Cien et i P P i
—_— ! % !
wardn g Derg o i . : i
i e . !
Pafan TIE e Yy il B R ;
i : '
AN DAL R Tl SN S m v T :
[ S R R S ' Lo, o yre s m
o n ; oo i ! ;
H 1 4 '
b g et 1 : C— : !
e ; HE : ' =
i S I P . :
18 AT St e by : - : ~
ST DA AHILD T WEIT ML LA K N H P _
H — i
i e ' T . i - I T T A e e mm rrae e :
LS d3gs H . :

EURITEIHN i
w033l 1

oTTEE ”“ : i
- . _. ............................ PO d.__.ﬂ.mrA_n.._p

e




REEG0EA

SEF ETA vopuan
LSUET] Sd@aTh

ETG AL S raay
LI R I P =

[T S
Fafub 87707 v d e i
e Ty L TR MRS

Wl ECRHILG AN R e R e
O H

Page 111

oy g -
“alelg pe - i ) Ly

IR e R

BB L0 AT s LA bGP AN

alidags
= IUAHE
<r;a3alr
2L 0a3E

i

!

SE T

:
;

I.,,m. ! M.”. [ |..

: S T L
op g

arrmEt

e, Tt

]

11 T




HH ENOILYAZTE

G4k SN WORSST
SRlET WanD BEY

it 2D

e, ey T
rram e, Y
L]

- - L3

PV Sl g Ty

P A ey P s e
-

(e EE M Y

P arar e e by s ]

[E e b

TR Mgy R A e e

Page 112

EEPIENS Wimhbin-
o
I e o e Ty A s
-
PR
Fedrte e e
S [Lk wrirpari] Lo ] e e P .
o o . H I.,.".._
[ FRRDIWLT 3N, R
T e T T T R TR T = T i
- - - e T i’ .
... - :
) Z
.- i




Page 113

fruzel SIS
e T

al
wi : :

SOUE ] G Aot

FHTS

L LrEL

3wl hiddg

PR a2 e el I Ty

A e b g7
[PEERUE Y

L
[EE LY LT

arerda il e Fa R T )
PP e S
e T e i
PR

e T

Qe Cam e

L

Fatar Sl 63 St e il
by f e g PR
CH W e LY e a g

't

e - A LTy 3 bR G E R
A e e .
atal il R e e C- . =
Tl L b ] 'y e 1y = 5w

irTiade




PARTA Y
LR

WA SHCILWATE
rau ARSI

- <

St £ hi 450
IR UBEGL GRS
Ihwag

Hh ML MG A I

TR L

AT L
(L

]

G4 TLAT

amor i e e g A ]
P A ey e Fam e
A e e e e iy R
P e e

TwiT
AT IR P LTI T D Ay §
AN A RS ARy

LI R il !
BT T e

Falie P03 T T LA

e R )

(L TR Y PR e

T

At -
AArL e - e L

Fatalin b A Fole

SHP Cah it ] "'y, ) a2 P

PSRN )




[FIXERS
[T

[HLH o

BNOILRAITE 03504048

TR = EE A Parap—
<dv | [ uipud]
SEURT UFHT ESE
EH

Loy

ST PG L A Y
¢ et [

(R TT Wi
N L ENI,

FE P R ey
e

il e PR Ana

Page 115

LT ]

HH MOILFATTI G350 diTdd

FAL




e s w....u_.”q._H.m_?._u“_._._,.g.}m_n_m:

Tee i

(L Bl

SEE 3 Apua
U LS SEb
EHT

L9747 EaT

ST B

Db T LT P T

Page 116

T g i, g day s Ay
~Fu b wan

B TRy LT A

=t

HEL IRAR S IR G My e S A R
R I PV R

R T T L R L

Ay et

L EoN IR TN

e R
L T, T R
LR TS P e
o K

2AR oy 1w |
T

Vi1 3 Sl ey

THE IR DT TR W T R

@

HA NOILEATTT Q3500 0N

wll

2

I KQILYATTT Q350404 d

Lty oy




Page 117

AU Ukt GLE

PR L R R e e A e

[EMECN TR A

ER)30 vhrealprm

[ R

WA R R L LA
L )

B EME RN LR L N
[Ty

B A g g

Ay g 1 g

Ml LI

SGr THH LO=ET "M L] 0 8 SR

MM NCILYAITE S N0IL235 GIS0d0dd

W MOILYAST S NOEETIS 03504044

i el LR




Page 118

SR
!

i

{ N
A S
fg‘_. Sl

)

=i
L]

iy

b aa bl

;
:
A

fra
o
=t

Seran,

— [EXPF R
o TR

P A

o owEsa Elai=ngt il

e AL AT
e dama EEFE L]

A antiraria
R R
R araa

g [ PR

[y

ciii

B

;i’e.@f

L
A

_ %%a_
5
|

[ b
I TR LI

e R

[P FAPAAN

e [RETEPERY



Page 119

Application No:- TP/09/1523

ENFIELD

Councif

RHGrpwn copprghl. Loscar: Darcagh 2 Cedald L AREE2G3. 2007

Development C

Seale - 11250
Timne of plot; 1532

ontrol

- b ?

Date al Hok: DED 12010




Page 120

Application Number: TR/O2/1523 Ward: Palmers Grean
Date of Registration: 22nd October 2008

Contact: David Warden 020 8378 3831

Location: 34, New River Crescent, And Land At Rear OF, 2-32, New River Crescent, London,
M13 5RF

Proposal: Demalition of Mo, 34 New River Crescent and construction of an access road (o
faciiitate the erection of a total of 39 residential units {4 x i-bed, 17 x 2-bed, 11 x 3-bed, 4 X 4-
bed) in 2 pairs of pant 2, pan 3 storey blocks, incorparating accommaodation in roof space with
rear dormer windows, roofl terraces and balconies to front and rear, tegethar with conversion of
detached garage block into 3 x 2-bed units, and provision of associated open and covered car

parking bays,

Applicant Name & Address:

Mewriverside
8853, Green Lanes
London

W21 208

Agent Name & Address:

Stephens Design Associates

The Otd Post Office Stores

Cotterad

Nr Buntingford

Hetis

5G9 90QL

Recommendation: That planning permission be REFUSED for the following reason:

The proposed development by virtue of the substandard size of units the proposed, including the
two bedroarn units 8 and @ and the three bedroom units 6 and 7 in each of the Blocks A to D
{units AG fo AS, BE to BS, C6 to C and DS Lo DF), woldd resuit in an unacceptable standard of
residential accortmodation for future occupants contrary to policy (NGB, {(HGLZ, (G033 and
{H3H18 of the Unitary Development Plan and Folicy 34.6 of the London Plan {2008}

Site and Surrcundings

The site i3 located to the rear of no's 2 to 32 New River Crescenl and includes no. 34 Naw River
Crecsoent. The northern part of the site has 28 garages whilst the southern part of the site i3
vacant. The sauthern part was previously used as allotmants gardens but becames overgrown
since the cessation of the use. This part of the site was subject to enfercement action regarding
rodents, rubbish and Hs unkermpt nature and as a rasult; the site has now been cleared.

tmmediately to the west of the site is the Mew River, which lies adjacent to the Hazeiwood Sports
Grounds. On ail other sides, including the southwaest, the site is surroundad by 2 storey semi-
detached and terraced houseas.

Proposal

Permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site for residentiat use. The proposal includes
the demolition of the end-pi-terrace house at no. 34 New River Crescent to provide a widened
access to the site off New River Crascent.



Page 121

The application includes 39 unils comprising 4 x 1 bed, 17 x 2 bed, 11 % 3 bed and 4 x 4 bed flats
in two part 2 storey and part 3 sterey bfocks with dormer windows to the eastern elevation
providing accommodation in the roof and 3 x 2 bed residential dwellings in the converted garages
retained on the northern part of the site. All olher garages on the site will be demolished,

The plans show a total of 46 car parking spaces, including 7 'unallocated’ spaces. Cycle storage
for 39 cycles is provided within the ground floor area of the connecling blocks linking the three
storey elements, at the end of some of the undercroft parking spaces, under the stairs {o the
former garage blocks and within storage areas adjacent fo the speed humps near Blocks © and
0.

The scheme has been revised reducing the width of the three storey part of Block B, The
exiernal envelope of Blocks A to D now substantially reflect that of the approved 'Schame B

Relevant Planning Decisions

THIO6E2450/0F1 Details of materials, hard and soff landscaping, oycle parking, boundary
treatment, new vehicular access, wheel cleaning, external lighting and surface water drainage
sibmitted pursuant to conditions 02, 43, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08 & 10 of approval under appeat
reference APPAQSI00MADTI2048286/NWF {TP/06/2450) for demolition of building at 34 New
River Crescent and erection of 32 residentiad enits (comprising 4 x T hed, 22 x 2 bedand 6x 3
hed) in 2 pairs of part 2, part 3 storey blocks with accommadation in roof space and rear inverisd
dormer terraces, roof lerraces, logether with conversion and extension of existing single storey
building into 2 one bed studio flats and access to New River Crescent and associated car
parking, currently under consideration.

TPOYOEEY  Demolition of Mo, 34 New River Crescent and canstruction of an access road to
facilitate the erection of a total of 36 residential units {incorporating 9 affordable units), comprising
33 units within two 3-storey blocks {6 x t-bed, 10 x 2-bed, 13 x 3-bed, 4 x 4-bed), with
accormmodation in roof space, rear dormer windows, roof terraces and balconies to front and
rear, together with conversion of detached garage block into 3 x 2-bed units, and provision of
assoclated open and coverad car parking hays,

1. The proposed development due 1o its size and massing would result in the infroduction of
an gverly dominant and visually intrusive form of devetopment detrimental to the character and
appearance of the surrounding area and the visual amenities enjoyed by neighbouring properties,
as well as providing the perception of overdevelopment of the site, contrary to Policies (GO,
(NGO2, ANGD3, (IDHS, (BEN3Z, (INENY, (INENT1, and INC10 of the Unitary Development Plan
and Policy 4B .8 of the London Plan as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3.

This appfication is currenily the subject of an appeal; a hearing is scheduled for 3 February
2010,

TROB/TTS Demctition of No. 34 New River Crescent and construction of an access road o
facilitate the erection of 2 tofal of 38 residential units (8 x 1-bed, 14 x 2-bed, 11 x 3-hed, I x 4-
bed) in two 3 storey Blocks, incorporating accommodation in roof space with rear dormer
windows, roof terraces and balconies to front and rear, together with conversion of detached
garage block into 3 x 2-bed units, and provision of associated open and covered car parking
bays, refused in Marsh 2008 for the following reason;

1. The proposed development due to its size and massing wolld result in the introduction of
an overly deminant and visually intrugive form of development detrimental to the character and
appearance of the surrounding area and the visual amenities emjoyed by neighbouring properties,
as well as providing the perception of overdevelopment of the site, contrary to Policies (MGD1,



Page 122

{NG02, (1NGD3, ([13HS, (I1ENS, (IBENS, (DEN11, and Y010 of the Unitary Development Plan
and Policy 4B.8 of the London Plan as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPES.

An appeal was dismissed in Novembear 2008. The Inspector congidered the increased height and
massing af the connecling blocks would appear unduly dominaling and obtrusive, which in tumn
would also adversely affect the outlook of residants in Maw River Crescent. In addition, the
nspecter considerad the additional overiocking from the Velux style rooflights and replacement of
only hedroom windows with some living room and kitchen windows to the second fioor level of the
western elevation. {Scheme C)

TPOGR2450  Demolition of building at 34 New River Crescent and erection of 32 residential
units {carmprising 4 » 1 bed, 22 x 2 bed and 8 x 3 bed) in 2 pairg of part 2, part 3 storey blocks
with accommedation in roof space and rear invented dormer terraces, roof terraces, together with
conversion and extension of existing single storey building inte 2 one bed studio flals and access
to Mew River Crescent and associated car parking {revised scheme), refused February 2007,
agllowed on appeal Gotober 2007 (Scheme B)

TPOG/M1439  Bemolition of building &t 34 New River Crescen! and erection of 32 residential
units (comprising 30 » 2 bed and 2 x 3 bed} in 2 pairs of 4 storey blocks with baleonies to the east
elevation, togelher with part demolition and conversion of existing single storey buiiding into 2
one bad studio flate and access to New River Crescent and associated car parking, refused
Qctober 2008, dismissed on appeal Octaber 2007, {Scheme &)

Consusttation

Fublic

Consultation letters tssuad to 371 neighbouring properties and a total of 34 responses received
abjecting to the application. These comprise 19 standard letters and 15 individual tetters and
raise some or all of the following points:

Character and appesarancs issuas;

- Scheme B should be the upper limit far this smal backland site
- Scheme C Inspecior stated "extensive development that has been permitted on this narrow
{inear site”

- Overdevelopment
- Materfal increase in habitable rooms {30% on Schemes B and more than Schemes C or D)

- 95 units and 320 hrph exceeds both London Plan PTAL 1 and PTAL 2-3 suburban density
standards

- Site shauld be considered suburban not urban

- Siteis PTAL 1, not FTAL 2

- Fropogal doss not respect the “local context, history, built heritage, character and communities”
as required by the London Plan

- Amenity space weal befow UDP standards, with mare family units and less T bed fiats than
previous schemes

- Need to 'shave off the corner of the garage units demonstrates overdevelopment

- Areg has reached saturation paoint for new housing, particiany with other developments
ineluding Lacey Hall

- Incréased height of garage hlock adds to overdevelopment

- Increased height of link blocks

Imgacl on neighbouring property and future residents IssUes

- Poor standard of accommodation



Page 123

- Vary smalt units

- Motse and disturbance, including parking adjacent 1o no. 36 New River Crescent
- Loss of privacy, including from garage block and access

- Lack of amenity space

- Logs of outiook

- Security to adjacent proparties

- Light paliution from the development

- Loss of views

Sustainability and environmental issues:

- Impact on wildlife on the site, including rare water beelles and bumble bees
- Arga is subject to flooding, loss of natural drainage

- L.oss of Green Chain

- Loss of trees, including those within the cartilage of no. 34

- impact on roots of adjacent rees, particulathy during construction

Highway issues:

- Froportionately less parking than scheme B

- Too few spaces for 39 units and 148 residents

- Compeunding existing traffic problems

- The commen singie siream of tralfic will be worsenad

- Access is on a difficull bend

- Read is a cul through

- Private roads have led to crime and anti-social behaviour efsewhere

- Impact on safety of pedestrians, mcluding those visiting nearby schools
- Due to proposed access, parking to no. 32 and 36 will be compromised

Other matters

- Impact on akready oversubscribed local infrastructure, including sewage infrasfructure
- Repeated spphications impacting residents and draining resouices

- Contrary to adopted Londan FPlan and UDP standards

- Previous applications recommended for approval but refused by planning committee
- All ohjeclions lo previous apphcation should be considerad

- New River Crescent Neighbourhood Watch suppors residents concerns

- Notwithstanding the Article 6 Notice, the developer dogs not own he entire site and penmission
for building on this land will not be granted

- Concerns regarding the applicants traffic and noise experts at the Scheme B Inguiry

- Council should purchase the land for allotments

- Type of people that may occupy 1o overlook the park

A letter of objection has been received from Councillor Pipe stating concerns relating to:

- lnadequale room sizes, as small as 4.9 square metres

- Whether rooms sizes staled on the plans are accurale

- Af fully occupied, it would appear that some units would ba ‘overcrowded’ within the meaning of
5326 of the Housing Act 1985

- Reduced room sizes are a malerial changea fram previous schemes

- Material increase in ocoupants of the development

- Inadequale amenily space

- Buburban, rather than urhan densily standards should apply



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

A letter of ohjection from Friends of Hazelwood Rec has also been received stating concerns
relating to.

- Principte of developraent
- Bevelopment would be an eyesore for park users, in conlrast to the existing gardens of two

storey houses that border the site
- Loss of secluded guite nature of Hazelwood Rec, one of few availatle open and sporting areas
- Overlooking

- Over daminant

-~ Scale, particutarly adjacent to the New River corridor will increase the detrimental environmental
impact

- L.oss of hahitat

- tmpact on future pfans to open up the recreation ground to part of the New River

- Increased traffic and parking problems for residents

- There should be a limit on the number of repeat applications

Exlernal

Enfield Prirnary Care Trust suppors the proposal in principle but states that GP practices in the
local area are already experiencing difficulties meeting national targets for patient access. 1t goes
on to state that a contribution frorm the developer towards the provision of heaith facilites would

help to provide additionat capacily.

London Fire & Emergency Flanning Authority (LFEPA) is not satisfied with the proposats as they
do not incorporate suitable access for fire appliances o block D, the roadway beyond the
entrance to Block C is too narrow and a suitable turning facilily is nod provided for appliances
driving beyond Block C.

Thames Water has no ohjections to the application, subject o directives regarding surface water
drainage and protection of the New River,

Matural England has no objection subject to conditions regarding a lighting strategy, measures to
enhance the natural environmeni and a bat survey of no. 34 New River Crascent.

Any other responses will be reporied at the meeting.

Internal

Director of Education comments the potential average annual pupil product taken o the nearesl
whole numbers is the same as for the previous application: an average of 4 primary aged pupils
and 1 secondary aged pupil a year. As there is inadeguate spare capacily in local schools, A
financial contribution of £72.222 has baan seourad.

Housing Sirategy has not commented on this application, but responded to the previous scheme
stating that a residual value of more than £1 million is generated when using the Established Use
Walue of £500k as in scheme B, which already includes an eternent of affordable housing. En this
Scheme, Housing Strategy note that the a higher Established Use Valus has been assumed of
£1,772.000, thereby reducing the contribution to affordable housing. This potentially affects the
benefits to the provision of affordable housing.

The Place Shaping Team has not commented on this application, hut responded to the previous
seheme stating they had no comments to make.

The Housing Enabling Team has no objection {o the apphcation as it refiects previous schemes.



Page 126

Any response from the Head of Economic Development or Cleansing will be reported at the

megting.

Relevant Paticlies

London Plan {2008)

341
342
A3
3A.5
A8
388
349
348,10

3811
3ATTF
3C.21
.22
3C.23
3014
44.3
dA.7
44,74
48.2
43,8
Annex 4

increasing Supply of Housing

Borough Housing Targets

Maximising the potential of sites

Housing choice

Chially of new housing pravision
DCefinition of affordable housing
Affordable housing targets

NMegotiating affordable housing in individual private residential and mixed-use
schemes

Affordabla housing threshotds
Addressing the needs of London's diverse population
Irmprroving Conditions for Walking
improving Conditions for Cyeling

FParking Strategy

Bicdiversity and Nature Canservation
Sustainable Dasign and Construction
Renswable Energy

Sustainable drainane

Architectural design

Fespect he context of local communities
Parking standards,

Linitary Development Plan

HGD1
(HGD2
(1303
(1YGD6
Clelas]
(H)HE
(HHS
(HI}HG
{IH16
(13
{HEN3
(DENS
(HIENT1
(1}06-08
{1010

Regard to Surrcundings / Integrated into Local Community
Quality of Life and Visual Amenity

Character f Besign

Traffic Generation

Site Access and Servicing

Range of size and Tenhure

Privacy and Overdooking

Amently Space

Flat Conversions

Creation or improvement of accesses

Mature conservation

Development it sites of nature conservation imporlance
Wildlife Corridors

Green Chain Corridors

Regard to the contribution of epen land.

SPG on Conversions of Single Dwellings to Flats

Local Development Frameweork - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Enfietd Plan — Proposed Subimission Stage Core Strategy document was published for public
consultation on 14th December 2008, Following this stage of consultation, the Council will subrmit
lhe Core Strategy to the Secretary of State who will appoint a Planning {nspector to consider



Page 127

whether the Strategy meets legal reguirements and that it passes the tests of soundness, The
fotlowing polickes from this document are of relevance to the consideration of this application.

L8y Sustainability and Climate Change

S02 Biodivarsity

S03 Protect and enhance Enfield’s environmental quality

506 High quality, sustainably constructed, new homes to meet the aspirations of local
paopte

208 Affordable Housing, Family Homes and Social Mix

501 Safer and stronger communities

S0 Freserve the local distinctiveness

ST Safeguard established communities and the quality of the local envirenmein!
5021 Sustainable Transport

{ther Material Considerations

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Communities
PFS3 Housing

PPG1E Transport

Analysis

Principle

The principles associgted with the residential development of this site including form, appearance
and relationship to neighbouring properies together with vehicwlar access onlo New River
Crescent, have been established by pravious planning decisions. In particular, the planning
permission granted under ref. TRPOG/2450 {Scheme B), which was allowed on appeal, accepted
34 units,

In addition, although a further application for 39 units was refused (ref. TPAIB/0115 — 'Seheme
&7, and an appeal against this decision dismissed, the inspector concluded that 1) the increased
height and massing of the connecting and end blocks would result in an unduly daminating and
intrusive devalopment; 2) this same increase would result in a loss of visual relief creating & more
dominating and imposing development detrimental to the amenities of neighbouring residents,
primarily in Mew River Crescent; and 3) the introduction of more actively used 1ooms in the upper
floors of the west elevation and the overall increase of windows at a higher level would create
additional overlocking resulting in an unacceptable {oss of privacy. There was ne mention of any
objection to the density and number of residential unils proposed,

Scheme D with 38 units {ref. TRAOHGE6Y), involved a more limited increase in Lhe commecting and
link blocks than that within the dismissed 'Scheme ', However, notwithstanding this reduction, it
was concluded that the increased height of the connecting and end blocks remained
unacceptable. This application is currently the subject of a further appeal, which will be heard on
3" Fabruary 2010.

These previous planning applications and appeal decisions are key material considerations in
determining acceptabilily and in particubar, waight must ba focused on whether the concerng of
the inspectar in assessing 'Scheme C and the reason for refusing "Scheme D' have now been
addressed and, moreover, whether any of the revisions to the scheme have materially worsenad
matters that were previously acceptalble,

The current scherme has substantially the same exlernal envelope as the approved “Scheme B
Asg a result the previous concerns regarding the increase i haight of the connecting and end
blocks are no longer retevant. The main considerations of this application wil be whether the



Page 128

increased number of units, revised mix and alterations to the scheme woukd resull in an
unacceptable impacl an the character and appearance of the area, neighbouring amanites or

highway safety in fight of the previous decisions,

Character and Appearance of the area

Densily

The site lies within 500 metres of Patmers Green district centre within an area characterised by a
mixiure of terraced and semi-detached houses but few high densily developmeatils,
MHetwithslanding the concerns raised on this paint, for the pwrposes of the London Plan {2008}
densily matrix, it is considered and was previoushy accepted that the site les wilhin an urban
area; albeit it is closer to suburban than central. YWhilst the site is logated within PTAL 1, the
boundary of the site is lccated within anly 10 metres of FTAL 2. Moreover, ils proximity to
Palmers Green district centre and associated public transport indicates in responze to PP53 and
the nead to apply development standards flexibly to increase housing supply it should be
considered within the higher PTAL 2-3 bracket. The density matrix suggests a densily of 200 to
450 habitable rooms per hectare. Given the predominance of units with more than 3.8 habitable
rooms within the vicinity of the site, the matix suggests a unit range of 45 to 120 units per
hectare, which is the least dense aption within PTAL 2-3 Urban.  Taking into account the above,
parficularly the distance from Falmers Green district cenlre, as well as the sites location within
Green Chain Corridor, Wildlife Corridor and Site of Mature Conservation Importance on the UDP
proposats map, and the New River being & Site of Metropolitan Impotance for Nature
Conservation, it is considered than an acceptable density could be towards the middie of the 200
to 450 hrph range; arcund 325 hrph.

The application proposes 20 units (4 x 1 bed, 20 x 2 bed, 11 x 3 bed and 4 x 4 hed}. This results
in 132 habitable rooms giving & residential density of 322 hrph or 95 w'h.

The proposad density therefore {ies just below the desired mid paint of the range identified ahove.
However, it is an increase from the 257 hrph or 83 wh in the approved 'Schemea B, although here
fhe Inspector acknowledoed the densily to ke at the lower end of the density range for flats in this
arez as set out in the London Plan.

As can be seen fram the comparative table below, this results in the same number of units per
heclare as ‘Scheme C', but an increase of 5 hrph. 'Scheme C' was not refused due to 2 conflict
with these density standards or on grounds of overdevelopment. Having regard to Lhe limited
increase from 317 {o 322 habitable rooms per hectare, or 1.6%, and, moreover, that it remaing
below the 325 hprh density stated above, this densily figura is considered acceptable.

Scheme B SchemeC Schemel SchemeF
TPOG/2450 TPR/GBO115 TRIOOEET TH/O9/1523

25¥ hrph 317¥ hrph 302 hrph 322 hrph
Pensity 183 wh 95 w'h 188 wh 85 uth

The question of whether the proposed scheme represents an appropriate form of developmenl
and not an overdevelopment of the site, however, must involve more than a numerical
assessment, |t must take into account the relationship of the development Lo s surroundings
and the streetscene, as well as its impact on residential amenity {o establish acceptability.

A previcusly staled, the blocks A — D reflect the external envelope of approved ‘Scheme B'. The
proposed garage block akso reflects that within 'Scheimes C and [, In addition, the layout has
heen amended to provide increased landscaping, in place of hard surfacing, around the bulldings.



Page 129

The only increase in scale over 'Scheme B', therefore, involvas the garage block, which was
previously found to be acceptabie and was not highlighted as an issue by the previous Inspector,

Cveral, the numerical assessment provides that the proposed density is acceptable, the scale of
the buildings does not reswlt in a form of developrment that would differ from ‘Schema B' or has
been accepted within “Schemes € and D', Thus, the impact on the appearance and character of
the ared ts considerad acceptable,

Amenily Space

Before addressing the amenity space provision within the current seheme, it is necessary to
correct an enror within the report to commities in respect of 'Scheme ') The previous report
stated the amenty space provision for 'Scheme C to be 52% of the GlA. It subsequently came to
light that this caloulation had rot been consistent with that of previous proposals. The corrected
figure is 48%, as shown in the comparative table below. As 'Scheme C' s currently the subject of
an appeal the Planning hspectorale has bean advisad of this errar. Ultimateby, # will be for an
inspector o decide whather this level of amenily space provision is acceptable.

The current scheme proposes approximately 1,525 square metres of amentty space, of which
appreximately 349 square mefres is in the form of baleonies and terraces. The GlA of the units is
approximately 2,787 square metres and therefore, the amenity space reqguired is 2,042 square
metres. The proposal achieves only §5% of the ovarall GlA. In addition, 23% of the total amenily
space is provided as balconies and terraces against a maximum UDP standard of 15%. A table
providing 8 comparisen with previous schemes is provided balow.

Scheme B  Scheme C  SchemeD  SchemeF
TPR{CG/2450 TP/OS/0115 TPMO9066T TPR/O91523

Amenity Space proposcd 1.851 1,558 418 1,525

GlA of the huildings
tncluding comnunal
areas (but excluding
integral

parkingfrefusel/cycle
stores) 2,508 2,980 2,801 2,787

% of GiA of building
inchuding communal
areas (but exiuding
integral
parkingfrefusefcycie
stores) BE8% 52% 49% B5%

% of required standard
incluging communal

areas (@ 75% provision
{ex. Parkingirefuselfoysla) 02%, 73% 87% T5%

The current scheme proposes proportionately more amenity space provision than ‘Scheme G
The Inspector for 'Scheme O discussed the proposed increase in size of the buildings without
any equivatent increase in surrounding space that provided theilr visual setting. Mowever, he
conchided that matters relating to height and massing were more refevant in reaching an



Page 130

assessment on the relative metrits of the scheme in visual terms. In addition, he noted that the
Councit did not allege the amount or type of amenity space would be insufficient for racreational
purposes. As the current scheme proposes amenily space provision proportionately above that
previously considerad acceptable, it is not considered a reason for refusal could now be
sustained on these grounds.

The inspector for 'Scheme B' considered that a level below the UDP standard was acoeptable,
placing weight on the level of space around the buildings rather than a numerical standard,
Weight was also given to lhe proportion of one bedroom units, the apen selting to the aast of the
site and guidance within both the London Plan and FFS3 regarding more efficient use of land,

This currert scheme proposes a similar lavel of external amenily space as ‘Scheme B' and
'‘Geheme C7 and substantially the same building envelops as the approved 'Scheme B, As a
resuft, whilst the number of units and habitable rooms have increased, the space around the
buildings, as well as its scate, remain substantially the same. Whilst the scheme involves a larger
propartion of family sized units than “Scheme B', there are less than was the case with "Scheme

c.

The level of balconies and terraces proposed excesds the adopted standard of 15%. However, it
is less than the 24% found to be acceptable within the approved ‘Scheme B

Owvearall, whilst the current scheime proposes & material reduction in the proportionate amount of
amanity space and includes more family sized units in refation to “Scheme 8', this has been
previously found to be acceptable and the space around the buildings remains targely
unchanged. In addition, the site remaing within 150 walking distance of a large recreation
ground, which includes a small children's play area. Furthermore, the proportion of amenity
space s comparable with that found acceptable in 'Scheme ©'. Having regard to the
requirerments of the London Pian and PRS2 regarding the efficient use of land, the proposed level
of amenity space is considerad acceptable and remains consistent with the principles previously

establishad,

Desian and Appearance

The overalt architectural design of the scheme reflects that previously approved and is
considered acceptable. As stated above, unlike 'Schemes C and T the current proposal does
not seek io increase the height of the connacting blosks. As such, the only material change in the
design is the change 1o the garage block discussed below,

la redation to the garage conversion, the proposal seeks o retain a further 5.2 meatras of the
parage block and atso includes an amended roof structure thal is approximately 0.5 metres
higher. The resulting building is 6.8 metres high and 18.2 metres wide, as was the case with
'Schemes C and B VWhilst this wilt further increase the height of the existing garage buildings, as
well as reading as a larger mass, it is not considered that this will unduly impact on the character
and appearance of the surrounding area. Furthermore, as stated above, the inspector did not
include this element of the scheme as a matter of concern betwesan the paries at the appeal,

The alteration to this elemeant is, thersfore, considered acceptable.

The element of the scherme that was abjected to in “Schemes C and €, namely the increase in
height of the connecling biccks, is not present within the current proposals. As a result, the
reason for refusing these schemes does nof apply here.

Cwarall, in light of the above, the proposed design and appearance are considered acceptable,




Page 131

The current howsing needs assessment, which focuses on the need for larger family sized
accommodalion. This provides for a preferred mix of 13% 1 bed, 37% 2 bed, 36% 3 bed and
14% 4 bed units. The mix of the currant and previous schemes is included in the tahle helow:

Scheme B Scheme & SchemeD SchemaF
Housing Mix TR/OG/2450 TPR/OBIO11S TPIQS/Q66T TPIS/MM523
1 hed 12% 21% 1755 10%
2 bed T1% 44%, 36% 51%
3 bed 18% 28% 26% 28%
4 bed 0% 8% 11% 10%

As shown above, the current application proposes a mix of 10% 1 bed, 51% 2 bed, 28% 3 bed
argd 10% 4 hed units. This resulls in 38% family sized units, compared wilh 18% within the
approved 'Scheme B', where it must be acknowledged there has heen a significant change in
policy in respact of the need for family housing., The proposed level of family units reflects that
previously found to be acceptable within 'Scheme C'. Whilst this results in a less satisfactory mix
than was propased within "Scheme D', on halance, it remains acceptabie.

The scheme includes 9 affordable units, comprising 1 x 1 bed and 2 x 2 bed intermediate units
and & x 3 bed and 1 x 4 bed social rented units. This forms 23% of the overall scheme on a unit
basis or 25% on a habitable rooms basis, which reflects the approved appeal 'Scheme B'. The
mix of these units has, however, with reference to the housing needs of the Borough, has
significantly improved with more 3 and 4 bedroom units,

The currenl application was accompanied by a Three Dragon Teokkit Appraisal which sought to
establish the level of affordable housing that can be viably provided on the sile having regard to
the relevant costs involved. Based on current prices the appraisals provided for the approved
'‘Scheme B and the cutrent proposal show a loss £161,000 and additional profit of £33, 000
a2gainst site acquisition costs, respectively. These include an increased education contribution.

Housing Strategy raised concerns within ‘Scheme D' that the existing use value should not
include the additional value of the land crealed by the approval of 'Scheme B'. The applicant
comends that this fs the proper approach having regard to the guidance notes. Housing
Strategy's concern is that when compared with what they consider should be the existing use
value (EUV) there is a surplus of approximately some £1,000,000 within the appraisal available
for contribution towards affordable housing. However, this surplus would anly be present if the
tand were to be available for development al a price that excluded any ‘hope vake', or indeed
now development value created by the extant permission of 'Scheme B'. In this instance, the
developer has provided details of the site acquisition costs and these show thal a kmited
addilional profit that would be unlikely to justify additional affordable housing provision.

Housing Strategy has suggested that the developer be required to reduce the rate at which they
are selling the units to the Registered Social Landlord (REL) to reduce the reliance on Housing
Corporation grant funding. However, the previously accepted Unilateral Undertakings sought
only 10 secure the provision of affordable housing and not the price at which units could be sold to

an RSL.

The current application seeks to provide an additional & units and 2 revised mixed. This was also
the case with “Scheme CF, which was not objected to on the grounds of insufficient affordable
housing. One futher affordable unit is being provided and there is an increase in family sized
affordable units, Overali, the scheme provides a comparable respeciive amount of affordable
housing to that agreed in 'Schemea B, C and D' and as there has bean no material change in
palicy it would be difficult to justify additional provision without clear evidence that there was a



Page 132

true surplus availabfe within lhe relevant developmenl appraisal. In this inslance, it is considered,
on balance, that an acceptable level of affordable housing is proposed,

Hawing regard to all of the above matters, the proposed mix and affordable housing provision is,
therefore, constdered acceptahble.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

Cutlook and Privacy

The proposat involves materiatly the same siting and building external envelope as the approved
'‘Scheme B'. As a result it is not considered the proposal would have an unaceeptable impact on
lhe outiook of residents of eithar, New River Crescent or Lynbridge Gardens,

tn refation to privacy, the 'Scheme C Inspector considered the addition of velux style rooflights
and more actively used rooms 1o the second floor facing west lowards the propetties fronting New
River Crescent resulted in an unacceptabls loss of privacy. The current scheme does not
propose velux style rooflights 1o weslern elevation and relurns the second floor plan o provide
only bedrooms with west facing windows. As such, it is considered these elements of the
proposal reflect 'Scheme B, and would nat result in material increase in averlooking.

The scheme includes mingr changes to the fenestration at first floor level of the link blocks on
both the easl and west elevations, as well a5 some alterations to the configuration of the windows
at third floor levet to the nonth and south ends of each block. However, these largely serve
bedrooms and, mareover, i is not considered these changes would result in a material increase
in overiooking from the development. Four velux siyle rooflights to each block are now proposed
o the east elevation. Howewer, the views from these rooflights would be comparable with, if not
more Fmited than, those available from the inset balconies that reflect those previously approved
with 'Scheme B' and their limiled number, as wel as the separation distances and angles
involved, would sarve o prevent an unacceptable loss of privacy or the perception of being
averlooked.

The proposed balconies and roof terraces reflect the positions approved within 'Scheme B'. They
will largety overlonk the recreation ground, which is a matter suppaoried by the principles of
Secure By Design. The potentiat for overlooking from these balconies to the rear of Lynlridge
Gardens was a matter that the Inspector nuted with slight concern but cliimately found to be
acceptable. A separation distance of at least approxinatety 23.5 metres to the end of the garden
to no. 40 Lynbridge Gardens and 38 metres to the rear of the property itsell are retained.
Howewver, notwithsianding the above, the developer has agreed to provide a 1.8 metre high
screen {0 the soluthernmos! block Lhat will @nsure any views from this terrace will be to the soulh.
Having regard to the Inspectors decision in relation to *Scheme B, il is considered any views in
the direction of the rear of Lynbridge Gardens from the remaining terraces, would be suffictently
distant andfor oblique {o prevent an unacceptable level of overlooking,

The accuracy of the submitted ground levels has also been raised as a concern. However, these
reflact those submilled and agreed al both appeals and appear to reflect those present when
vigiling the site.

Owverall, having regard to all of the above matters and findings Inspectors findings, it is considerad
that the current proposal would not resull in an unacceptable foss of ouliook of privacy lo the
surrounding residents.

Genaral noise and disturbance




Page 133

The impact an no. 36 Mew River Crescent in respect of noise and disturbance from the proposad
access was considered acceptable in the approved scheme. 1t is not considered thal he extra &
units with a revised overall mix would result in additional traffic movements that would materially
increase this level of noise and disturbance.

Whilst the proposal includes 4 parking spaces along the boundary with no. 36 New River
Crescent, it is not considered this would result in an unacceptable impact on the amenities of this
properly. Moreover, an acoustic fence to redlce the passage of sound to the rear garden area
can be secured by condilion,

The proposal would involve malerially (he same terraces that are present within the approved
‘Scheme B', which are, therefore, considered acceptable,

Whilst the 5 additional units and revised mix would result in a greater intensity of use, itis
considered that the increased aclivity on the site, given the residential nature of the proposal,
would not unduly detract from the residential amenities of neighbowing occupiers, Furthermaore
‘Scheme C' involved the same number of units and onfy 5 less habitable rooms, where these
matters were found {o be acceptable.

Standard of Accommodation

The current application seeks Lo maximise the number of units within the same external building
envelope of Blocks A — D of the approved 'Scheme B atong wilh changes to the garage block
that have been present in “Schemes C and D', [t is necessary to ensure, therefore, as it was with
previous schemes, that the proposed units are of a suitable size to provide an adequate level of
residential amenity for futitre residents. In this respect Policy 346 of the London Plan (2008)
relates to the guality of new housing provision and Policy {IIH15 through the SPG on
Conversions of Single Dwellings into Flats provides minimum sizes for flats. Whilst it must be
acknowledged that this Unitary Developmeant Plan policy and SPG aie primarily aimed at flat
conversions, they provide relevanl minimurm size standards for flats.

it must also be acknowledged that the Draft replacement London Flan published in October 2009
proposes Policy 3.5 entited “Guality and design of housing developments’. [t states that new
dwellings should "meet the dwelling space slandards st outin Table 3.3, have adequalely sized
rooms and convenient and efficient room layouts”. The standards set outin Table 3.3
substanlially exceed those within the Council's adopted SFPGE. Whilst this Policy is onby al
consultation stage and therefore can be afforded very little weight, it does provide an indication of
the direction of fravel in respect of space standards and, morgover, confirms that the standards
within the SPG are relevant minimum standards upon which current developments can be

assessad,

The standards within the SPG are that units should have he following net internal area for each
of the fellowing unit sizes; 1 bed; 45 square metres, 2 bed; 57 square metres and 3 bed: B0
square metres. Al previous schemes to date have met and generally excesded these standards
by some way. VWhilst there is no standard for 4 bedroom unifs, the pravious schemes have
proposed units of approximately 88 to 88 square metres, which were found, on halance, to be
acoeptable.

The current scheme proposes a range of unit sizes. There are a number of units, however, that
fall significantly below the above standards. These are the 2 bedroom units 8 and & and the three
bedroam units & and 7 in each of the Biocks A (o B, which have deficiencies of 5.2 and 8.6
sguare metres, or 9% and 12% of the adopted standard, respectively.



Page 134

Ir addition, uniks 8 and 9 in each block wilt he Turther constrained by the headroom avatlable inlo
the slopes of the roof,

{t should be noted that in recent appeal dacisions Inspeciors have afforded significant weighf to
the quafity of aceammadation for fulure occupants and have dismissed appeals based upon
inadeguate unit sizes,

Consideration was also given to whether this matter could be address by reducing the deficient 3
bed units to 2 bad unite and 2 bed units to 1 bed units. HMowever, this would have resulted in a
redustion in the number of family sized units to only 18%, which, having regard to the current
Housing Meeds Assessment, increased importance given to the provision of family
accommodation and policy within this area, would not be acceplable. Moreover, that s not the
scheme that has been submitted for determination.

Cwverall, # is considered the substandard size of units proposed, including the twa bedroom units
8 and 9 and the three bedroom units & and 7 in each of lhe Blocks A to D {units AR to A%, BE 1o
BY, C6 to CF and DE to D), would rasult in an unaceeptable standard of residential
accommadation for fulure cccupants contrany Lo policy (BGD1, (K302, (1M503 and {INH1E of the
Unitary Development Plan and Policy 348 of the London Plan {2008}

Parking and Access

The current proposal incledes a total of 46 car parking spaces, 4 of which are ‘unallocated’ afong
the acoess way and 4 of which are disabled spaces, along with 44 cycle spaces. The previoushy
approved scheme included 42 spaces for 34 units, resulfing in a ratio of 1.2 spaces per dwelling.
In the currenl schame, the ratio remains 1.2 spaces per unit, A ratio of 1.15 spaces per unit was
also found 1o be acceptalie within 'Scheme C') which involved 45 car parking spaces for 35 flats,
The ratio proposed reflacts that within the approved 'Scheme B' and exceeds that found
acceptable within "Scheme C'. As a result the proposed parking level is considerad accepiable.

Traffic and Transporation have raised concerns regarding the excessive reversing distance far
fire appliances and refuse freighters although this has not changed frem the previous schemas,
whera it was concluded this was acceptable. Landon Fire and Emergency Planning Authority
hawve now raised objections to the proposal. However, this is & matter that will need o be
addressad through bullding regulations, which may need to include the provision of hydrants or
sprinkler systems for the affected units. A direstive is propoased advising the applicant of this

issue.

This schame involves a slightly revised access, which provides access to the site alongside the
extsting garage access. This wilk then be demarked with melal studs an a new road surface. The
access road proposed also involves shared surfacing, rather than a separate pedestrian
pavement. Traffic and Transpaontalion have not raised objections {o this revision and, having
fegard to the scate of development, such a3 shared surface s considerad acceptable.

A3 this application is submitted alongside a details application (TRAOGI2450DP1) for ‘Scheme B' it
ingludes more detail than previous schemeas in the aim to avoid the requirement for the
submission of details by condition. Whilst some concerns have been raised by Traffic and
Fransportation regarding enclasure, landseaping and lghting are raised, these could be rescived
by condition,

The proposal includes an additional 5§ units over approved “Scheme B' with a revised mix of units
as discussed above, Mowever, it is considered that this limiled increase in traffic movemenls
could be accommodated on New River Crescent and adjoining highways and would not result in
an unacceptable risk to highway safety.



Page 135

Overall, it is considered that, subject to standard conditions, the proposed access and parking
arfangements are acceptabla.

Sustainable Design and Construction

The proposat incorporates green roofs on the flat tops of the 3-storey blocks and permeable and
green paving far areas of hard surfacing. The proposal scored 75% in the sustainability
agsessment. [t is considered that the proposal is in accordance with the objectives of policy 4A.3
"Suslainable Design and Construction’ of the London Pran.

Legai Agreements

A unifateral undenaking, that reflects the previousty agreed wording, has been received. This
includes the requisite contribution for education and secures the alfordable housing discussed

above,

Dther matters

i has previously been demonstrated threugh an Archaeclogical Desk-Based Assessment,
confirmed by English Meritage, that it is unlikely thal archaesological remains will be disturbed
during construction of the development. As such, a condition relating to archazotogy will not be

necessary.

Coeneerns have been raised regarding the kmpact of the proposals on the environment, disruption
during construction process, the impact an house prices, the lack of need for new housing and
that the developer is seeking to ‘wear residents down' with repeat applications. Taking each in
turn, it is not considerad that this proposal will result in enaterially greater impacts on the
environment than the approved scheme and reasenable disruption during the construction
process as well as any impact on house prices are not material plansing considerations. 1His not
considered Lhat the provision of 5 additional units aiong with a revised mix would give rise to
detatled considerations of the level of housing required within the Barough, which tands to be
material only wilh larger schemas. Whilst this current application is the fifth in a sequence
eutending over the last 3 years, each application has been for a revised scheme responding to
issuas in the light of an accepted principfe of development and each must be assessed on its own
merits.

Conclusion

fn the light of the above assessment, it is considered that planning permission should be relused
due to the inadeguate size of many of the propased units. 1t is considered, having paticular
regard to the previaus planning history of the site, including tnspectors decisions, that all other
rhatters have been adegualely addrassed.



f k]
i
ki

_ax.u.af?.ﬁ.....
ey e
o § o e ! i T

Sweih,

e

e

Rt

TR
Pt

o
g

__,”“.w,ﬁ%m

PR
R P

PR L

bt
Tk n




A e
i ........,Ltr....

L 2 OKLI: ¥ OEIEE oIl wnad

R

.h..rr —

pien ﬂ = e = 5 e T :.:f..... e AT T e ramu
I one T .

i . s : e ”. i & fel _J ; ”l_}.,l. e ..,:.._ -|||||.,m-lux.t--...:u..1....,.“,”:.:..”.\-

buzhiagl Lo¢ kRl A

aaze & ixH OB S

i e e i e
= o

e A e |-L...*.......|.PJ.. A A
RIS - BN (g ns

Rt

I s o =

e uﬂmu_q_u:mJH ﬁrl,_EHEf.uﬁwmmHm




Page 138

Application No:- TP/09/1631

ENFIELD

Council

03 Grmal c0ynil Lendea Beoeagh of Diked LACDERE: 20405

Bevelopment Control

Scale . 2500
Tirme af Aok 11:54 Crate of plot: Q5012005




Page 139

Application Mumber: TR/OSMG31T Ward: Highlands
Date of Reqgistration: Sth November 2009

Contact Jane Tebbutl 3849

Location: MERRYHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL, BINCOTE ROAD, ENFIELD, ENZ 7RE
Proposal: instatlation of an all weather multi-use games area to south side of school field.

Applicant Mame & Address:

Mrs Linda Brockhurst
MERRYHILLS FRIMARY SCHOOL
BIMNCOTE ROAD

ENFIELD

EMZ 7RE

Agent Mame & Address:

Mote fo Members

This apphication is repored to Commiltee, as it is a Councl maintained school.

Recommendation: That planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following condition:
1. CB1A Time Limited Permission

Site and Surroundings

Mersyhills School covers an area of 3.6 hectares sited adjacent to both Bincole Road and Worlds
End Lane and comprises a mix of two-storey and singke storey huildings siuated towards the
centre of the site. Adjacent to the north, east and west boundaries are residential properties along
Foxmead Close, Bincote Road and Cotswold Way., Nos. 54 -64 {even) Cotswold Way i1s situated
in relafively close proximity to the proposed developrment. The surrounding area is residential in

charadcter.

Proposal

Permisston is sought for the provision of an all-weather multi-use games area (MUGA) positioned
to the south west corner of the site adjacent to the pedestrian access path from Glenbrook South.
Tha site coverage would be 10.3 metres in width, 22.5 metres in length and would be enclosed by
a galvanised polyester painted dark green fence 1 metre in height rising fo & maximum of 3.9
metres behind the goal areas at either end. The floor area to be constructed of black tarmac.

Relevant Planning Decisions
Mane

Consuitation



Page 140

Public

Consuitation letters were sent 1o 16 neighbouring properties. Any responses will be reponted at
the meeting.

External

MNone

Intetnal
Mone

Relevant Policies

Londen Plan (2008}

Policy 304,24 Education facilities

tnitary Developrment Plan

{1 Cst Provisian of community services
(i cs2 Siting and design of buildings
{ICs3 Community facifities

b GV Regard to surroundings

{1y GO Appropriate lacation

{1y GD3 Aesthetics and funstional design

Local Bevelopment Framework

The Enfield Plan -~ Proposed Submission Stage Core Strategy document was published for public
consultation on 14™ December 2008, Following this stage of consultation, the Council will submiit
the Core Strateqy to the Secretary of State who wilk appeint a Planning Inspecter io consider
whether the Strategy meets legal requirements and that it passes the tests of soundness. The
faltowing policies from this document are of relevance to the consideration of this application.

508 Housing and people
Other Material Cansiderations
Mone

Analysis

Principle

The proposed development provides improved facilities for the schoal. No additional stedents or
staff are propoesed. The principle therefore, subject 1o the detailed considerations below, is
considarad acceptable.

Impact on character of surrdunding area



Page 141

The proposed MUGA would be situated in the school ptaying field to the south west of the main
school buildings. The piteh will be enciosed by a 1m high fance on its west and sast boundary
and 3.9 metres on its north and south boundary behind the goal areas. The structure is open in
nature and would not be detrimental to the character and appearance of the surrounding area
when viewed from Glenbrook Scuth.

lmpact on Neighbouring Properies

The proposed development is on the south wesl side of the school. The rear elevalions of the
nearest residential dwellings on Catswold Way are approximately 15 metres away. The MUGA
would be sited on the school playing field which is already used by the children as a play ares
aparl from in the winter months when the grass becomes loo wet. The MUGA is siled
approximately the same distance from the rear of the neighbouwring residential properties as the
existing hard surface play area. The hours of use would be restricted to 09.00 am te 17.30 pm
during term time. It is acknowledged that there is already a level of noise due to the use of the
play ground and playing fields, Whilst the MUGA s likely to give rise to a slightly more intensified
use in this section of the school grounds it is not considered that  this would not be out of
character with the use of the area and would not adversely affect the residential amenities of

nearby properties.

Highway safety
Mo issues.
Conclusion

in the lighl of the above assessment it is considered that the proposed MUGA will provide
additional and enhanced play fadilities for the school. It is not considerad that the proposat wilt
cause undue loss of residential amenities to the occupiers of surrounding residential properties or
detract fromm the appearance of the area. Bt is Iherefore recommended that planning permission be
granted for the following reason.

The siting of the proposed Muiti-Use Games Area, together with its enclosure represents
appropriate development on this schoof site and has appropriate regard to ils surroundings. In
this respect the proposal complies with Policies (B GD1 and (I} GD1 of the Unitary Development
Pian.



_Page 142 .

o
LAy

ok
{ag~ 1

Aol




Page.143......

il ad St

o L ST




SPAGRIAA i e

MERRYHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL

H
H
:
' :
i i
; _ : '
L
I v [
! =11 59
i .
i -
: .
i
i .
i H
' i
I . i
: 4 s K :
H A :
' '
! . H
H ‘ :
: kS i
T i
: e i
: - M
: £ ;
! :
: i
i - i
H R
: s e
: i -
H L o . .
i H . R RIS SR SO
' 1 - . .

[ -, . .t 1 :

: § e

a. : !

1 W

i .

i .

i -

i Y

! {U.- :

! N ¢ !

: s :

i L

T

o L . :._ '.

L

1 "_ )

RS

[

l.

B
[l

| =.,'1'J'11;} | }HUI fﬁiﬂ :
; fo Y 2005 *

|i'1l_:_' _?LE- Fl'mi hT -:\.p |-2||.|jri-t1

LASRRYHILLS FRIMARY : B TRy
SCHOOL BHGGTE 5 L
HOAD HIGHLANDS ENFIE LO N aver e C RS N T
TRE 1 seoznber Fie o - L. . .
; § A GRG0 PRI A

15 J i ['lC-I{jl A f 5:1 A T (ol VI A '

H TS T SO0 NN Al i ey LSOAIE R
i ) T AL el b

ENFIELD'

Couneil 7




Page 145
Application No:- TP/09/1658

ENFIELD

. Eralo - 1:1250
Council o

Tima of plat: 3222 Date of ploi, 050172010

1 Crowe Cpperighl Leaden Dereogh of Colele LAGIS A0, 200




Page 146

Application Mumber: TR/O91658 Ward: Chase
Date of Registration: 27th November 2008

Contact David Snell 3838

Location: Land south side of Whitewebbs Lane, Incorporating Rolenmilt Sports Ground, And
{and Rear Of Myddelton House, Buils Cross, Enfield, Middx, EN2 9HA

Propgsal: Construction of a footbal training centre comprising a building incorporating training
and associated faciliies. {Amended design of approved scheme under RebTR/07/1623)

Applicant Name & Addrass:

Tottenham Hotspur FC & AC Lid
cio Agent

Adent Name & Address:

ir Peter Dixon, Savilis
Ground Floor, City Painl
249, King Street

Leeds

LST 2HL

Recommendation: That planning paermission be GRANTED, subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby approved shalt be carried out in accordance with the conditions
and approved details of planning permission reference TR/O71623 dated 11th February

2004,

Reason: To ensure that the revised design is implemented in accordance with the
applicable approved details.

Site and surroundings

The Football Training Centre would be accommodated on 27.20 ha of [and comprising existing
sports fields and agricultural fand,

The site is bounded to the north by a cricket ground and Whitewebbs Lane, to the east by properties
fronting Bulls Cross and Myddelton House {a grade Il listed building) and an office building, to the
south by woodland {Archers YWood) and Forty Mall {3 grade 1 listed buiding and #s associated
parkland} and to the west by woodland, agriculturat land and Keepers Cottage.

This site lies within the Metropolitan Green Bell, a designated Arga of Special Character and pardly
within the Forly Hif Conservation Area.

Background

Following consideration of planning application TRIO7HE23 by Planning Commitiee on 12"
tovember 2007 and complation of a 5,106 Agreement planning permission was granted for a
Footbal Training Centre an 11" April 2008,

The scheme involves the erection of a building to provide football academy facilities with indoor
footbaH pitch, together with a total of 11 ¥ external pitches (1 x floodlit grass, 1 3% x floodlit



Page 147

artificial, 9 x grass), grass training areas, installation of mesh fencing and associated pathways,
togather with erection of groundsman’s store and entry Indge with barrier.

The majority of details purstuant to conditions of the planning permission have been submitied
and approved since that date. Construction has commenced.

Proposal

This application proposes amendmants o the siting and jayoul of the main foothall academy
buitding that forms part of the onginal approved schemea a3 follows:

+ The inclusion of a sub-basement plant room
. The re-arrangement of some of the internal facilities

« A reduction in floor area by 260 sg.metres

v The widih of the first team wing of the building reduced by approximately 1.5 metres and
moved 3 metres northwards

» The entire facility moved 1.5 metres {o the west

» The provision of a central staircase

« The introduction of balcony space

Consultation
FPublic

Consultation on the application has been undertaken in the form of approximately, 485 letters to
the public, notices in the press and nolices posted in the vicinity of the site on Whitewebbs Lane

and Budls Cross.

Cne response has been received raiging the following issues.
Strong opposition fo the original application

External

The follewing consulfzes raise no objection or no comment..

Matural England

English Heritage

Lee Valley Park Authority

London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority

Maticnal Grid reiterate their previous advice in respect of the high pressure gas main that crosses
the site.

Internal

None.

Relevarnt policy
Landan Plan

4B.1 Design
4p.8 Hespect local context



Page 148

Unitary Development Plan

(NGO Appropriate regard to surroundings
(1)GD2  Design

Analysis

The process of considering and determining planning application TRO?MG623 included a thorough
examinalion of the key planning {ssues arising including:

« The principle of the development having regard 1o its Green Belt location

» The impact of the development on the open character and the appearance of the Green Belt

» Whether the development is justified by very special circumsiances under which the harm
caused by reason of inapproprialeness and any ofher harm is clearly outweighed by other
considerations

+ Congervalion isstes

« Traffic and highway safety issues

lmypact on adjoining cccupiers

The layout of the devalopment and design of the buildings

« Building design and sustainability issues
+ Ecologicat impact and biodiversity

» Lighting impact

« MNoise impact

+ Energy

The principle of the development having regard to local, regional and national planning palicy in
respact of the above fssues was accepted by the approval of the applicalion. Membears need not
consider these matters further.

Since the consideration of application TR/OT/1623 an extension to Forty Hilt and Bulls Cross
onservation Area has been approved. Freviously a small part of the sile on its Bulls Cross side
was within the conservation area but the alieration provides that a substartial part of the land is
hiow within the consenvation area, including the area occupied by the main training cantre
building, Whilst this change is a matesial the consideration the impact of the main building in
consernvation, heritage and historic building terms was robust dug to its proximity to the then
conseivation area boundary, the Forty Hall Estate and listed buildings and planning permission
has been granted. Therefore the designation of 2 greater part of the sife as a conservalion arga
does not impact on ils acceptability in these terms.

The design concept and visual appearance of the butding remaing subslantially as approved.
The amendments proposed do not significantty impact on the siting or design of the building as
approved olher than to slighily reduce its overall foolprinl and propose minor changes 1o its
massing and layout.

Cenclusion

It is recommeanded that planning permission be granted for the following reasons:

1. The principle of the development has been accessed having regard to the Unitary
Deveiopment Plan, The London Plan and National Planning Policy Statements and Policy and

planning permission was granted for the reasons sat ot in the decision notice of planning
permission TRP/O7/1623 dated 117 April 2008,



Page 149

2. The proposed amandments to the main building do not significantly alter the sifing or design
of the building as approved other than to slightly reduce its overall footprint and propose
refatively minor changes to its massing and layout. The amendments do not materiatly alter
the impact of the huliding and are acceptable having regard to the Unilary Development Plan,
The London Plan and National Planning Policy Statements.



Page 150




Page 151

|

|

[

RLT TP




Page 152




Page 153

[P

-

E

e
M T B P T T Ty e R w-

B




Page 154

Vo A & A

PeFAA R AL A

;
i
%
i
i
3
i
:
H
i
4
i
;
N
m
i
i
2

W

T L A e L o L Lol ) it 8 LB bbbl e e B P TR T APt T P 0 femm o p e

P )

PR S

T i L AL i

) o SEA

JNNICHPAS Jy

el g e St e e e A TR Ay

bt ot e et

B T L L R T R R T AL R B L

et




Page 155

TOWN PLANNING APPEALS

Appeal Information for Period: 03/12/2009 to 31/12/2009

Section 1: New Town Planning Application Appeals

Section 2: Decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157

SECTION 1
NEW TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION APPEALS

Application No.: AD/09/0053 Ward:Chase
Appeal Type: Written Evidence
Appeal Received date: 30-Dec-2009

Location: Land at junction with Tingeys Top Lane, and Theobalds Park Road, Enfield,
Middx, EN2 9BJ

Proposal: Installation of two pole mounted, non-illuminated signs at entrance to Tingey Top
Lane. (RETROSPECTIVE)

Application No.: AD/09/0075 Ward:Chase

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Received date: 08-Dec-2009

Location: WOLDEN NURSERY, CATTLEGATE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 9DW

Proposal: Installation of 6 x non-illuminated double-sided, pole mounted hanging signs to
site frontage.

Application No.: TP/09/0616 Ward:Bowes
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Received date: 21-Dec-2009

Location: 23, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4TN

Proposal: Conversion of first floor into 2 self contained flats (1 x 1-bed and 1 x 2-bed)
together with a first floor rear extension.

Application No.: TP/09/0870 Ward:Edmonton Green
Appeal Type: Written Evidence
Appeal Received date: 15-Dec-2009

Location: Land adjacent to 50, MONTAGU GARDENS, (AKA 52 Montagu Gardens),
LONDON, N18 2EZ

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling house to 2 self-contained flats (1 x 1-bed, 1
x 2-bed). (RETROSPECTIVE)




Page 158

Application No.: TP/09/0994 Ward:Grange
Appeal Type: FASTTRACK

Appeal Received date: 21-Dec-2009

Location: 97, PARK DRIVE, LONDON, N21 2LT

Proposal: Retention of side boundary fence to a maximum height of 2.7 metres
(RETROSPECTIVE).

Application No.: TP/09/1065 Ward:Lower Edmonton
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Received date: 29-Dec-2009

Location: 163, BURY STREET, LONDON, N9 7JP

Proposal: Installation of roller shutters to shop front.

Application No.: TP/09/1189 Ward:Bowes

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Received date: 14-Dec-2009

Location: 129, BOWES ROAD, LONDON, N13 4SB

Proposal: Conversion of first, second and third floor maisonette into 2 self contained flats

(comprising of 1x1-bed and 1x2-bed flat), installation of new front entrance, and parking to
rear.

Application No.: TP/09/1321 Ward:Jubilee

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Received date: 08-Dec-2009

Location: 97, ST JOSEPHS ROAD, LONDON, N9 8NU

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 2 self contained flats (comprising 1 x 1-

bed and 1 x 2-bed) together with a single storey rear extension (PART-
RETROSPECTIVE).




Page 159

Application No.: TP/09/1424 Ward:Grange
Appeal Type: FASTTRACK

Appeal Received date: 21-Dec-2009

Location: 34, RALEIGH ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6UB

Proposal: Single storey rear extension with pitched roof over.

Application No.: TP/09/1443 Ward:Edmonton Green

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Received date: 23-Dec-2009

Location: 1 & 2, DERBY ROAD, LONDON, N18 2PA

Proposal: Change of use from plant hire and metal fabrication workshop to scrap yard in

connection with adjacent scrap yard together with demolition of existing buildings and
erection of new workshop and installation of 4 container filling machines.

Application No.: TP/09/1465 Ward:Southbury
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Received date: 16-Dec-2009

Location: 134, PERCIVAL ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 1QU

Proposal: Change of use from A2 (office) to A5 (Take-away) and alterations to shop front to
provide separate access to 1st floor, and installation of extractor flue.




Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161

SECTION 2
DECISIONS ON TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION APPEALS
Application No.: AD/09/0002 Ward:Edmonton Green

(Delegated - 25-Mar-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 08-Dec-2009
Location: Land between 17 Park road and, Railway Lines, Edmonton, London, N18

Proposal: Installation of 1 non illuminated sign to side of building and 1 non illuminated sign
to fence at rear.

Application No.: LDC/09/0075 Ward:Lower Edmonton
(Delegated - 29-Apr-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Allowed Decision Date: 23-Dec-2009
Location: 114, TOWN ROAD, LONDON, N9 ORL

Proposal: Rear dormer window.

Application No.: TP/06/0356/DP2 Ward:Cockfosters

(Delegated - 30-Apr-2009 - DETAILS DISAPPROVED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 07-Dec-2009
Location: 11, FAIRGREEN, BARNET, EN4 0QS

Proposal: Details of enclosure submitted pursuant to condition 04 of approval granted
under ref: TP/06/0356 for replacement dwelling house.




Page 162

Application No.: TP/08/1209 Ward:Winchmore Hill

(Planning Committee - 26-Mar-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal withdrawn Decision Date: 03-Dec-2009

Location: KING EASTON GARDEN CENTRE, 69, STATION ROAD, LONDON, N21 3NB

Proposal: Erection of three buildings to provide 8 residential units and a retail unit for A1
use comprising one 2-storey detached 3-bed dwelling involving rooms in roof with front and
side dormer windows, one 2-storey block of 5 terraced houses (comprising 4 x 2-bed and 1
x 3-bed), one part 3-storey block (comprising retail unit on ground floor, a 2-bed flat on first
floor and a 1-bed flat on second floor) involving accommodation in the roof with front
dormer window and balconies to first floor at front and rear, together with access from
Compton Road and provision of 9 car parking spaces.

Application No.: TP/08/1307 Ward:Grange
(Delegated - 30-Jan-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 08-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 83, CECIL ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6TJ
Proposal: Replacement of front windows (RETROSPECTIVE), demolish front wall, erect

new front wall and construction of hardstanding to front and side, replace rear boundary
fence.

Application No.: TP/08/2024 Ward:Winchmore Hill

(Delegated - 26-Jan-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 03-Dec-2009
Location: 7, WADES HILL, LONDON, N21 1BD

Proposal: New shop front (RETROSPECTIVE).




Page 163

Application No.: TP/08/2115 Ward:Ponders End

(Delegated - 19-Jan-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 03-Dec-2009
Location: 288-290, Aima Road, Enfield, EN3 7EH

Proposal: Use of premises as a weightlifting and fitness centre (class D2) ancillary to
existing use at no. 280, Alma Road (RETROSPECTIVE).

Application No.: TP/08/2139 Ward:Chase
(Delegated - 19-Feb-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 03-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 22, LAVENDER ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 OST

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 2 x 1- bed self contained flats.

Application No.: TP/09/0024 Ward:Edmonton Green

(Delegated - 25-Mar-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 08-Dec-2009
Location: Land between 17 Park Road and, Railway Line, Edmonton, London, N18

Proposal: Change of use to display and sales of motor vehicles together with a temporary
wooden building to provide an office (RETROSPECTIVE).




Page 164

Application No.: TP/09/0047 Ward:Enfield Highway
(Delegated - 12-Mar-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 07-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 125, BELL LANE, ENFIELD, EN3 5PD

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of a part 2-storey end of terrace 3-bed single
family dwelling.

Application No.: TP/09/0056 Ward:Haselbury

(Delegated - 12-Mar-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 08-Dec-2009
Location: 31, WESTERHAM AVENUE, LONDON, N9 9BT

Proposal: Ground floor side extension for use as storage building (RETROSPECTIVE).

Application No.: TP/09/0092 Ward:Cockfosters

(Delegated - 31-Mar-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal withdrawn Decision Date: 03-Dec-2009

Location: 389, COCKFOSTERS ROAD, BARNET, EN4 0JS

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide a detached 3-storey block of 4 x 3-bed self-
contained flats with basement parking, gym and access ramp, rooms in roof, rear terrace/

balcony to first and second floor levels and enlargement of existing access to Cockfosters
Road.




Page 165

Application No.: TP/09/0207 Ward:Winchmore Hill

(Planning Committee - 30-Apr-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 23-Dec-2009

Location: Garages adjacent to 2 Fox Lane, and land, Rear Of, 2-32, Caversham Avenue,
London, N13

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide 9 single family dwellings incorporating 7
detached 4-bed houses with parking area at side and a pair of semi detached 4-bed
houses with rooms in roof and front and rear dormers and new access to Fox Lane.

Application No.: TP/09/0210 Ward:Palmers Green

(Delegated - 07-Apr-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Split decision Decision Date: 16-Dec-2009
Location: 37, FARNDALE AVENUE, LONDON, N13 5AJ

Proposal: First floor side and rear extension and rear dormer.

Application No.: TP/09/0256 Ward:Ponders End

(Delegated - 30-Apr-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Split decision Decision Date: 16-Dec-2009
Location: 13, QUEENSWAY, ENFIELD, EN3 4SA

Proposal: Change of use of part ground floor to provide retail in connection with existing
use (RETROSPECTIVE).




Page 166

Application No.: TP/09/0266 Ward:Southgate

(Delegated - 29-Apr-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 15-Dec-2009
Location: 8, CHASEVILLE PARADE, CHASEVILLE PARK ROAD, LONDON, N21 1PG

Proposal: Change of use of ground floor from retail (A1) to restaurant (A3) involving new
shop front, front terrace and access ramp.

Application No.: TP/09/0291 Ward:Southgate

(Delegated - 01-May-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 16-Dec-2009
Location: 65, FOUNTAINS CRESCENT, LONDON, N14 6BD

Proposal: Conversion of property into 3 flats (comprising 1x2 bed, 1x1 bed and 1 x studio)
RETROSPECTIVE.

Application No.: TP/09/0399 Ward:Bush Hill Park
(Delegated - 13-May-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 03-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 397, BURY STREET WEST, LONDON, N9 9JR

Proposal: Vehicular access.




Page 167

Application No.: TP/09/0452 Ward:Grange

(Delegated - 28-May-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 04-Dec-2009
Location: 26, RIDGE AVENUE, LONDON, N21 2AJ

Proposal: Vehicular access.

Application No.: TP/09/0475 Ward:Chase
(Delegated - 27-May-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 03-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 23, CYPRESS AVENUE, ENFIELD, EN2 9BY
Proposal: Subdivision of site and erection of a detached 2-bed bungalow at side,

incorporating accommodation in roof with gable ends, front dormer and roof lights, and
parking and access to front.

Application No.: TP/09/0495 Ward:Grange

(Delegated - 01-Jun-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 07-Dec-2009
Location: 28, RIDGE AVENUE, LONDON, N21 2AJ

Proposal: Vehicular access and construction of hardstanding.




Page 168

Application No.: TP/09/0521 Ward:Edmonton Green
(Delegated - 04-Jun-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 08-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 87, MONTAGU ROAD, LONDON, N18 2LX

Proposal: Change of use of storage area at side to a hair dressing salon.

Application No.: TP/09/0556 Ward:Haselbury
(Delegated - 17-Jun-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: Written Evidence

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 15-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 88, HENLEY ROAD, LONDON, N18 1NS

Proposal: Use of premises as a House of Multiple occupation for a maximum of 6 people
(RETROSPECTIVE).

Application No.: TP/09/0955 Ward:Southgate
(Delegated - 25-Aug-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: FASTTRACK

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 15-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 9, HANBURY DRIVE, LONDON, N21 1SZ

Proposal: Installation of replacement UPVC windows.




Page 169

Application No.: TP/09/1161 Ward:Grange

(Delegated - 09-Oct-2009 - REFUSED)

Appeal Type: FASTTRACK

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 09-Dec-2009
Location: 7, GREEN DRAGON LANE, LONDON, N21 2LA

Proposal: Vehicular access.

Application No.: TP/09/1204 Ward:Haselbury
(Delegated - 05-Oct-2009 - REFUSED)
Appeal Type: FASTTRACK

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to Decision Date: 10-Dec-2009
condition(s)

Location: 29, CENTRAL AVENUE, LONDON, N9 9RQ

Proposal: Two storey side extension part two storey rear extension.




Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 30 NOVEMBER 2009 AND 17 DECEMBER 2009
	Minutes , 17/12/2009 Planning Committee

	5 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (REPORT NO. 188)
	Agenda List 19 JAN 10
	AGENDA REPORTS 19 JAN 10 - PART 1
	AGENDA REPORTS 19 JAN 10 - PART 2
	AGENDA REPORTS 19 JAN 10 - PART 3
	Appeal Report Header 19 Jan 10
	appeals received 19 Jan 10
	appeals decided 19 Jan 10


